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Cautionary Statement

This annual report contains various forward-looking staternents regarding events and trends that are subject
to risks and uncertainties that could cause the actual results and financial position of the Group to differ
materially from the information presented herein. When used in this report, the words “estimate”, “praject”,
“intend”, “anticipate”, “believe”, "expect”, “should” and similar expressicns, as they relate to the Group, are
intended to identify such forward looking statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue refiance on
these forward-fooking statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. Save as otherwise required by any
rules or regulations, the Group does not undertake any obtigations publicly to release the result of any
revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

The risks and uncertainties referred to above include:

- actions or decisions by governmental and regulatory bodies, or changes in the regulatery framework
in which the Group operates, which may impact the ability of the Group to carry on its businesses;

- changes or advances in technology, and availability of resources such as spectrum, necessary to use
new or existing technology, or customer and consumer preferences regarding technology;

- the performance of the markets in the UK, the EU and the wider region in which the Group operates;

- the ability of the Group to realise the benefits it expects from existing and future projects and
investments it is undertaking or plans to or may undertake;

- the ability of the Group to develop, expand and maintain its broadcast and machine-to-machine
infrastructure;

- the ahility of the Group to abtain external financing or maintain sufficient capital to fund its existing
and future investments and projects;

- the Group’s dependency on only a limited number of key customers for a large percentage of its
revenue; and

- expectations as to revenues not under contract.

Guidance note to the annual report:

In this document, references to ‘Argiva’ and "the Group’ refer to Argiva Group Limited ("AGL’) and its subsidiaries and
markets as the context may require. References to the ‘Company’ refer to the results and performance of Argiva Group
Limited as a standalone entity.

Areference to a year expressed as 2022 is to the financial year ended 30 June 2022. This convention applies similarly to
any reference to a previous or subsequent financial year. Additionally, references to ‘current year’, 'this year’ and “the year’
are in respect of the financial year ended 20 June 2022, References to the ‘prior year and ‘last year’ are to the financia)
year ended 30 June 2021,
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Arqiva at a glance - 2022

ENABLING A SWITCHED-ON WORLD TO FLOW

Who we are

Argiva is a leading UK communications infrastructure business. We are behind the scenes
delivering millions of vital connections to enable millions of people, businesses, and machines to
connect wherever they are through TV, radio and machine-to-machine data services, enabling o

switched-on world to flow.

Our Infrastructure

c. 1,450
broadcast transmission sites in
the UK

c. 1,150 TV transmissions sites

98.5%
of the UK population reached
through our TV services

275 TV channels
delivered into the UK and Ireland

Market leader for commercial
DTT! spectrum
owning two of the three national
commercial multiplexes

Over 1,000 TV channels delivered
internationally
via satellite to 5 continents

99.5% network coverage
across the North of England and
Scotland on our smart energy
networks

.80 satellite dishes accessing
30+ satellites

12 million premises
can connect to our smart meter
networks

50 million data points
delivered on our smart metering
networks every day

! Refers to Digital Terrestrial Television best known for supporting Freeview
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What we do

Argiva works in partnership with our customers, in the UK and around the world, building and operating the
complex ecosystems and infrastructures through which data and content can move effectively, securely and

sustainably at scale — whether that's through broadcasting and transmission services, or smart networks for
energy and water.

Key Strategic ambitions

Undisputed leader in UK TV and radio
broadcast

Transition global media to cloud solutions

UK’s leading smart utilities platform

Innovator of scalable solutions for new
connectivity sectors
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Highlights

Whilst core media and broadcast has remained stable and smart utilities networks increase with the ramp up
of water meter products, the Group has seen the managed reduction of activity on the 700MHz Clearance
programme now completed and the completion of Transitional Service Agreements {TSAs?} following the
disposal of the Telecoms business in July 2020. There have also been decreases in DTT multiplexes and
managed broadcast services due to the run rate of pricing pressures on renewais. The Group is now focusing
on driving simplification and efficiency to build on cost savings and building a sustainable business.

Revenue EBITDA
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EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure and refers to ‘earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation’ and includes add-backs for certain
iterms charged to operating profit that are not considered to reflect the underlying performance of the business. A reconciliation of EBITGA
to operating profit is presented on page 29.

QOperating cash flow after capital and financial investment activities is a non-GAAP measure and refers to net cash flows from operating
activities less cash flows from investing activities per the cash flow statement excluding intertest received. See page 30 for a reconciliation
to cash inflow from operating activities.

Key financials in the year:

- Revenue decrease of 3.6% (2.8% decrease from continuing operations) but improved margins and an
EBITDA increase of 1.9% (2.7% from continuing operations) when compared to the prior year

- Managed reductions in revenue and EBITDA from the 700MHz clearance programme following
completion of the programme and the end of TSA revenues established for an interim period after the
Telecoms sale

- Decreased revenue due to the lower renewal pricing following the end of legacy contracts on the
main DTT multiplexes, UK Direct-to-Home (UKDTH) and managed broadcast service products

- Continuing the delivery of the core smart energy metering contracts across the North of England and
Scotland with fully rolled out network coverage of 99.5% and incremental change requests

- Increase in revenue from the continued ramp up of activity on smart water metering networks and
increased water device sales.

2 154 refers to revenue for Transition Services Agreement following the sale of the Telecoms business
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Qrderbook
£bn

Revenue by operaiing segment
£m
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Revenue and EBITDA for Group’s site share products arising post the sale of the Telecoms business are now
reported for the Group within the Smart Utilities Networks due to a change in how they are presented internally.
Comparative figures for the prior year including orderbook figures have been represented to reflect this change
in reporting.

Key influences on revenue

Group revenue has decreased 3.6% in total and 2.8% from continuing operations. The following waterfall chart
demonstrates the movement in revenue year on year. This reflects the expected wind down from discontinued
operations, and compietion of activities on the 700MHz clearance programme and TSAs as well as the impact
of market pricing pressures offset by growth in core contracts.
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Key Infiuences on EBITDA

The following waterfall chart demonstrates the year on year impact of total EBITDA for the Group reflecting
Lthe key financial factors:

Commaercial:

Media and Broadcast: Cost savings across staff costs and satellite capacity on transponders have
improved margin despite lower revenues from activity on 700MHz clearance programmes, pricing
pressures and utilisation on the main DTT multiplexes

Smart Utilities Networks: Increased activity across both energy metering and ramp up of water

metering device sales
Discontinued operations: Sale of the Telecoms husiness, completed in the prior year

Other functions:

390 S

350 -

330 -

310 -

290

270 -

250 +

Increased costs and recoveries due to changes in the nature of projects being worked on by the teams
Further increases driven by consultancy and software systems and network portfolio support.

-

Corporate 2022 reported

2021 reported Telecoms Media Smart Utilities Operations Techrology &
Discontinued Dstribution Networis Transhoregteon
Operaticns

Discantinued operations [l Decreasein EBITDA . Increase in EBITDA
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Chairman’s Introduction

Overview

The Argiva Group has continued to deliver strong performance, despite ongoing global challenges including from
the Covid 19 pandemic, conflict between Russia and Ukraine and associated impacts on the global economy and
inflationary environment.

During this time Argiva has maintained its focus to deliver key strategic priorities with the completion of
Transitional Service Agreements associated with the sale of the Telecoms business in the prior year, completion
of the 700 MHz Clearance programme, delivery of our systems transformation programme and embedding our
new business structure.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all of our people for their continued dedication and hard work in
the provision of our services.

Change in Chief Executive Officer

On 1 June 2022, Shuja Khan was appointed as Argiva’s Chief Executive Officer. Shuja joined Argiva in January
2020 as Chief Commercial Officer, respensible for our revenue generating activities across all business areas
including strategy, customer experience and regulatory affairs. In this role, he played an integral part in
establishing the new strategic direction for the business with the creation of the Vision 2031 strategic agenda,
strengthening relationships with our key customers and product portfolic and evolving the design and
development of our operating model. He brings with him to this new role 20 years of leadership experience in
the technology, media and communications sector. Prior to joining Argiva he was Chief Commercial Officer for
Cable & Wireless and has also held a number of leadership positions at both Virgin Media and Liberty Global
Europe.

Shuja succeeds Paul Donovan who has been CEQ since April 2020. During his tenure, Paul has had a significant
impact on the business overseeing the shift to the new operating model and evolving our purpose and strategy
for a sustainable future. | would like to thank him for his leadership, foresight and dedication. On stepping down
from this role, Paul has returned as a Non-Executive Director on the Board of Directars for the Group.

Change in Shareholder

InJune 2022 we announced that Digital 9 Infrastructure has agreed to purchase Canada Pension Plan Investment
Board’s (CPPIB) entire 48% stake in Arqiva. Digital 9 Infrastructure is a dedicated infrastructure investor,
headquartered in the UK and with significant experience in the infrastructure industry. We anticipate that the
deal will be completed later in this calendar year. At that point the representatives from CPPIB appeinted to the
Board of Directors will be replaced by representatives from Digital 9 Infrastructure. This will not change the day-
to-day operations of our business. Qur strategy is set and remains to be the focus of our operations.

Business Structure

Argiva is continuing to adapt and change. Following significant restructuring in the previous year the Group has
this year embedded its new integrated functional business model focusing on commercial and operational
growth opportunities and how the business can remain sustainable as we deliver our Vision 2031 strategy.

Arqiva is continuing to look for ways to simplify and evolve its processes in order to support our evolving markets
and develop the business sustainably for future growth.
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Outlook

In markets that are ever-changing, with how content is consumed and the opportunities that machine-to-
machine networks bring in enabling utilities companies to meet their sustainability targets, this is an important
time for Argiva. As a business we look to build on the strong foundations that we have set and embark on a new
period of growth whilst also simplifying our operations.

Mike Parton
Chairman

September 2022
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Chief Executive’s Statement

I am delighted to have taken on the role of CEQ at this time. Argiva is at a pivotal point, part way through a
strategic transformation which will put the business on a firm foundation creating greater agility to respond to
and benefit from market changes. The last 12 months has already demonstrated the business’ strength and
resilience despite tough market conditions. It is a great time to lead a business that has strong fundamentals, as
well as an exciting future with new product innovation and growth opportunities. My focus in the coming years
is to pursue our long-term strategic ambition, strengthen our culture and ensure Argiva continues on its journey
to be a great place to work.

Strategy

Last year, we launched Vision 2031, a blueprint for our long-term strategic direction. This focuses on four key
strategic ambitions which will ensure the business will deliver on sustained profitability growth through both
market and product diversification. The execution of this is enabled by the strengthening of our culture;
engaging and empowering our people; using technology to transition to a more data-orientated company;
investing in compelling products and building partnership to access new and growing markets.

More information gn our strategy can be found on page 19.

Embedding our Operating Model

This has been the first full year of our new operating model. We have moved away from the traditional product-
based business units and adopted a functional model to best serve our customers. By aligning the commercial
operations to our eare market facing segments of Media and Broadcast and Smart Utilities Networks, and then
centralising our product, technology and operational capabilities we can be more nimble as markets and
customer needs change. It alsoc means we can more efficiently invest in technology and multi-skill our people
across the enterprise including support functions.

In 2018, we initiated a four-year programme of digital transformation which encompassed replacement of our
core finance and HR, service operations, asset management and data management systems. The benefits were
clear to see when the majority of our people switched to working remotely in response to the COVID-19
lockdowns and still maintained the high operational performance levels required. Moving forward we are
establishing three new roles to the Executive Committee; ‘Chief Simplification Officer’ responsible for harnessing
the value of our transformation investment, establishing processes across the new operating model and
overseeing all change and programme delivery activities; and two new Executive Director roles who will lead
market growth and commercial engagement for Media and Broadcast and Smart Utilities Networks respectively.

2022 Performance

2022 has seen us face many challenges across the business. Coming cut of repeated COVID-19 lockdowns,
changing market landscapes, economic uncertainty and the prospect of the highest inflation in more than a
generation. But we also faced ane of the most challenging events in our history with the fire at Bilsdale.

Total revenue for the business decreased by 3.6%. Qur TV and radio broadcast products have tontinued to
remain strong and resilient along with increases across our Utilities products as we ramp up our water contracts,
We have however seen revenues reduced from the one-off 700 Mhz programme now largely delivered and
completion of the Transitional Service Agreements relating to the sale of the Telecoms business to Cellnex. We
also continue to see the impact of pricing pressures across our DTT and Managed Networks product areas. Tight
cost control has mitigated this resulting in EBITDA growth of 1.9%.

Bilsdale

On 10 August 2021, a fire broke out at our Bilsdale transmitter mast. An estimated 80% of the ¢.600,000
households in the area had some reliance on the TV and radio services originating from that mast. This event
had a large impact on the local community and highlighted the importance of terrestrial services when they are
unexpectedly taken away. Supporting the community and returning coverages has been a key priority for us
since then. Qur service recovery plans and procedures were immediately enacted and to date more than 99%

12
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of impacted households have had their TV coverage restored using alternative and temporary masts. Alongside
this we also provided substantial support te those affected which included a call centre, funding for alternative
means of TV reception, in-home engineer support and working with local charitable organisations with targeted
help for the most vulnerable.

Through the year we concurrently worked on the restoration of the permanent mast which is a substantial
endeavour given access challenges with the location being more than 1,000 feet above sea level on the North
York Moors. The tower, when constructed, wili be 9™ tallest structure in the UK. Our focus is on rebuilding this
as guickly as possible but with the safety of everyone involved being of paramount importance.

As previously reported, our insurers have concluded their investigations. Precise findings have not been shared
and we are unable to comment in detail on these findings while the claims process is ongoing.

Sustainability

Growing our business but at the same time caring about our environment and society are not conflicting goals
for us. However, this requires a concerted effort with clear goals. We are in the early part of this journey and to
this end we have launched our sustainability roadmap. These goals will drive how we operate as well as how we
can also support cur customers to fulfil their ambitions in this area. We aim to:

1. Become a Net Zero Organisation by 2040, with an interim target of reaching net zero across our
Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions by 2031

2. Positively enhance the environments we operate in

3. Optimise the use of natural resources wherever possible

More information on our sustainability can be found on page 21.

industry Outiook

in June 2022 we launched a brand-new campaign: Broadcast 2040+, This was based on fresh research from Ipsos
which shawed compelling support far broadcast services across Great Britain, 90% of people wanting to see
continued political support for Digital Terrestrial TV and broadcast radio. This important campaign endeavours
to emphasise the criticality of terrestrial TV and radio to our societies. For all the new ways of watching content
like streaming, broadcast TV and radio remain the backbone for many - providing universal access to high quality
content without the need for a superfast broadband connection or monthly subscription cost. This has never
been more important given the cost-of-living challenges that many will be facing in the coming years.

Arqiva is launching the Broadcast 2040+ campaign in coalition with organisations including Age UK, Silver Voices,
the Rural Services Networks and the Voice of the Listener and Viewer with the aim of engaging with decision
makers, including Government, Ofcom and other key stakehoiders across the media sector to secure a
commitment from Government that DTT and broadcast radio will be safeguarded to 2040 and beyond.

In the coming year, growth and simplification will be at the forefront of our priorities. Within an ever-shifting
technelogy landscape we must continue to deliver seamless connectivity in our core services whilst developing
new products to build on our networks and our reputation for excellent service. We are working with our
customers and continue to evolve our understanding of their requirements as their market changes and they
face new challenges. | am confident that we have set a compelling platform to develop a sustainable future for
Argiva.

Shuja Khan
Chief Executive Officer
September 2022

13
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Business Overview

Enabling a switched-on world to flow
Who we are

At the heart of Media and Broadcast and Smart Utilities Networks in the UK and abroad, Argiva provides critical
data, network, and communications services.

What we do

Argiva works in partnership with our customers, in the UK and around the world, building and operating the
complex ecosystems and infrastructures through which data and content can move effectively, securely and
sustainably at scale — whether that’s through broadcasting and transmission services, or smart networks for
energy and water.

Argiva is the only national provider of terrestrial televisicn and radio broadcasting and provides machine-to-
machine connectivity for smart metering within the utilities sector. Argiva has invested significantly allowing it
to develop its communications infrastructure and technology as markets evolve.

Argiva earns network access and transmission service revenues from its customers, as well as fees for
engineering services and new projects. Argiva’s services tend to be mission-critical for its customers, as well as
providing the network coverage necessary for the fulfiiment of the universal service obligations ('USOs’) for
terrestrial broadcast customers as set out in their operating licences from the UK government.

Whilst we have a small overseas presence, Argiva’s assets, operations and markets are predominantly within
the UK and our business is driven from this region; therefore, we have minimal exposure to international markets
and foreign exchange.

Arqgiva has invested significantly into our capital infrastructure and has £1.3bn of property, plant, and equipment
at 30 June 2022. We are financed through a mixture of equity and long-term debt, with an average maturity
debt profile of over 4 years. The Group's senior debt has an investment grade (BBB+) rating from Standard and
Poor’s and BBB from Fitch. The Group’s junior debt has a rating of B- from Fitch and B1 from Moody's.

Attractive UK communications infrastructure market
DTT {Freeview) is the most popular TV platform in the UK covering 98.5% of the population

Smart networks deliver around 50 million data points every day

A market leader
Sole provider of terrestrial television network access (Freeview)

Owner of 2 of the 3 national commercial multiplexes

Shareholder in, and operator for both commercial national DAB radic multiplexes and it is the service
provider for the BBC national DAB radio multiplex

High barriers to entry
Owner of critical national UK infrastructure that enables Public Service Broadcasters [PSB's) to meet their
government mandated universal coverage obligations

Significant investment would be required to replicate the infrastructure, including planning permissions to
erect new masts

Long established relationships with its customers spanning more than 80 years

14
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Since 1922, Argiva has been enabling a switched-on world to fiow.
We delivered the world’s first TV broadcast for the BBC from the tower at London’s Alexandra Palace in 1936,

We also developed satellite TV in the 1970’s, Teletext, and launched the UK's national DAB radio and digital
television networks in the 2000s.

There’'s no resting on our laurels though. We were the first company in Europe to tria! 5G fixed wireless access
technology in 2017, and we are currently working with our broadcast partners to develop new ways to reach
their viewers and listeners via the Cloud.

We have also moved into new sectors, like Utilities. We won our first contract to deliver gas and electricity
metering in the north of England and Scotland in 2013, and followed that in 2015 with a partnership with Thames
Water to set up and run the world’s largest smart water metering network. More recently we have launched
our dual band communications device for further improved connection capabilities for gas and electricity
metering and our smart water metering network has now connected more than 1 million meters in total.

The Group's technology and infrastructure, combined with our history and experience, enable us to work with
everyane from major broadcasters (such as the BBC, ITV, Sky, Turner and Canal+) to independent radio groups
and utility companies (such as Thames Water and Anglian Water] to the Data Communications Company (DCC}.

In 2022 we launched Argade, a cloud-based channel and live event interchange as well as our Hybrid

Connectivity service, a suite of managed connectivity solutions designed to support the network monitoring and
control needs of utility companies.

15
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Business model

In today’s ever-evolving world, the demand for information, content and entertainment is greater than ever.
We all want to be connected 24/7. This is the challenge that our media and broadcast customers are facing,
delivering more content on more devices than ever before.

At Argiva we are enablers, applying our knowledge and expertise to technologies in order to unlock new
opportunities for our customers. We work in partnership, building and operating the infrastructure through
which data and content can flow effectively, securely, and sustainably.

Argiva seeks to maximise shareholder value by investing in our considerable site portfolio to not just maintain
reliability, but also to maximise its potential. Our infrastructure and commercial operations cover the following
key sectors:

- Media and Broadcast
- Smart Utilities Networks

COMMERCIAL

Our commercial function incorporates our customer facing business deriving revenues from a variety of products
across the Media and Broadcast and Utilities industries.

Media and Broadcast
The UKs only supplier of national terrestrial television and radio broadcasting services
Qur DTT network allows more than 24 million households a means to access TV

Our radio infrastructure supports a range of services across the UK with over 300 stations on DAB and over 460
stations across FM, AM, and MW

MMedia and Broadcast services remain incredibly important for viewers and listeners in the UK. Even as viewing
habits change, Ofcom reports 85% of people continue to watch broadcast content every week. 9 out of 10 UK
adults listen to over 20 hours of radio each week.

In an intensely competitive world, large media companies are increasingly focused on monetising content that
is distributed multi-market, multi-platform and multi-device. This means increased complexity in reaching their
audiences, whilst also trying to reduce costs. To achieve a truly global reach, a shift of focus is needed to IP-
based delivery through the cloud and we are well positioned as the UK media hub to do this.

Mediz and Broadcast at Argiva

From the earliest days of radio and television, through the birth of digital broadcasting to the emergence of
video over the internet, Argiva has been at the heart of the industry for nearly 100 years, trusted by broadcast
and media brands across the globe. Now, in today’s ever-evolving world, that experience combines with a
proven portfolic of broadcast infrastructure, end-to-end networks, next generation media processing and
connectivity solutions to help our customers innovate, compete and grow,

The Media and Broadcast infrastructure includes sites for the transmission of terrestrial TV and radio, cperates
the Group’s licensed multiplexes, owns and operates teleports at key locations in the UK, as well as international
terrestrial fibre distribution network, media facilities, leased satellite capacity, cloud based services and delivers
related engineering projects.

The Group utilises a network of 1,150 TV sites to carry Freeview into circa 24 million households every day,
making it the UK’s most popular TV platform. Argiva’s critical national infrastructure provides coverage to 98.5%
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of the UK's population. Within the sector, Argiva holds a regulated position as the sole provider of network
access for terrestrial television broadcasting.

Argiva is a market leader in commercial DTT spectrum, owning the licences for two of the three main national
commercial DTT multiplexes, enabling leading broadcasters such as Sky, UKTV, CBS and Turner to deliver
broadcasting content using our channel capacity.

Additionally, Argiva operates c. 1,450 transmission sites for TV and radio, providing coverage to the circa 90% of
the UK population that listen to the radio. Argiva is a shareholder in, and operator for both commercial national
DAB radio multiplexes and it is the service provider for the BBC national DAB radio multiplex,

The Group is also the UK’s leading independent owner and operator of teleports and media management
facilities, serving many of the world's largest multi-channel broadcast as well as providing data connectivity to
the utilities and natural resources sectors.

Argiva manages the distribution of more than 1,100 international TV channels for high profile customers
including Al Jazeera, Discovery, BT Sport, Sky, NBCU, Sony and Turner including coverage of high-profile sporting
events. Argiva’s operation of reliable and secure VSAT (Very Small Aperture Terminal} communications networks
across the globe utilises a world class satellite and fibre network, providing real-time critical communications to
remote locations. Argiva uses our expertise and experience to enable us to keep pace with rapidly changing
dynamics and technology advancements, thereby underpinning the longevity and success of the product base.
Arqiva’s satellite network delivers content to the UK's major Direct-to-Home {DTH) platforms including Sky and
Freesat as well as delivering Video-on-Demand (VoD) services for global media distribution to both Apple TV and
Amazon Prime. We have also engaged with the Low Earth Orbit satellite sector providing earth station gateway
services.

Media and Broadcast contributes significant and stable cash flows to the Group with a long-term contracted,
substantially RPI-linked order book of £2.8bn {2021: £2.9bn represented®] which includes major contracts
running as far as 2035.

Smart Utilities Networks
Exclusive metering connectivity provider to electricity and gas companies in the North of England and Scotland

Provider of metering monitoring systems to help reduce water wastage and supporting on sustainability

Ambitious environmental and sustainability agendas from regulators are driving change across utility sectors,
providing huge opportunities for growth. Today less than 10% of UK premises have a smart water meter, and
less than 30% have a smart energy meter. With 20% of water lost through leaks, our water customers are focused
on reducing them, and eliminating pollution caused by sewer flooding. Smart meters are providing an
opportunity to meet sustainability targets through reducing the UK's overall greenhouse gas emissions, including
up to 0.5% from smart water meters on their own.

Smart Utilities Networks at Argiva

Digital technology means that we can now get a much better handle on how much gas, electricity and water we
all consume. That’s the first step in using less of it, something we all have to do if we’re going to live sustainably
on the planet. Argiva works across the utilities sector to make this happen. Through our efforts, energy and water
grids and meters are getting smarter, meagning more control, and less wastage.

3 Revenue and ERITDA for Group’s site share products arising post the sale of the Telecoms business are now reported for
the Group within the Smart Utilities Networks due to a change in how they are presented internally. Comparative figures for
the prior year including orderbook figures have been represented to reflect this change in reparting.
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For energy and mobility companies, satellite operators, military organisations and telecoms providers, secure
networks are vital when working in locations that are remote or hostile — guaranteeing that communications
always get through. Which is what you get when you use our global satellite, teleport and fibre networks. With
coverage that spans the globe, we build customised end-to-end solutions thot offer 99.99% reliability.

Argiva generates revenues with respect to the build and operation of the smart ‘machine-to-machine’ networks
and other data transmission services applications. With a continuing focus on innovation and market
opportunities, Argiva is embracing the fast-developing machine-to-machine sector, particularly for utilities, for
which we utilise our Flex-net network across our smart metering contracts. The Group has invested in building
machine-to-machine {M2M) networks, which support major energy metering contracts spanning 15 years and
covering more than 10 million premises, and water metering contracts which will cover 3 million homes.

Argiva has invested substantially in infrastructure as a result of these contracts which now result in recurring
cash flows during the long-term operational phases of the network delivery. The utilities business remains a key
part of the Argiva business and is a key strategic priority for growth with potential to become the UKs leading
smart utilities platform. In this area we are supporting our customers in being able to achieve their net zero
carbon sustainability agendas.

Utilities revenues also include site share revenues relating to the utilisation of broadcast sites for
telecornmunications equipment and transitional services provided following the sale of the telecoms business
to Cellnex.

The smart utilities network products has an order book of £0.6bn (2021: £0.8bn restated?), with contracts
running as far as 2050.

OPERATIONS

Responsible for the efficient operation and maintenance of all Arqiva sites, the Operations function provides in-
life support for our media and broadcast, utilities, and internal IT systems to ensure they are delivering to our
customers’ requirements.

Our field engineering services help to deliver corrective maintenance, preventative maintenance and projects
works across our broadcast and utilities transmission systems, antennas, structures and satellite/links
infrastructure. Additionally, the operations function provides management of inventory and logistics, changes,
configuration and sites and structures as well as cyber security, disaster recovery and network operations.

The Operations function is a non-revenue generating area and incurs costs in the provision of these management
and support services.

TECHNOLOGY AND TRANSFORMATION

Our technology and transformation function operates across the business comprising engineering, product
management, product marketing, information security, data and insight and transformation. The Group’s
transformation programme is expected to complete in the 2022 calendar year.

CORPORATE

Corporate functions at Argiva comprise Finance, Procurement, Strategy & Regulatory, Legal and People and
Culture providing support services across the business.

4 Revenue and EBITDA for Group’s site share products arising post the sale of the Telecoms business are now reported for
the Group within the Smart Utilities Networks due to a change in how they are presented internally. Comparative figures
for the prior year including orderbook figures have been represented to reflect this change in reporting. Orderbook is
stated before RP! inflation, the prior year has also been restated to remove £0.4bn of contract RPI indexation incorrectly
included.
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Vision 2031 is our strategic focus. This encompasses four Key strategic ambitions to guide the business to
achieve our purpose. Our priorities in how we aim to achieve these ambitions are set out below:

To be the undisputed leader in UK TV and radio broadcast

- Deliver sustainable TV and Radio broadcast, protecting and focusing on customer and operational
excellence and managing capacity and margins to maximise revenues, ensuring that the value we
bring to society is understood;

- Leverage our scale and the cloud, enabling industry efficiency by supporting our customers to
move to more cost-efficient and increasingly flexible models;

- Expand services and drive renewals delivering greater value by selling across our portfolio of
services, creating fong term partnerships while also developing value-added services in new areas

To transition global media to cloud based solutions

- Scaling IP and cloud-based services; investing in building broadcast quality cloud processing and
extending our footprint in live and events content
- Becoming the go-to choice for our partners in cloud distribution so they can better manage their

global content flows across all formats
- Growing multiplex service, using our infrastructure to provide virtual, cost-effective, and scalable
services to TV cable operators outside of the UK

To be the UK’'s leading smart utilities platform provider

- Leading in connecting UK smart meters, maintaining market leadership, and scaling our
operations to drive and accelerate the roll-out of domestic smart meters

- Broadening our product offering, developing new value-added data-driven services in monitoring
and control, that reduce energy use, water wastage and pollution

- Diversifying through forging partnerships and widening technology choice, to deliver new hybrid
connectivity solutions and real time network monitoring

To be an innovator of scalable solutions for new connectivity sectors

- Working with partners, building new solutions for new and emerging sectors that have growing
and more complex connectivity needs including those that make the most of our infrastructure,
spectrum, and satellite expertise

Progress in 2022

Vision 2031 was launched by the Group in the prior year. Over the course of the last 12 months our focus has
been on transforming the business.

Driving our cultural transformation to build a culture that enables high performance, high engagement,
innovation and agility. In the year we have launched the following cultural goals for the business:

1. Accountability - being accountable for the promises we make

2. One Argiva — working together as one team

3. Curiosity — striving to look at things differently to discover a better way

We have embedded our new integrated organisation and operating model focusing on the functions of the
business of commercial, operations, technology & transformation and corporate. Our model is continuing to

evolve to meet our goals.

Optimisation of our new technology systems has continued with progress on our transformation programme
including new system launches for our digital enterprise platform. Our transformation programme is now
coming to an end as we move on to looking at how we can continue to simplify our processes.
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Sustainability Strategy

As part

of our drive for sustainability, Argiva has this year launched three strategic goals to mitigate our impact

and support our environment and social agenda:

Goal 1: To become a Net Zero Organisation by 2040, with an interim target of reaching net zero

across

Goal 2:

Goal 3:

our Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions by 2031

Transitioning our carbon-based emissions sources to mote sustainabie alternatives e.g. implementing
meore energy efficient transmission equipment and replacing fleet vehicles with sustainable options
such as electric vehicles

Working with our supply chain to help them realise their sustainable ambitions and decarbenise their
operations

To positively enhance the environments we operate in

Laoking at opportunities acrass all aur sites to improve habitats far flora and fauna to thrive and
increase biodiversity

ldentifying how we can reduce demand far electricity through new technologies and insulation of our
buildings

Providing transparency to our customers, allowing them to understand the carbon footprints
associated with our products and services ensuring they can make informed decisions when using our
networks.

To optimise the use of natural resources

Understanding and monitaring our water use and looking at ways to reduce our consumption.
Reducing the water we use will also reduce the energy consumed through processing and treatment
of wastewater.

Understanding what waste we produce and how we can reduce this, including finding efficiencies in
our asset maintenance schedules e.g. reducing the number of times we swap out used consumables
or procuring technologies that can be easily repaired or repurposed at their end of life,

Deveioping water products to assist our water customers with their sustainability agendas and UK
water leakage targets
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Business Update

The Group’s contracted order book value for continuing operations at 30 June 2022 was £3.4bn (2021: £3.7bn}.
A significant proportion of the value of this order book relates to medium to long-term contracts which inctudes
DTT and radio transmission and smart energy and water metering, as well as other infrastructure services. The
Group remaihs focused on growth opportunities in targeted core infrastructure areas.

Media and Broadcast

DTT Multiplexes

During the year Argiva’s DTT mux licences were extended to 2034, securing a stable future for the platform, and
the interim COM7 closed at the end of the trading year as planned. The closure of COM7 has created opportunity
as channels move to the national COMS and 6 inulliplexes included in the sales pipeline for FY23 as we target
full platferm capacity utilisation.

The year saw some challenges for Digital Platforms, with sanctions leading to the early cessation and non-
renewal of the RT channel and Ideal Shopping (IS} being liquidated by its private equity owners. However,
platform utilisation has reached full capacity at 100%, with a new agreement negotiated with ldeal World, who
bought the IS assets, new contracts signed with UKTV for Drama +1, That's TV and launch of a new channel
EarthX. Renewals were also agreed with Narrative, PBS and Gems.

Radio

The Department for Cutture, Media and Sport {DCMS) has passed legislation to renew two National commercial
DAB multiplexes; Digital One [Argiva 100% ownership) and Sound Digital (Argiva has 40% ownership} to
December 2035, This underpins the growing importance of DAB radio and secures a stable future for the
platform over the next decade and beyond.

Argiva completed a successful auction in the last quarter on the SDL national commercial radio multiplex
securing service providers for the last remaining channels on the multiplex.

Analogue re-engineering programs continue and various smaller projects have been signed off in the year for a
number of purposes, distribution changes, smal! scale DAB network access offers, site moves and more. The
indication from government and the market is that FM services will continue into the 2030’s, therefore there is
still movement on the platform and legacy equipment continues to be replaced as we move through renewals.

Direct to Home (DTH)

A key renewal with Narrative (formerly Sony Pictures Television) was secured for over 80% of a single
transponder during the last quarter of the year, protecting future revenues. In June 2022, as planned, Argiva
returned a transponder to Eutelsat to optimise its satellite real estate and better manage the cost of supply vs
market demand representing material cost savings over the next few years. There continues to be a good
pipeline for new channel launches from the international sector with a number in negotiation for launch in the
coming months.

Government {DCMS) updates

in June 2022, Argiva launched the ‘Broadcast 2040+’ campaign alongside a coalition of partners including Age
UK, Silver Vaices, the Rural Services Network, and the Voice of the Listener & Viewer to secure a long-term
commitment from the Government to the future of broadcast services. The campaign provides a channel to
cotlaborate with partners on upcoming policy developments. The campaign is backed by consumer research
from Ipsos into the views of Great Britain on the importance of broadcast services which highlighted the value
placed on DTT and broadcast radio services, with 90% of people wanting to see continued support for these
services.

The Government confirmed that it would pursue the privatisation and sale of Channel 4. Argiva provides a range
of services to Channel 4 including: transmission through the DTT multiplex licence holder D34 (which is 50%
owned by Channel 4); DTH satellite services; and as carriage provider for some of its channels on the Argiva DTT
multiplexes. The long-term contract with D34, that runs into the 2030s, combined with Channel 4’s continued
reliance of the DTT platferm for viewers and advertising income, means that we do not expect Channel 4’s sale
to have any immediate implications for Argiva should the Government pursue this action.
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The Government had also announced its intention to review the licence fee funding model for the BBC. The
Committee has since released its report, which highlighted the ongoing relevance of DTT over at least the next
decade. The Committee did not propose a specific funding model but ruled out the BBC being funded solely
through a subscription model and highlighted alternatives that would be less regressive than the current flat fee
licence approach paid by al! households.

Low Earth Orbit Market

Argiva continues to develop opportunities in the Low Earth Orhit market by establishing connections to multipfe
satellites; the technology can for example provide satellite broadband anywhere in the world. Key players in this
sector are SpaceX, Project Kuiper and UK Government investment in OneWeb plus established satellite
operators such as Telesat and ViaSat. The Group has two customers secured at the reporting date.

700MHz Clearance

The main substantive works on the 700MHz Clearance project completed in August 2020. Final project
completion activities continued until October 2021 with principal site works remaining being the removal of the
temporary mast at Emley Moor.

Smart Utilities Networks

Anglian Water

Following the award of the Anglian Water contract in June 2020, the Group rolled out over 367,000 meters by
30 June 2022 out of the overall 789,000 targeted by 2025 across 24 planning zones including Norwich, Lincoln,
Northampton and Peterborough, among others. Argiva continues to rollout the network for Anglian Water albeit
the pace has slowed due to globa! supply chain constraints which is restricting the number of meters available.

Thames Water

Since April 2015, Argiva has delivered a smart metering network for Thames Water and as at 30 June 2022, over
780,000 meters have been installed, with in excess of 18 million meter readings being delivered per day. It is the
largest smart water metering network in the UK and has high coverage across the Thames Water London region.
Argiva continues to add a number of network sites outside London, which included recently Chiddingfold and
Guildford, with Dartford currently in design for delivery later this calendar year. In December 2021, the contract
was extended far further 10 years to 2031. Argiva continues to rollout the network for Thames Water albeit the
pace has siowed due to global supply chain constraints.

Despite Thames Water initial intent to conduct a full procurement for Thames Valley they have now asked us to
proceed with 11 site installations to enable a deployment of approx. 25,000 meters this year and around 108,000
by 2025, This places us in a strang position for the remainder of the Thames Valley rollout.

Northumbrian Water

Argiva has been selected by Northumbrian Water Group to deliver an initial roll-out of a smart metering network
in Essex, where it operates as Essex & Suffolk Water. This initial contract of 5 years and 11,000 meters has now
been extended to cover over 28,000 meters and for 15 years of service with 2 new sites. The trial will be followed
with a formal procurement process later this year for c. 270,000 meters to allow Northumbrian to meet their
commitments in the current regulatory period.

UK Power Networks

Argiva has commenced the BGAN product rollout for the UK Power Networks for its network monitaring with
over 650 units delivered by 30 June 2022 out of the total orders of 5,000. Further orders are expected later this
calendar year.

Other Smart Water Metering Trials

In the Midlands, Argiva has been participating in a multi-vendor, multi-technology smart water metering
evaluation trial with a major water company. Qver this period, we have again proven the excellent performance
of our technology and managed service. We are extending and expanding the trial for a further 12 months and
1,900 meters, on an exclusive basis, enabling the water company to evaluate fully the benefits and establish a
business case for a future full smart metering roll-out. Orders have been received for the trial extension and
meters have now been deployed.
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We haverecently agreed an approach for a new trial with a southern based water company to assist in evaluating
the data produced by our smart metering sclution and identifying the resulting operational and financial
benefits. This will take the form of a small deployment of circa 400 meters.

Argiva is also participating in an RFI launched by Southern Water in January 2022 for 1.2 million meters. We
expect the next phase to launch in the autumn of 2022.

Smart energy metering rollout

The Group’s smart metering communication network in the North of England and Scotland continues to cover
99.5% of premises. There are currently over 2 million communications hubs operating on the network
representing 20% of the total UK communication hub installations. Whilst there has been an impact to
communications hub deliveries, owing to global component shortages, energy companies do have a level of pre-
existing stock and Argiva continues to work with Smart DCC Ltd {DCC} to mitigate the supply risk. The DCC
conlinues to submit change requests that reflect new industry requirements and Argiva maintains a strong
pipeline. Argiva’s relationship with DCC remains strong and has been formally rated by DCC as “green” over the
past two months.

Adverse energy trading conditions have resulted in a number of energy companies ceasing business with their
customers and obligations being taken up by other suppliers under a pre-existing process operated by Ofgem
for such eventualities. Argiva currently envisages no impact to the smart meter rollout programme now
governed by rollout obligations set by Ofgem.

New proof of concepts

Argiva has engaged with utility customers and industry suppliers as it seeks to expand its presence in the smart
utitities industry. The Hybrid Connectivity Proof of Concept (PoC) with SGN has completed following which they
have launched their ‘Strategic Connectivity’ procurement exercise to which Argiva will formally respond in the
coming weeks.

Qur Leakage as a Service PoC has been well received and we are now engaged in a programme of work with
Thames Water to train and verify their Artificial Intelligence model. Northumbrian Water have shown further
interest and requested a proposal from Argiva for an Analytics Prototype Deployment to augment their current
capability. There are two further water companies that have agreed an initial evaluation period. Finally, our
Sewer Level Manitoring PoC trial has commenced with Anglian Water with 9 sites deployed and initial feedback
citing that performance has far exceeded anything previously seen.

Corporate Update

New CEOQ

On 10 May 2022, Argiva announced that Shuja Khan would replace Paul Donovan as a Chief Executive Officer
from 1 June 2022. Shuja was appointed as Chief Commercial Officer at Argiva in January 2020 and has been
central to the creation of our strategy, Vision 2031, and the development of the current operating model, as
well as evolving and strengthening relationships with our key customers.

Shuja brings more than 20 years of leadership experience in the technology, media and communication sector
and his industry background and demonstrable management and leadership strength will be invaluable for the
next phase of Argiva’s evolution as we concentrate our focus on ensuring Argiva is a long-term sustainable

business providing the best possible partnership to our customers as well as on simplifying our business.

Paul Denovan was appointed to the Board as Non-Executive Director on 1 July 2022,
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Management Changes

In order to take the business forward, three new Executive Committee roles have been created to help the
husiness focus on growth and simpiification. Vivian Leinster has moved from her existing role as Chief Pecple
Officer to become Chief Simplification Officer, while Peter Baker and Chris Alner were appointed as interim
Executive Directors for Smart Utilities Networks and Media & Broadcast respectively. A new Chief People Officer
will be appointed to replace Vivian Leinster,

Bilsdale Tower Fire

Following the fire at our Bilsdale mast site in August 2021, our efforts have been focused on restoring coverage
as quickly as possible, as well as to offer advice and practical support for our most vulnerable viewers through
providing access to a call centre. Argiva has now been able to restore Freeview TV services to around 99% of
impacted households.

Construction of the permanent replacement tower is well under way. It normally takes around two years to
complete such a substantial construction, but we are targeting Spring of 2023,

Argiva has been informed that its insurers have now concluded their investigations. Precise findings have not
been shared and Argiva is unable to comment in detail on these findings while the claims process is ongoing.
Argiva intends to provide a further update as soon as it is permitted to do so.

See page 28 for further information on the financial impacts of thefire.

Sale of telecoms business

Following the sale of the Telecoms business to Cellnex in July 2020, Argiva has been supporting Cellnex’s UX
business via Transitional Services Agreements (TSA} and as planned all TSAs have now completed by the end of
2021, moving into a business as usual relationship under the existing site share arrangements.

Transformation Programme update

Throughout the year the Transformation Programme has delivered releases planned, providing the business
with industry-leading applications and integration across our Site Management Platform (Siterra), Service
Management {ServiceNow), and Financial Management {Oracle ERP) platforms. The programme is final stages
and is expected to complete this autumn. This concluding release brings the entire broadcast operations onto
the transformed platforms, completes all of the integrations across our core systems and opens up new digital
ways to engage with our customers.
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Financial review

Financial Performance

For the year ended 30 June 2022, revenue for the Group was £624.1m, a decrease of 3.6% from £647.2m in the
prior year on a total reported basis. Revenue from continuing operations for the year of £624.1m a decrease of
2.8% year on year from £642.3m in 2021. With increases in core TV and radio products and utilities contracts
the overall decrease year on year reflects natural reduction from projects as well as challenging conditions within
the markets we operate.

(5.5)%

157.8 148.8 6.0%

624.1 642.3 (2.8)%
- 49 (100.0)%

624.1 647.2 {3.6)%

*Revenue and EBITDA for Group's site share products arising post the sale of the Telecoms business are now
reported for the Group within the Smart Utilities Networks due to a change in how they are presented internalty.
Comparative figures for the prior year including revenue of £26.1m and EBITDA of £16.5m have been
represented to reflect this change in reporting.

Further changes to EBITDA have also been made in the year due to the change in the Group’s organisational
structure, moving away from the traditional vertical business units and adopting an integrated functional
operating model to better serve our customers. Consequently, during the current financial year to 30 June 2022,
the financial results of the Group have been reported and presented on a functional basis. This includes the
Commercial revenue generating function of the business which includes the customer facing segments of Media
and Broadcast and Smart Utilities Networks, supported by Operations including maintenance and estates
management, Technology and Transformation and Corporate including the Group’s finance, legal and people
and culture services. This reporting structure aligns to how the Group reports internally. The segmental EBITDA
for the Group for the prior year has been represented to align to this new structure presentation.

Media and Broadcast

Total Media and Broadcast revenue has decreased 5.5% year on year to £466.3m from £493.5m (represented).
Our core broadcast TV and radio distribution products have remained strong and stable during the year with
inflationary increases due to RPI indexation on these long-term contracts.

These increases have however been offset by the expected natural reduction in revenue from the 700MHz
Clearance programme with final activities en this multi-year engineering programme completed in the year.
Further decreases have arisen due to the full year impact of terminations and pricing pressures from the prior
year across the Group’s UK DTH, managed media services and multiplex products. Following new channel
launches towards the end of the prior year, utilisation has remained strong on the Group's main (DVB-T)
multiplexes and was 97% at 30 June 2022.

A further £7.6m (£nil) of exceptional revenue has been deducted to give total revenue in the period of £624.1m
{2021: £647.2m) in respect of service credits in relation to the Bilsdale fire. See note 7 of the financial statements
for further information.
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Smart Utilities Networks

Revenue from Smart Utilities Networks has increased from £148.8m (represented) to £157.8m, a 6.0% increase
year on year. This increase is due to the continued ramp up of revenues from water metering contracts in
particular driven by device sales despite supply chain issues. There have been further increases to recurring
revenues as a result of incremental smart energy metering change requests.

Smart revenue also includes site share revenues relating to the utilisation of broadcast sites for
telecommunications equipment and transitional services provided following the sale of the telecoms business
to Cellnex. Revenue in this area have decreased following the completion of TSAs.

Gross profit was £421.3m, representing an increase of 1.5% from £415.1m in the prior year. Gross profit from
continuing operations increased by 2.2% year on year from £412.2m to £421.3m. Whilst revenue has decreased
due to the reasons outlined above with corresponding decreases in related costs, margins have improved year
on year as a result of further cost savings achieved by the Group. This includes satellite capacity savings and a
reduction in hillable labour costs due to headcount.

Other operating expenses from the total Group were £89.6m, up 11.7% from £80.2m in the prior year
(continuing operations 2022: £89.6n; 2021: £79.8mj. Despite lower staff costs due ta lower headcount, the
increase in operating expenses has been driven by increases in areas such as IT licences and maintenance due
to new systems established as part of the Group's digital transformation, as well as professional and consultancy
costs as the Group pursues its simplification journey.

EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure and refers to ‘earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation’ and
includes add-backs for certain items charged to operating profit that are not considered to reflect the underlying
performance of the business. A reconciliation of EBITDA to operating profit is presented on page 29.

2.5%

67.2 57.4 17.1%
4103 392.1 4.6%
(25.3) (21.4) (18.2)%
(28.5) (24.4) (16.8)%
{15.1) (13.9} (8.6)%
341.4 332.4 2.7%

- 25 (100.0}%
341.4 334.9 1.9%

Total EBITDA was £341.4m, a 1.9% increase from the prior year of £334.9m and a 2.7% increase from continuing
operations. Despite the decreases in revenue, EBITDA has increased due to changes in product mix and cost
savings achieved.

Within the Media and Broadcast business, EBITDA has decreased by 2.5%, from £334.7m (represented) to
£343.1m. Despite the decrease in revenue driven by the completion of the 700MHz clearance programme and
pricing pressure on contract renewals, the Media and Broadcast products have benefitted from cost reductions
leading to EBITDA increasing for the year. The cost savings include decreases in staff costs driven by a reduction
in headcount as well as savings gained on satellite capacity costs.
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EBITDA for the Group’s Smart Utilities Networks business has increased from £57.4m {represented)} to £67.2m,
an increase of 17.1%. The increase is predominantly driven by the increases in revenue for both the ramp up of
water metering contracts and incremental change requests an energy metering cantracts. The rmargin for Smart
Utilities is however impacted due to the increase in revenues from device sales which are a relatively lower
margin product.

The new operational functional segment is a non-revenue generating segment responsible for the efficient
operations and maintenance of all Argiva services including field engineers, disaster recovery and network
operations. EBITDA for the operations segment has decreased 18.2% due to an increase in costs from £21.4m to
£25.3m. The increase is predominantly due to staff costs and recoveries due to changes in the nature of projects
being worked on by the team as well as insurance costs that were included in the corporate segment in the
comparative year.

EBITDA for the non-revenue generating Technology and Transformation function for the year was a loss of
£28.5m, an increase in cost of 16.8% from a loss of £24.4m in the prior year. The increase in cost is mainly due
to managed service and software costs related to the Group’s digital enterprise platforms as we move to more
cloud operated systems and consultancy project costs.

Corporate EBITDA represents costs for the support functions such as finance, strategy & regulatory, legal and
HR services. EBITDA for this function has increased cost 8.6% from a loss of £13.9m to £15.1m year on year.

Depreciation has decreased by £10.1m total (2022: £158.4m; 2021: £168.5m). Amortisation has increased by
£3.5m in total (2022: £13.2m; 2021: £9.7m). The collective decrease of depreciation and amortisation of 3.7%
is driven by a reduction in accelerated depreciation from the prior year pericd, particularly in connection with
assets replaced under the 700MHz clearance programme due to the lower activity following the completion of
the programme. The decrease has been partially offset by an increase in accelerated amaortisation on software
assets that have been disposed of in the year as the Group’s transformation programme progresses.

Exceptional operating expenses charged to operating profit were £19.6m, decreased from £25.6m in 2021.
Exceptional costs in the current year predominantly relate to restoration costs arising from the Bilsdale fire,
restructuring and severance costs as the Group embeds the changes in the organisational design and structure
of the business as well as corporate finance costs from strategic shareholder activities. Exceptional operating
expenses are excluded from EBITDA. A reconciliation of EBITDA to operating profit is presented on page 29.

The restoration costs of £10.0m incurred within exceptional operating expenses {2021: £nil) were associated
with the Bilsdale transmitter following a fire which broke out on 10 August 2021. Engineers have been working
on a recovery plan to reinstate services present on the site. The recovery plan included service recovery with
works completed for the improvement of TV coverage from other local not-spot sites, as well as the erection of
a temporary mast at the Bilsdale site. To date around 99% of impacted households have been returned to
coverage. Further works to complete the enduring selution and re-build is ongoing with works started on the
build of a new permanent mast. Management are still assessing the financial impact of the incident and the
assets impacted. Costs recognised are those which have been incurred to date and can be reliably measured,
and aiso include £7.6m of service credits deducted from revenue during the period. See note 7 to the financial
statements for further disclosure on the full financial impacts incurred.

An exceptional loss on disposal assets has also been recognised in the income statement for £9.5m (2021: £nil}.
This loss relates to assets damaged due to the fire at the Bilsdale site that have been disposed of in the year.

Management are still assessing the financial impact of the incident and the assets damaged by the fire, and have
engaged with the Group’s insurers. Whilst the insurers have concluded their investigations, the precise findings
have not been publicly shared. At this stage we cannot comment on the findings while the claims process is
ongoing. A stage payment of £5.0m was received from the insurers in June 2022 which has been recognised as
exceptional other income in the income statement.

Operating profit has increased 2.0% {2022: £143.2m; 2021: £140.4m) across the Group and 3.4% in relation to
continuing operations (2022: £143.2m; 2021: £138.5m). Despite the decrease in revenues and exceptional costs
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incurred as a result of the Bilsdale file, the increase in operating profit has been achieved by the cost savings
across the business driven by headcount and satellite transponder savings as well as the reduction in
depreciation as capital programmes progress.

A reconciliation between operating profit and EBITDA is presented below:

Operating profit 143.2 1404
Exceptional items charged to operating profit 19.6 25.6
Exceptional revenue 7.6 -
Depreciation 158.4 168.5
Amortisation 13.2 9.7
mpairment 0.5 -
Exceptional loss on disposal of fixed assets 9.5 -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 21 -
Other Income (7.7} (9.3)
Exceptional Other Income {5.0)

Total EBITDA 3414 334.9
EBITDA from discontinued operations - 2.5
EBITDA fram continuing operations 341.4 332.4

Finance costs (net of finance income) were £729.1m, an increase of 10.4% from £660.4m in 2021. This increase
is predominantily driven by the compounding effect of interest of the outstanding shareholder loan note
principal and accrued interest. This has been partially offset by a decrease in bank and other loan interest due
to reduced principal amounts outstanding following repayments made on amortising debt instruments.

Other gains and losses for the year included £76.1m of losses (2021; £75.4m loss). Of this figure, £76,1m (2021:
£11.1m loss) as a result of fair value movements of interest rate and index-linked swaps, principally attributahle
to changes in forward market rates and credit spreads. In the prior year, other gains and losses also recognised
the £55.9m of break costs incurred attributable to the repayment of debt and related re-couponing of interest
rate hedging derivatives and £7.6m exceptional loss on exit of swaps.

A one-off exceptional gain from prefit on disposal of £1,038.3m was recognised in the prior year related to the
disposal of the Group’s Telecoms business in July 2020.

Loss before tax for the Group was £662.0m, a decrease from a profit of £442.9m in the prior year. From
continuing operations, the loss before tax has increased from £597.2m in 2021 to £662.0m in the current year.
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The foss before tax is reported after non-cash charges of £898.6m (2021: £756.9m} as shown below:

(Loss) / profit before tax (662.0) 442.9
Depreciation 158.4 168.5
Amortisation 13.2 9.7
Impairment 0.5 -
Exceptional loss on disposal of fixed assets 9.5 -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 2.1 -
Accrued interest on shareholder loan notes 602.7 529.8
Other non-cash financing costs® 36.1 370
Foreign exchange revaluations on financing - 0.8
Fair value movements on derivative financial instruments 76.1 11.1
Total non-cash charges 898.6 756.9
Adjusted profit before tax and non-cash charges 236.6 1,199.8

(including the disposal of the Telecoms business of 2022: £nil; 2021: £1,038.3m)
Cash Flow

Net cash inflow from operating activities was £331.3m, a 16.9% decrease from £398.7m in 2021. Despite
operating profit increasing year on year, the decrease is driven by the movement in working capital. Working
capital inflows have decreased due to the recognition of one-off deferred income on additional contract
liabilities in the prior year not repeated following the sale of the Telecoms business. Other working capital
decreases are due to the utilisation and unwind of deferred income (decreasing contract liabilities) and timing
of payments.

Capital expenditure on the purchase of tangible and intangible assets has increased. There has been decreased
expenditure on significant capital projects such as the 700MHz Clearance programme, IT refresh project for the
smart utilities and the Groups transformation programme as these projects wind down to completion.
Expenditure is also impacted by the timing of cash payments made on the settlement of capital expenditure
accruals balances. This reduction has been offset by increases in maintenance on networks as well as capital
expenditure incurred in relation to works on the Bilsdale transmitter site including the erection of temporary
masts and site improvements following the fire in August 2021.

Net cash inflow from operating activities h 331.3 398.7
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets (88.7) (86.1)
Receipt of insurance stage payment 50 -

Net capital expenditure and financial investment (83.7) (86.1)
Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment activities 247.6 312.6

Cash Conversion as a % of EBITDA®
Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment 72.5% 93.3%

> Includes amaortisation of debt issues costs, unwinding of discount on provisions, imputed interest and interest on lease
liabilities

& Cash conversion as a % of EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure referring to the calculation of operating cash flow after capital
and financial investment activities as a percentage of EBITDA.
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Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment activities is a non-GAAP measure and refers to net
cash flows from operating activities less cash flows from investing activities per the cash flow statement
excluding intertest received. See page 30 for a reconciliation to cash inflow from operating activities.

Qperating cash flow after capital and financial investment activities was £247.6m, a decrease of 20.8% from
£312.6m in the prior year. This decrease has been principally driven by the working capital movements partially
offset by the improvement in operating profit driven by cost savings in the business and increase in capital
expenditure explained above. Cash conversion levels for the Group remain strong although decreased due to
movements in working capital.

Whilst overall financing cash outflows have reduced year on year (2022: £240.7m outflow; 2021: £1,999.6m
outflow) owing to the repayment of borrowings and exit of swap arrangements and related costs incurred in the
prior year not repeated, cash outfiows for the current year have been impacted by the high inflation levels
impacting the accretion payment made on our inflation-linked swaps.

The total cash flow for the year was a £7.7m inflow {2021: £133.4m inflow). This decrease is owing to the one-
off disposal proceeds from the Telecoms business sale received in the prior year and subsequent repayment of
borrowings and exit of swap arrangements not repeated as well as the changes in operating cash flows explained
above.

Financial Position

Net liabilities were £4,224.5m, representing an increase of 17.5% from £3,594.7m (restated) in the prior year,
The net liability position is primarily driven by the capital structure reflecting the shareholder loan notes,
borrowings, lease liabilities and derivative financial instruments held. The increase in liabilities for the year is
driven by the financing costs for the Group. Our assessment of going concern is set out on page 32.

Financing

The Group established our Whole Business Securitisation {"WBS’) structure in February 2013, and since then we
have continued to refinance elements of our debt structure further extending our maturity profile.

Standard and Poor’s and Fitch reconfirmed their rating of Arqiva senior debt at BBB+ and BBB respectively, and
Fitch and Moody's continues to rate the junior rating at B-/B1 respectively.

At 30 June 2022 the Group's debt finance’ comprised:

<1year 1-2years 2-5 years >5 years Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Facilities drawn 34.0 - - 23.0 57.0
Finance lease obligations 18.8 16.2 27.9 22.7 85.6
Senior term debt - 262.0 - - 262.0
Senior bonds and notes 50.4 453 197.8 4139 707.4
Junior bonds - 625.0 - - 625.0
Shareholder loan notes - - 2,148.1 - 2,148.1
Total 103.2 948.5 2,373.8 459.6 3,885.1

Included within the above is £3,302.6m of fixed rate debt and £582.5m of floating rate debt. All debt held at 30
June 2022 is sterling denominated, The Group holds interest rate swaps (including inflation-linked interest rate
swaps) to hedge our interest rate exposures. This hedging strategy is employed to ensure the certainty of future
interest cash flows. The Group does not apply hedge accounting to these swap arrangements.

7 Excluding unamortised debt issue costs and accrued interest
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The Group continues to comply with all financial covenant requirements including the following historic
covenant ratio requirements at the senior financing level:

R

Liquidity

To ensure we have sufficient available funds for working capital requirements and planned growth the Group
maintains cash reserves and access to undrawn committed facilities to cover forecast requirements. At 30 June
2022 the Group had a cash balance of £251.2m (2021: £243.5m). The Group carefully manages the credit risk on
liquid funds and derivative financial instruments with balances currently spread across a range of major financial
institutions, which have satisfactory credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies. The levels of
credit risk are monitored through the Group’s on-going risk management processes, which include a regular
review of counterparty credit ratings. Risk in this area is limited further by setting a maximum level and term for
deposits with any single counterparty.

S S L

Post year end on 19 August 2022, the Group signed a commitment for a £450m term facility and a £50m Working
Capital Facility both with an expected maturity date of 2028. These facilities are floating rate in nature with a
margin over SONIA. Argiva Broadcast Intermediate Limited (a subsidiary of the Group) is the borrower of this
arrangement. The proceeds of this facility when drawn will be used to redeem the Groups outstanding £625m
Junior bonds.

Going Concern

The Group meets our day-to-day working capital and financing requirements through the net cash generated
from our operations. The Group performs a review of going concern through a review of forecasting including
cash flow forecasts and considering the requirements of capital expenditure and debt repayments and including
any severe but plausible scenarios. The Group has sufficient financial resources which, together with internally
generated cash flows, wilt continue to provide sufficient sources of liquidity to fund our current operations,
including our contractual and commercial commitments both in terms of capital programmes and financing as
they fall due. This is further supported by the new debt facilities established post year end, see note 31 for
further information. For this reason, the Directors are confident that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing this financial infermation.

8 ‘Cash flow' as defined under the Group’s financing commaon terms agreement, i.e. this is not a GAAP
measure.
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Key Performance Indicators

The Group uses a combination of financial and non-financial key performance indicators (‘KPIs’) to measure

against our strategic ambitions.

See page 19 for further information on our strategic ambitions:

Financial KPis (cur 2019 and 2020 results include material values from our disposed Telecoms business)

Revenue

£m

500 600 700 500 903

w2022 w2021 2020 2019

Definition — Revenue is presented as per the financiaf stotements,
and in gccordance with [FRS 15

Revenue has decreased 3.6% from the prior year for total revenue
(2022: £624.1m; 2021: £647.2m) and 2.8% on a continuing
operations basis (2022: £624.1m; 2021: £642.3m). Revenues on our
core TV and radio distribution have remained strong due to RP|-
indexation on the contracts as weil as increase across our utilities
contracts due to the ramp up of activity water metering contracts
including strong device sales and incremental change requests on
energy metering. These increases have however been offset by the
natural reduction of activity on the 700MHz programmes with
activity now completed and end of TSA agreements as well as
market challenges with the run rate of lower fee renewals from the
prior year across our OTT platform and managed media services,

EBITDA

£

100 300 500

w2022 = 2021 2020 2019

Definition ~ EBITDA is o non-GAAP measure ond refers to ‘eornings
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation’ and includes
ada-backs for certain items charged ta operating profit that do not
reflect the underlying business performance. See page 29 for its
reconciliation to operating profit.

Total EBITDA has increased 1.9% and 2.7% from continuing
operations (2022: £341.4m; 2021: £332.4m). Despite the decrease
in revenue, this has baen offset by cost savings that have benefitted
total EBITDA for the Group. These include satellite capacity cost
savings as well as a reduction in staff costs across the Group due to
lower headcount for the year.

Operating cash flow after capital and
financial investment

fm

100.0 230.0 300.0 430.0 500.0

w2022 w2021 2020 2013

Definition — Operating cash flow after capital investment activities
represents the cosh generated after spending required to mointain
or expand its asset hase. This is calculated as the net cash flow from
operations minus the net cash flow from copital expenditure and
financial investment. See page 30 for its reconciliation to net cash
flow from gperations.

Cash generated has decreased 20.8% from £312.6m to £247.6m.
This has predominantly been driven by the movement in working
capital due to lower working capital inflows following the
recognition of one-cff contract hiabilities in the prior year following
the sale of the Telecoms business not repeated. Capital expenditure
has remained largely flat year on year due to the reductions in
major capital programmes such as 700MHz clearance and the
Groups transformation programme as these programmes complete
offset by an increase in maintenance on networks and the costs
incurred on the capital restoration on the Bilsdale transmitter site.
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Non-financial KPls

Broadcast - Network availability Definition — Argiva strives to provide consistently high service levels and
ook to manage and monitor the total annual level of network availability
across both TV and radio infrastructure as a percentoge across all

Availabllity multiplexes

Result — Through careful management Argiva has consistently been able
to achieve excellent levels of network availability. The drop experienced
S e e Vv - - earlier in the year is as a result of outages due to the Bilsdale transmitter

Barssine fire.
38 385n,

Y

Strategic ambition targeted - to be undisputed leader in UK TV and radio
broadcast distribution

Utilities

The Smart metering M2M contract has continued to achieve 99.5% network coverage in the North of England and
Scotland.

Rollout of water metering on contracts won with Anglian Water, Thames Water and Northumbrian Water. Other smart
water metering trials are in progress

Strategic ambition targeted- To be the UK’s leading smart utifities platform provider

New sectors

We are engaged in the Low Earth Orbit satellite sector due to contract wins in the prior year.
Product launches - In 2022 we launched Argade, a cloud-based channel and live event interchange as well as cur Hybrid
Connectivity service, a suite of managed connectivity solutions designed to support the network monitoring and control

needs of utility companies.

Strategic ambition ~ Innovator of scalable solutions for high-connectivity sectars

Customers Premium customers temperature check for the sentiment of our
Premium customers temperature top 27 Premium Customers in June has 20 of our customersin a
check good position at Green.
20

We have six customers classified as Amber. Key issues in June relate
to ease of doing business, service reliability and several problems
that have been ongoing for a prolonged period.

One customer continues in Hypercare with good progress being
made on addressing their open issues but a continued need to have
Paesoo - - ¢ Rezfating Mypercare enhanced measures to ringfence and prioritise all activity to restore
trust in Argiva and maximise our chances of winning new business.

Peaple
Employee engagemen[ Qur engagement score has increased to 66 in May 2022 (+1 from
Jan 2022) and +8 from October 2021.

Argiva is now five points off the UK benchmark engagement score
of 71.

Response rate in May 2022 was 75% (-1% from lan 2022).
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Corporate Responsibility

Doing business the right way and sustainably is vital to Argiva. t’s as important as what we achieve.

Argiva endeavours to conduct its business in a way that benefits all our stakeholders including customers,
suppliers, employees, shareholders and communities in which we operate as well as creating a sustainable
future for the business

Our ethics, values and behaviours are weaved through every aspect of what we do.

Our cuiture is also key to the success of our strategy with our 3 culture goals driving how we serve our customers
and creating a great place to work. These goals include

1. Accountability - being accountable for the promises we make
2. One Argiva — working together as one team
3. Curiosity — striving to look at things different to discover a better way

Sustainability

Qur sustainability principles are embedded into our key processes to support our goals and ensure that we are
able to operate and grow our business sustainably.

Environment
Fnergy

To become a Net Zero Organisation by 2040, with an interim target of reqching net zero across our scope 1 and
2 emissions by 2031,

Given the nature of the Group’s activities, energy consumption is a key area of interest both economically and
environmentally. Our energy policy reflects the company’s commitments to improving energy efficiency by:

Reducing energy consumption
- Investing in energy efficient technology; and
- Manitoring carbon emissions

We are always looking at new and innovative ways of driving down our carbon footprint. Responsible
management of energy has a key role in minimising environmental impacts and is embedded within Argiva. Key
to this is transitioning our carbon based emissions to a more sustainable alternative, e.g. sustainable alternative
such as electric cars to replace our fleet vehicles using combustible engines. We also continue to investigate how
emerging technologies and ingenious ways of working can help us and our customers realise sustainable
ambitions and decarbonise operations,

For more details on our annual emissions see page 63 in the Directors report.
Biodiversity
To positively enhance the environments we operate in

We always strive to minimise the impact we make on all our sites across the country, in order to improve the
habitats for flora and fauna to thrive in and create biodiversity. We work closely with planning authorities and
local communities to find the best acceptable solution for locations of masts and other infrastructure essential
to keeping both rural and urban communities connected. We also are identifying how we can reduce our
demand for electricity and locking at new technologies and ways to insulate our buildings.
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To optimise the use of natural resnurees

Understanding and monitoring our water usage enables us to look at how we can reduce our consumption and
ensure we can find ways to optimise the use of our natural resources. We will take a holistic view of how we
use our natural resources, both upstream to understand how we minimise waste creation and downstream to
maximise reuse and recycling.

Our sustainability also extends into waste management, a key responsibility for our industry. We are focusing
on what waste it is that we are producing and how this can be reduced. This includes finding efficiencies in our
asset maintenance schedules, reducing the number of times we swap out consumables as well as procuring
technologies that can be repaired or repurposed at their end of life and finding environmentally friendly ways
to dispose of redundant hardware. For example leasing laptops which are returned at the end of their term to
be rebuilt and sold again for use and recycling those not under these terms. We also coensider the environmental
risk of every investment made.

Social

Supporting Charities

We support our colleagues fundraising for local and other national causes close to their hearts. To help, Argiva
provides matched funding enabling colleagues to fundraise for their chosen charities, from Diabetes UK and the
NSPCC to local community projects, children's clubs and sports teams.

Argiva also supports the ‘Give as You Earn’ scheme in partnership with the Charities Aid Foundation (CAF)
allowing colleagues to get tax relief on their donations. In 2021, we retained our Bronze CAF award. The amount
provided to charities through this scheme has reached over £100,000 over the past three years.

Between 2019 and 2021, Argiva also worked in partnership as a proud supporter of Cancer Research UK, over
this period raising over £60,000 towards research into a cure for cancer,

Following the fire at our Bilsdale site Argiva donated £50,000 each to three local charitable organisations to
support communities affected by the fire and to help identify those in greatest need.

Also during the year, through colleague donations and matched funding from Argiva, £20,000 has been raised
for the Disasters Emergency Committee {DEC) Ukraine appeal to help UK aid charities and organisations in
Ukraine to support those seeking safety and shelter.

Supporting Our People

We aim to create a workplace where people feel engaged, energised and respected, where they can do their
best, and look after their personal wellbeing, both in and out of work.

Wellbeing

The Group has an ongoing commitment to the health and emotional wellbeing of our people. Argiva runs an
annual event focusing on both organisational and personal resilience, which includes wellbeing sessions and
training courses. We also have a network of mental health first-aiders, who are equipped to listen without
judgement, reassure and respond to colleagues, even in a crisis,

As well as these activities, our colleagues have access to a wealth of support through our Employee Assistance
Programme,

Health and Safety

Health and safety is vital, whether in the office or repairing an antenna on a 1,000ft mast. We have been a driving
force in developing the Mast and Tower Safety Group, we run our own accredited I0SH Working Safely training
scheme for our engineers, and we collabarate with the union BECTU on an annual employee safety conference.
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We are committed to complying with applicable health and safety legislation, and to continual improvement in
achieving a high standard of health, safety, and welfare in our operations and for all those in the organisation
and others who may be affected by our activities. The Group operates a robust integrated management system
that is certified to 15014001, 15045001, 1SO90001 and 150270001 as well as offering training programmes
covering specific skills and general awareneass.

Supporting Diversity and Inclusion

We are committed to making our workplace as diverse and inclusive as possible because the complex
engineering and commercial challenges we need to solve can only be done by people with a diverse range of
skills, backgrounds and life experiences. Our diversity and inclusion programme ensures we continually focus on
what’s needed for everyone to feel included and able te perform. We have moved beyond building awareness
around unconscious bias and are now supporting colleagues to understand the difference between intent and
impact.

Our Diversity Ambassadors have been instrumental in encouraging and engaging other workplace communities.
We now have an active Women at Argiva network, a Working Families group, and a Neurodiversity network, so
we can listen, support and take opportunities to make lasting, tangible changes so our working practices are
even more inclusive.

Employees

The average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was 1,287 (2021: 1,528). Argiva
recognises the significant contribution of our employees and makes every effort to create a rewarding and
engaging work environment.

Our policy is to provide equal opportunities for all employees, irrespective of race, nationality, gender, sexual
orientation, marital status, religion or political beliefs, disability or age. Like many engineering-based businesses
we recognise that Argiva has a higher proportion of men than women and we are working to address this with
the Employers Network for Equality and Inclusion through our diversity and inclusion programme.

The table below provides a breakdown of the gender of Directors and employees as at 30 June 2022:

Board of Directors 7 z/ i()% 8/ 80%
Executive Committee 2/25% 6/75%
Group Employees 296/ 23% 991/ 77%

The Group continues to address training and development requirements for employees at all levels within the
organisation. The Board also reviews future management requirements and succession plans on an on-going
hasis.

The Argiva Employee Board (‘AEB’) has continued throughout the year. The AEB is a democratically elected
Board that acts as a voice for employees across Argiva and provides a clear and direct link between the Group’s
employees and the Executive Committee. The AEB continues to meet on a monthly basis to discuss key matters
such as performance management, or efficiencies and processes to develop responsive action plans.
Furthermore, the AEB (as well as the Executive Committee) interacts with representatives of BECTU (the
Broadcasting, Entertainment, Cinematograph and Theatre Union) regarding employee matters.

The Group’'s employee forums provide an effective channel for communication and collective consultation
across the Group. They play an important role in enabling employees to help the Group manage change
effectively. The goals of each forum are to act as the formal consultative body for its part of the business within
Argiva, provide a voice to management on employee issues, initiate and support social activities, and promote
consultation and sharing information.
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Significant emphasis is placed on employee communication. The Group intranet, “The Hub’, makes information
available to employees on all matters including performance, growth, and issues affecting the industry. The
Group also runs “Connect Days” across various sites to bring employees tegether and provide apportunity for
updates and discussion across the business.

Our “Work. Life. Smarter.” initiative also recognises the benefit of hybrid working to our employees. This
commitment ta our people endeavours for our people to feel supported and empowered to work in a way that
enables them to thrive in their role, giving a choice about how, when and where we waork.

Argiva wants all gur employees to benefit from our success and growth as a business. The annual bonus scheme
recognises the importance of high performance and is designed to reward employees for achieving targets and
continuous improvement in overall performance, in line with our values and strategy. The scheme takes into
account the targets that have been set by the Group. The Group must achieve a minimum operating cash
performance before a bonus becomes payable which is then calcutated based on these financial KPIs. The bonus
payment for the 2022 financial year is expected to be made in October 2022. In addition, certain members of
our senior management participate in a long-term incentive plan which is typically 3 years in duration and is
designed to recognise the value of strategic initiatives being undertaken by the Group during the longer-term.
As with the annual bonus scheme, the Group must achieve a minimum threshold of financial performance before
a bonus becomes payable under the long-term incentive plan which is then calculated based upon the 3-year
Group financial KPls of EBITDA and operating cash performance. All such arrangements are cash-based incentive
schemes which gperate against documented performance targets and are reviewed at |east annually by the
Remuneration Committee (which comprises members of the Board of Directors).

Gender Pay Gap

The full annual gender pay gap report is available on the company website at www argiva.com. The latest report
shows the emphasis and commitment to diversity and inclusion with improvements in both the mean and
median pay gaps for the reporting period. The full report provides details on why we have a pay gap, the reasons
for the increase in the year and the actions we are taking to address the issue.

Modern Slavery Act

Argiva is committed to ensuring that there is no modern slavery or human trafficking in our supply chains or in
any part of our business. The supplier Code of Conduct reflects the commitment to acting ethically and with
integrity in all business relationships and to implement and enforce effective systems and controls to ensure
slavery and human trafficking is not taking place anywhere in our supply chains. The fult statement is included
on page 42 and is also available on the company website at www.argiva.com.

Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption

In conjunction with the UK Bribery Act 2010, the Group has adopted a Code of Conduct for employees which
incorporates all its anti-corruption policies and procedures. The policies apply to all Argiva employees employed
an both a permanent and temporary basis. The Code of Conduct also sets out the policies and procedures on
the giving and receiving of gifts and hospitality.

Information Security

Dueto the critical importance of our sites and systems to the Group, our customers and, in some cases, as Critical
National Infrastructure, we take infarmation security very seriously, focusing on protecting and managing access
to information throughout its entire lifecycle,

We hold certification to 1SO/IEC 27001:2013. 15027001 is an internationally recognised specification for an
information security management system {I5SMS), a framework of policies and procedures that includes all legal,
physical and technicat controls involved in an organisation’s information risk management processes. This allows
us to campete for new business which requires us to demonstrate the robustness of our security contrals.
Through independent review and accreditation, supported by internal monthly audits, we continue to
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confidently demonstrate our commitment to security and secure working practices. We have held this
certification since 2013 and recertify every three years with recertification last given in May 2020,

We also hold Cyber Essentials certification. Cyber Essentials is a government-backed, industry-supported
scheme to help organisations guard against the most common cyber threats and demonstrate their commitment
to security. We have held this certification since 2016 and recertify annually.

Taxation

The Group's approach to tax is to ensure compliance with all legal and statutory obligations. Argiva is committed
to maintaining a transparent and constructive working relationship with HM Revenue & Customs and with local
tax authorities in the jurisdictions in which we operate. The total contribution to UK tax receipts including
business rates, income tax, PAYE and NI paid by both Argiva and employees, totalled £54.2m for the financial
year {2021: £65.4m).

The Argiva Group is a primarily UK based infrastructure group. There are some trading operations outside of the
UK, however these generate less than 1% of operating profit and there are no tax planning activities taken which
seek to reduce the Group’s UK profits or revenues by transferring revenue or profit out of the UK. The Group’s
small overseas trading entities deal directly with customers in their area of residence and fulfil their tax
requirements in the local jurisdictions.

This report was approved by the Board on 26 September 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

O ks —

Mike Parton

26 September 2022
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018 {the “Regulations”), requires companies that meet
certain thresholds to report on the Directors’ application of their section 172 duty to promote the success of the
Company, as set out in the Companies Act 2006, along with stakeholder and employee engagement.

Section 172 Statement

The Companies Act 2006 sets out a set of general duties owed by directors to a company, including a list of
matters to which directors must have regard, which are set out in 5.172(1)(a} to (f). During FY22, in continuing
to exercise their duties, the Directors have had regard for these matters, as well as other factors, in considering
proposals from the Executive Committee and continuing to govern the Company on behalf of our shareholders.

i f%éi’)%%’ g
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Consequence of any decision in Strateglc overview
the long-term
Interests of employees Employee Engagement 41
Supporting our people 36 (Corporate Responsibility)
Employees 37
Fostering relationship with Stakeholder Engagement Below
suppliers, customers and others Business Update 22-25
Impact of operations on the Environment 63
community and the envireonment Energy Consumption and Waste 64
management
Charity 36
Maintaining high standard of Governance 45-49
business conduct Health & Safety 36
Modern Slavery Act, Anti-Bribery 42
& Corruption
Acting fairly between members Stakeholder Engagement Below

Accountability 59

Stakeholder Engagement Statement

Throughout the year, the Board has continued to ensure engagement with relevant stakeholders generally in
relation to its day-to-day business and particularly with respect to key challenges, such as the ongoing
situation with COVID-19 and the impact of the fire on the Company’s mast at Bilsdale. Examples of the way in
which this engagement has taken place are set out in the table below.

s
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Employees Please see our Employee Engagement Statement below and Corporate
Responsibility statement {pages 35-39) for full details
Regulatory Bodies We have good relationships with representatives in all relevant regulatory

bodies and engage regularly with Ofcom; the Department for Culture, Media
and Sport (DCMS); and the Department for Business Enterprise and Industrial
Strategy (BEIS). We also monitor relevant developments with Ofwat and Ofgemn
as regulators of customers of our Utilities business, and we participate in
consultations and consult with government departments and regulators when
setting strategy and making decisions that affect industry generally. We have
liaised closely with Ofcom with regard to the impact of the mast fire at Bilsdale
on consumers and the wider broadcast industry.

Investors Quarterly reports to investors are published on our website and available to all;
an annual investor call is held, in which we review our annual results and invite
questions from investors.

Customers Our relationships with our customers are very important to us, and we maintain
regular contact through account managers; Executive Committee members; and
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where appropriate our Chairman. As part of our response to COVID-19 and to
the impact of the Bilsdale mast fire, we have sought to understand and support
customers who have been affected and ensure continued delivery of services.

Suppliers Qur Procurement team oversees supplier relationship management, with a

category management structure so that employees have relevant expertise for
each supplier. We work closely to ensure positive relationships, seeking to agree
fair terms and conditions and ensure timely payment, through adherence to and
reporting on the Prompt Payment Code,

Shareholders Shareholder Representatives on the Board and committees of the Board report

back to shareholders on the business and take their interests into account when
making decisions, while operating in accordance with their Companies Act
duties. The Group’s corporate governance specifies a number of categories of
decision which are reserved to shareholders, ensuring that the decisions
affecting shareholders are subject to the necessary oversight.

Stakeholders As part of our infrastructure projects, we engage with planning authorities and

iocal communities to foster positive relationships. Argiva’s charitable
engagement alsc seeks to support communities local to the areas in which it
operates. The Company is particularly proud of the community support
activities it undertook in the aftermath of the Bilsdale fire to assist members of
the public effected by the loss of the Bilsdale mast.

Employee Engagement Statement

1.

Information

Regular ali company updates are provided to all employees via Argiva’s Hub (intranet) and email
updates; Management conducts regular company-wide live broadcasts and hosts face-to-face connect
days through the year to update employees on performance, strategy and other key developments;
with opportunities for employees to ask questions in real time.

Consultation

Argiva has active union representations through the Broadcasting Entertainment Communications and
Theatre Union (BECTU); strategic decisions which may affect employees {including business change;
pay; and terms and conditions) are discussed with BECTU representatives in advance of action being
taken. Similar engagement also takes place with the Arqiva Employee Board (AEB), which is elected by
employees, and their feedback and views are taken into account when making decisions affecting the
workforce, for example in setting timescales and the content of communications.

invoivement

Employees participate in annual bonus schemes which are based upon performance of the business
throughout the year, encouraging employees to contribute to the success of the business. The Group’s
cultural value of curiosity encourage new ideas and fostering strong relationships across the
organisation, supporting overall performance of the business.

Common Awareness

Financial and economic factors affecting the business are described to employees throughout the year
during management broadcasts; regular email communications with business updates and through the
Arqiva Hub.
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Modern Slavery Acl: Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement

Overarching Statement
This statement sets out the steps we are implementing to combat slavery and human trafficking. We remain
committed to further improving our practices in the future to combat slavery and human trafficking.

Organisation’s Structure

We are a communications infrastructure and media services provider, operating at the heart of the broadcast,
satellite communications, and smart metering markets. We're at the forefront of network solutions and services
in the digital world, We provide much of the infrastructure behind television, radio satellite communications
and smart metering in the UK and have a presence in Ireland, mainland Europe and the USA.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2022, Argiva Limited and its subsidiaries, Argiva Muxco Limited, and
Argiva Smart Metering Limited were part of the Argiva group with head offices in the UK and over 1300
employees. We operate in the UK and Europe.

Argiva Limited {and its subsidiaries), Argiva Muxco and Argiva Smart Metering Limited each have an annual
turnover of in excess of £36 million.

Our Supply Chains

The Arqiva Procurement team works in partnership with our suppliers, ensuring we meet our internal customer
needs. The Argiva values are core to how we interact with suppliers whether a high-volume preferred supplier
or one-time only supplier.

We have an exceptionally diverse range of services and goods that are required by the business and sourced by
our Procurement team including:

+ Transmission — Argiva has numercus transmission sites throughout the UK;

* Construction — Argiva undertakes a broad range of construction activities fram small changes to the
construction of new transmission towers;

* Maintenance & Repairs;

s [T software and managed services;

s Satellite Capacity; and

s Corporate facilities (including corporate sites, stationery, recruitment, legal and professional fees).

Our Policies on Slavery and Human Trafficking

We are committed to ensuring that there is no modern slavery or human trafficking in our supply chains or in
any part our business. Suppliers are required to comply with our Supplier Code of Conduct, which reflects our
commitment to acting ethically and with integrity in all our business relationships and to implementing and
enforcing effective systems and controls to ensure slavery and human trafficking is not taking place anywhere
in our supply chains.

Due Diligence Process for Slavery and Human Trafficking
As part of ourinitiative to identify and mitigate risk we:
s Aim to identify and assess potential risk areas in our own business and our supply chains;
e  Try to mitigate the risk of slavery and human trafficking occurring in our own business and cur supply
chains;
*  Monitor potential risk areas in our own business and our supply chains;
*  Where possible we build long standing relationships with suppliers and make clear our expectations of
their business behaviour;
e  Expect our suppliers to comply with the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and have their own suitable anti-
slavery and human trafficking policies and processes; and
* Encourage the reporting of concerns and support the protection of whistleblowers.

42



Argiva Group Limited (05254001)
Annual Repart and Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2022

Supplier Adherence to our Values
We have zero tolerance to slavery and human trafficking. We expect all those in our supply chain to comply with
those values and our Supplier Code of Conduct.

Our Procurement team, reporting into our CFQ, is responsible for promoting and ensuring compliance with the
Modern Slavery Act 2015 as part of our supplier reiationships.

Training

To ensure a high level of understanding of the risks of modern slavery and human trafficking in our supply chains
and our business, all Directors and members of the Executive Committee have been briefed on the subject, a 15
minute short course around Modern Slavery was sent out to all staff and 1,100 completed that in 2020/2021.
An online course was created in December 2021 that included the Modern Slavery Statement as well as an
overview of Modern Slavery and that currently goes to all new starters. 199 people have completed the course
thus far. We aim to provide a refresher course in 2022/2023 and then every 3 years.

Our Effectiveness in combating Slavery and Human Trafficking
we will use the following key performance indicators (KPIs) to measure how effective we have been 1o ensure
that slavery and human trafficking is not taking place in any part of our business or supply chains:
¢ Use of robust supplier selection process including supplier questionnaires and compliance with Argiva’s
Supplier Code of Conduct; and
e Use of our payroll systems to ensure that purchase orders and payments to suppliers are limited to
those who comply with our standards.

Steps taken during the financial year to 30 June 2022
In the past financial year, we have taken the following steps to ensure that slavery and human trafficking is not
taking place in our supply chains, and in any part of our own business:

a) We have fully implemented our qualification process for all suppliers: One Time Only suppliers {low
value transactions less than 2% spend in FY22) all use our standard Purchase Order T&Cs, which includes
a mandatory compliance clause covering Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Laws.

Suppliers with ongoing relationships are all required to qualify via our e-procurement system, This
process includes background checks and either (a} confirmation of acceptance of the Argiva Supplier
Code of Conduct {which covers modern slavery and human trafficking); or (b) demonstration that the
Supplier has its own equivalent policies covering modern slavery and human trafficking. Purchase
Orders cannot be placed with new ongoing suppliers before the confirmation has been given.

b)  We continue ta limit the number of active suppliers with Oracle to reduce risk. During the financial year
to 30 June 2022 we had 976 suppliers registered on oracle and have traded with only 639 of these
suppliers during the fiscal year {N.B. this figure has reduced from >2,300 in FY18}).

c] We continue to use our “Speak Up” reporting website and telephone line to enable people to notify
any concerns. These are overseen by the Internal Audit function and regular updates given to the
Group’s Audit & Risk Committee.

Statement

This statement is made pursuant to section 54{1) of the Mecdern Slavery Act 2015 and constitutes Argiva Limited,
Arqgiva Muxco Limited and Argiva Smart Metering Limited's slavery and human trafficking statement for the
financial year ending 30 June 2022,

Note: The signed statement is available on the Company website at www.argiva.com
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Board of Directors and Executive Committee

Ownership

The Company is owned by a consortium of shareholders comprising Canada Pension Plan Investment Board
{48%), Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund Il (25%}, plus other Macquarie managed fund (1.5%), Health
Super Investments (5.5%), IFM Global Infrastructure Fund (14.8%) and Motor Trades Association of Australia
(5.2%). There is no ultimate controlling party of the Company, as defined by IAS 24 ‘Related parties’.

In accordance with IAS 24, there are two investor companies which are related parties with the Group, by virtue
of significant shareholding in the Group:

¢ Frequency Infrastructure Communications Assets Limited ('FICAL’) {48%), a company controlled by
Canada Pension Plan Investment Board. The Canada Pension Plan Investment Board is a professional
investment management organisation in Toronto which invests the assets of the Canada Pension plan.
The Canada Pension Plan Investment Board was incorporated as a federal Crown corporation by an Act
of Parliament in December 1997.

* Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund H (‘MEIF II') (25%), an investment fund managed by the
Macquarie Group. Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund Il is a wholesale investment fund focusing
on investments in high-quality infrastructure businesses across Europe. Macquarie Group Limited is
listed in Australia (ASX:MQG ADR:MQEBKY).

Arqiva Board of Directors

The Group’s Board of Directors is comprised of ten Directors representing our shareholder consortium as well
as two members of the Executive Committee. The following Board members were in office during the year and
up to the date of the signing of the annual report and financial statements.

" Board Committee Membership

i A— Audit and Risk Committee

i G — Governance and Nomination Committee
R — Remuneration Committee

. O - Operational Resilience

: Bold - Committee Chair

Mike Parton, Chairman
Governance and Nomination Committee Chair, Audit and Risk Committee Chair

Mike brings a wealth of experience from his background in the telecoms and technology
industry. Mike started his career as a Chartered Managerment Accountant, working for a
number of UK technology companies including ICL, GEC, STC and Marconi, Mike has held
the roles of CEO of Marconi plc. Chairman of Damovo Group and Chairman of Tele2 AB.

In addition to his role at Argiva, Mike is currently also Chairman of TDC Group and a trustee
of a young people’s charity, Grit.

A G R

45




Argiva Group Limited (05254001}
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2022

Shuja Khan, Chief Executive Officer

Shuja was appointed Chief Executive Officer in June 2022. Prior to this, as Argiva’s
Chief Commercial Officer since January 2020, he was responsible for all revenue
generating activities including strategy, regulatory affairs, product development and
customer experience and at the heart of the development of Argiva’s 10-year
strategic plan, vision and purpose.

He draws on more than 20 years of leadership experience in the technology, media
and communications sector, including the role of Chief Commercial Officer across 24
territories at Cable & Wireless and various leadership roles at both Virgin Media and
liberty Global Europe with a focus on driving growth.

Sean West, Chicf Financial Officer

Sean was appointed Chief Financial Officer in September 2018, having joined Argiva
in 2015 as Director of Treasury and Corporate Finance.

Sean has a background in all areas of corporate finance and financing, and as Director
of Treasury and Corporate Finance was responsible for all aspects of the Group’s
capital structure.

Prior to joining Argiva, Sean held senior corporate finance and treasury positions at
the Immediate Capital Group (ICG) and LandSec and brings a wealth of experience
across a range of industries and financial markets.

Appointed by IFM Investors and Motor Trades Association of Australia {joint appointment)

Sally Davis, Director

Remuneration Committee Chair

With over 30 years in the TMT sector Sally has held a number of senior product,
strategy and chief executive roles including being a former Chief Executive of BT
Wholesale, one of four operating divisions of BT. Prior to this, Sally had an early
product management career at Mercury Communications before becoming a
director at NYNEX during its merger with Bell Atlantic to become Verizon.

Sally is also a Non-Executive Director on the Board of Telenor and is Chairman of
Leonard Cheshire.

Appointed by Frequency Infrastructure Communications Assets Limited

Mike Darcey, Director

Operational Resilience Chair

Mike has over 25 years’ experience in the technology, media and telecommunications
industry with numerous positions held ranging from CEO of News International to
COO of British Sky Broadcasting Group. He has also provided strategic advisory
services to a range of clients in the media industry.

Mike has served or is currently serving on Boards including Dennis Publishing {UK) Ltd
(Chairman), M247 (Chairman), Home Retail Group (Senior Independent Director) and
Sky New Zealand (Director). He is also Chairman of British Gymnastics and Senior
Expert Advisor to MTM Consulting.

0 G
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Batiste Ogier, Director

Batiste is a Managing Director at CPP investments. With asset management
responsibilities across CPP Investments’ global Infrastructure and Sustainable Energy
Group portfolios. In his role, Batiste is also a Director on the Board of Renewable Power
Capital, a renewable energy investment platform he helped found in 2020 and is a
Non-Executive Director representative for CPP Investments on the Board at Anglian
Water. Prior to joining CPP Investments, he was a Director in the Infrastructure team
at First State Investments, during which time he was a member of the Supervisory
Board of the Coriance Group and a Board representative for FS| at Anglian Water.

Neil King, Director

Neil runs the European infrastructure business at CPP investment Board. He has over
twenty-five years of experience in the infrastructure market, including ten years at 3i
as a founding partner in its infrastructure investment business before joining CPPIB in
2015,

Neil is also a Non-Executive director at Interparking S.A., a European car parking
business which is in CPPIB’s infrastructure investment portfolio.
G R

Peter Adams, Director (alternate)
Peter is a Principal in the Infrastructure group at CPP Investment Board, based in
London.

Prior to joining CPP Investment Board, Peter was with the Boston Consulting Group,
where he advised clients in the U.S., Canada and Europe an strategy and operations.

European Infrastructure Fund Il

Paul Donovan, Non-Executive Director

Paul served as a Non-Executive director at Argiva from 2018 to 2020. He was re-
appointed to the Board in July 2022 following two years in role as Argiva’s Chief
Executive Officer.

Paul has over 20 years’ experience in senior executive roles across the technology,
media and telecommunications sectors. Between 2014 and 2016 Paul led the
transformation of Eurape’s leading cinema operatar, Odeon and UCI Cinemas Group,
ahead of its successful sale to AMC Theatres. Paul’s leadership led to innovations in
pricing, digital marketing and guest experience which laid the foundations for
improvements in business performance and public perception.

Prior to this Paul was CEQ of Irish Telecoms Group eir. His background also includes
senior executive appointments with a number of significant global organisations
including Vodafone, Cable & Wireless, One20ne and Optus as well as senior
commercial roles at BT, Apple Computers, Coca-Cola and Schweppes Beverages and
Mars Inc.
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Susana Leith-Smith, Director
Susana was appointed to the Board in May 2022.

Susana is a Senior Managing Director in Macquarie Asset Management’s Real Assets
business in EMEA.

She has a wealth of experience in capital markets. Prior to jeining Macquarie Asset
Management, she was at Barclays, most recently as the EMEA Head of Leveraged
Finance and managing all transactions in the Telecoms, media and Tech sectors.

Appointed by IFM Investors

Christian Seymour, Director

Christian is Head of Infrastructure at IFM Global Infrastructure Fund, responsible for
the husiness expansion in Europe and oversight of IFM’s existing European asset
portfolio, of which Cadan Trust is an investment vehicle.

A G R 8]

Max Fieguth, Director (alternate)

Max is responsible for asset management of existing investments for IFM Global
Infrastructure Fund, as well as supporting the execution of infrastructure
transactions. Prior to joining IFM Investors, Max worked as a Consultant in the
Operations Practice at McKinsey and prior to that at Bechtel on a number of
infrastructure projects. He holds a Masters in Mechanical Engineering from Imperial
College London, an MBA from INSEAD and is a Chartered Engineer with the Institution
of Mechanical Engineers in the UK.
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Executive Committee

(also includes the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer on pages 46)

Katrina Dick
Chief Legal Officer

; | %

- Joined Argiva in April 2022 with experience in

energy, retail, health construction and

professional services.

Most recent roles include interim General Counsel

at Anzo and General Counsel for Europe Middle

East and Asia for Vice Media.

- Other previous roles as a partner in private
practice, several; roles in the communications,
media and broadcasting sectors and in-house
counsel for AAPT.

Adrian Twyning
Chief of Operations

Joined Argiva in March 2021 with experience in
energy, retail, health construction and
professional services.

Previously Director of Transformation at Dixons
Carphone

Other senior positions at British Gas and Brighton
and Sussex Hospitals NHS Trust

Peter Baker
Executive Director af Smart
Utilities Networks

Appointed to Argiva Executive Committee as

interim Director of Smart Utilities Networks in
June 2022, responsible for helping utilities
companies deliver their smart monitoring
strategies.

- Previous roles include Head of the Finance,
Insurance and Professional Global markets at
Vodafone Business and leadership roles at CGl,
Cable & Wireless and Colt Technology Services

Vivian Leinster
Chief Simplification Officer

- Appointed to the newly created role in June
2022 from her previous position in the Executive
Committee as Chief People Officer, a role held
since her appointment to Argiva in June 2020.
Extensive experience in people, organisation and
cultural changes.

Previcus positions including Chief People Officer
at MS Amlin and Bupa UK and senior generalist
and specialist HR roles at BT.

&
Clive White

Chief Technology and
Transformation Officer

- Joined Argiva in April 2018.

- Previous transformation positions at RSA, Lloyds
Banking Group, Accenture, AT&T Global
Network and BSkyB.

Chris Alner
Executive Director of
Media and Broadcast

- Appeinted to Argiva Executive Committee as
interim Director Media & Breadcast in June
2022.

- Working almost exclusively in the media and
entertainment industry for almost two decades
previous roles have included positions at Disney,
MTV and BT Vision.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Arqiva’s approach to risk management is as follows:

- Argiva recognises that the effective management of risk is essential to achieve our business objectives

- Argiva adopts an Enterprise Risk Management ('ERM’) approach, which is recognised as ‘best
practice’ for top performing companies

- Managing risk is a core responsibility of management at all levels and is a key component of
governance and compliance

- Argiva aims to embed risk management principles into the culture of the organisation

Enterprise wide management of risk is important for Argiva to meet our corporate objectives and for us to
protect future competitive advantage. The strategic importance of risk management is recognised by top
performing companies and is an important part of good corporate governance. Argiva subscribes to the
Enterprise Risk Management approach to managing our risk profile.

Argiva has adopted 15031000 as its Enterprise Risk Management standard and ISO Guide 73 terminology.
Argiva has also adopted the 15O 27000 series for Information Security including 1ISO/IEC 27005 for Security Risk
Management which operates within the Argiva ERM Framework. Our statements and principles are linked to
our process through our risk management framewaork.

thIntegralpartof . ¢
¢ . Grgonisation of procesg -
- ©) Part of decision making
) Explicitty addresses
" uncertointy _
© @) Systematic, structured
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The Executive Committee has responsibility for maintaining and updating their line of business risk register
which includes utilising the standardised approach to risk assessment and risk monitoring. The Group's
centralised Internal Audit and Risk function provides training and support to ensure risks are captured
effectively and on a timely basis. The Internal Audit and Risk function works with the Chief Executive Officer to
review and consolidate the most significant business risks into a corporate risk register for scrutiny at quarterly
Executive Committee and Audit and Risk Committee meetings. The Executive Committee takes
recommendations for ensuring the risk management framework remains effective going forward.
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Business Management:

Senlor Executive Management. Audit and Risk function 7 Audit

First defence s the day to day
controls and processes put 163 place
by managernent to dentify nsks
ang develop Miligading ocions.

B Ak

Bad publicity damages
Argiva’s reputation and
customer and business
partner confidence and its
ability to do business as a
result of:
- A major event or incident

impacting our services;
- Untimely delivery on
major projects;
Repeated unexpected
service outages;
Security breach or cyber
attack on networks; or
Major network or
equipment failure or
obsolescence or inability
to configure to comply
with information security
standards

Quarterly review of the corponate
risk register ta include review of
nisk managenent palicies, seting
of 115k appetite, menitoting
compliance and reparting of
sigrificant fsks to the Board of
Duectors.

A

our customers to ensure that
project milestones are carefully
managed and management
regularly reviews the progress
of all projects.

Through continucus
measurement of operational
KPIs and addressing shortfalls
in performance through
process excellence the risk
around service reliability is
carefully managed.

The Group has in place a crisis
management plan for public
relations and external
communications to provide
support should there be any
rmajor events. This is regularly
monitored and reviewed.

Cyber-attacks ang trends in this
area are continually monitored.

The Group continues to invest
in our infrastructure and
perform site inspections.

committee:
Independent business assuranca
provided over the effectwveness
of the Group's systern of internal
cantrobs and pros
the effectiven
management framework.
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Management has identified the following risks as the most significant business risks affecting the Group,
presented together with identified mitigating actions.

The Group maintains 15027001
certification regarding informaticn
security and hoids periodic reviews
of the security environment and
training to employees.

The Business Continuity Group
continues to meet regularly and will
test and roll out the Disaster
Recovery Pian.

QOperational resilience plans have
bean enacted following the fire on
the Bilsdale site. Using other sites,
services were initially redirected
where possible to utilise other
transmitters in the area whilst a
temporary mast was erected with
98% of households service restored.
Argiva has worked extensively in the
community to support impacted
viewers with positive feedback.

There has been continued capital
expenditure in the year to improve
infrastructure. The Group has
continued with our digital
transformation programme with the
programme largely complete with
new systems launched.
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Impact of development of
alternative competing
technological solutions
against Argiva solutions
such as a faster move to
non-linear and IP delivered
services away from
broadcast delivered or an
the utilities side wider
campetition to our portfolio
of services to the water
sector. These could impact
customer decisions to not
renew contracts or reduce
the scope of services for
broadcast or utifity
connectivity.

Asset condition is worse
than expected leading to
equipment failure or
obsolescence, service
outages leading to penatties
with customers
requirement for greater
than anticipated capital
expenditure

Qur new products do not
gain traction in the market
due to insufficient
investment in product
development, fimited
market opportunity, they do
not meet customer needs
or have an unsustainable
cost base ultimately
impacting growth and
longevity of the business.

Argiva’s Vision 2031 strategy
seeks to broaden Arqiva’s
ambitions and ensure that it
can rernain sustainable. [t sets
out key pillars of activities
which will drive a focus on
building new business areas
and responding to technology
changes and opportunities in
the market. it prepares the
business to embrace
partnerships and new
technologies which go beyond
the historic focus on Argiva's
infrastructure and enable the
business to access new
technologies.

Argiva acts to engage with any

relevant Government or

regulatory process which might
impact Argiva’s business areas

in response to the
development of alternative or
competing technologies.

Arqgiva acts to ensure that
aperational perfermance is
retained at a very high-level
and that DTT, radio and DTH

services remain on-air in order

to support their ongoing

use relative to IP or broadband

alternative methods of
delivery.

Qur approach is to take a

balanced but focused approach

on asset quality and
maintenance combining an
asset lifecycle management
approach with an established
strategic risk framework to
priaritise our maintenance
strategy and system owner
reviews of platform health

assessed. Mitigation requiring a
Capex investrment is pricritised

within the Capex budget
envelope.

Operating and capital
expenditure are budgeted to
include investment to support
product development,

We maintain strong
relationships with our
customers and engage with
them in the development and

product discovery phase of new

products.

Arqiva remains in dialogue with
relevant stakeholders including
Government and regulators to
include any changes to licences,
spectrum or around the future of
the PSB including the BBC Charter
process or discussions around C4
privatisation. We are currently
engaging with the DCMS radio
review to seek to ensure a long-term
future and clear plan for the radic
sector, We act to protect the
longevity of the services and seek
to avoid a Government decision

to take spectrum used for
broadcast and award it to

mobile or move away from DTT
towards full delivery of TV services
via IP.

The strategic priorities of the Group
for the next 10 years put a focus on
the sustainable future of the
business including the development
of solutions for new and emerging
sectors to make the most of our
existing infrastructure platforms and
expertise.

Site inspections are completed with
a focus on older sites and structural
maintenance plans have been
implemented.

Argiva remains in dialogue with
customers and other stakeholders
such as government and Ofcom or
developments and opportunities in
the markets.

The launch of Broadcast 2040+ seeks
to safeguard the terrestrial TV and
radio broadcast products that
underpin the core business or Argiva
and secure the longevity of these
contracts.
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Customer demand and
ability to pay reduces due to
decline in advertising
revenues, listening trends,
faster migration to non-
linear and iP delivered
services or structural
changes to the broadcast
market seeing players exit
or consolidate to fewer DTT
channels resulting in lower
cash flows for the Groug

Customers attack regulated
pricing, challenging long
term contracts and returns
on existing services and
increasing volatility.

Change in government
plans, policy or priorities
couid lead to changes in
licencing and long term
contracts for the business
e.g. BBC Licence funding
freeze for 2 years and
potential funding model
changes.

The product development
process is performed in
increments {g.g. 3 months) with
checkpaints after each
increment to ensure market
and technology assumptions
still hold.

Arqiva acts to engage with any
relevant Government or
regulatory process which might
impact Arqiva’s business areas
in response to the
development of atternative or
competing technologies.

Arqiva’s commercial teams
engage with customers around
pricing and ability to pay and
arcund renewal of services.
Prices vary in response to these
discussions which reflect
market conditions e.g. with
media customers on the
multiplexes Argiva operates on
DTT or DAB and through its use
of transponder capacity.
Arqiva seeks to support the
industry in instances

where changes could
undermine the jong-term
demand or ability to pay.

Argiva has long-term contracts
in place with its regulated
business customers - this
provides an inherent {evel of
protection to this risk.

Arqiva works closely with the
Office of the Adjudicator
(OTA) to ensure that the OTA is
happy with how the system is
operating — this includes
regular audits and provision of
any information required and
monthly meetings.

Argiva maintains regular
dialogue with our stakeholders
to ensure the defivery of our
programmes are efficient,
timely and to specification.
Where specification changes
oceur, Argiva provides a
detailed assessment of the
potential costs of the scope
change and seeks an informed
recovery of these costs through
mechanisms in our contracts.

Argiva’s assets and operations
remain predominantly in the
UK and therefore our business

Annual budget includes investment
to support product development.

Argiva remains in dialogue with
relevant stakeholders including
Government and regulators to
include any changes to licences,
spectrum or around the future of
the PSB including the BBC Charter
process or discussions around C4
privatisation. We are currently
engaging with the DCMS radio
review to seek to ensure a long-term
future and clear plan for the radio
sector. We act to protect the
longevity of the services and seek
to avoid a Government decision

to take spectrum used for
broadcast and award it to

mobile or move away from OTT
towards full delivery of TV services
via IP.

During the Covid crisis this included
providing financial support to smalt
radic stations and agreeing
reductions with the large radio
groups.

Argiva has successfully agreed scope
and change requests on our smart
energy metering programme with
our customer demonstrating the
customer’s continued focus on
network roll out.

Argiva remains in dialogue with
relevant stakeholders including
Government and regulators to
include any changes ta licences,
spectrum or around the future of
the PSB inciuding the BBC Charter
pracess or discussions araund C4
privatisation. We are currently
engaging with the DCMS radio
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Information, networks and
systems infrastructure may
be subjected to cyber
security threats leading to a
loss or corruption of data,
penaities and impacting the
operational capacity of
Argiva,

Critical transmission
structures or iT
infrastructure supporting
key operational processes
could fail leading to
operational outages or
catastrophic loss of service.

The scale and complexity of
Argiva’s major programmes
bear an inherent risk of
unforeseen delays through
the supply chain and

has minimal expusure to the
changing relationships with
international markets.

The Group maintains an
150270001 certification
regarding information security,
which includes Cloud Security
Services. Employee training on
information security is
mandatory and quarterly
reviews are undertaken by
external consultants to
examine the robustness of the
security environment.

System monitoring and
scanning is maintained as weit
as threat and vuinerability
management.

Arqiva ensures data is regularly
backed up and Business
Continuity Plans and Disaster
recovery have been established
for each key site and each
business area including
establishing a network of
agencies to support, regular
site inspections and corrective
and preventative maintenance.
A Business Recovery Working
Group meets regularly to stress
test these plans and continually
review the Group’s approach to
disaster recovery and
operational resilience.

Argiva maintains a robust
oversight of the delivery of our
major programmes. This
includes identifying the key
personnel and resources

review to seek to ensure a long-term
future and clear plan for the radio
sector. We act to protect the
longevity of the services and seek

to avoid a Government decision

to take spectrum used for

broadcast and award it to

mobile or move away from DTT
towards full delivery of TV services
via IP.

The launch of Broadcast 2040+ seeks
to safeguard the terrestrial TV and
radio broadcast products that
underpin the core business or Argiva
and secure the longevity of these
contracts.

Debt markets have continued to be
monitored for accessibility and open
dialogue maintained with ratings
agencies. Evolving commercial
negotiations are closely monitored.

Argiva has implemented detection
and prevention solutions on
networks.

Argiva has continued to pass our
quarterly security reviews and has
consequently retained 1ISO
certification.

A thorough review has been carried
out of endpoint security user access
to manage who has access to our
systems.

Site inspections are completed with
a focus on older sites and structural
maintenance plans have been
implemented.

Disaster recovery plans have been
enacted following the fire on the
Bilsdale site. Using other sites,
services were initially redirected
where possible to utilise other
transmitters in the area whilst a
temporary mast was erected with
98% of households service restored.
Argiva has worked extensively in the
community to support impacted
viewers with positive feedback.

The Group’s smart metering
communication network in the
North of England and Scotland now
covers 99.5% of premises. Argiva
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therefore challenges to

. delivery. This includes the
delays from the global
computing component
shortage resulting in delays
to suppiy of water metering
devices and subsequent risk
ta customers on ability to
meet water leakage targets.

i The risk that the Group
does not have an alignment
of skills to support the
future requirements.

The Group does not

have the right culture or
the right people in the right
place at the right time with
the right skills to enable
execution of our

strategic plans

Failure to achieve long term
cost targets impacting the
future sustainability of the
business.

required for delivery and
working closely with its
suppliers and customers to
ensure that these requirements
are sufficiently available. A task
force has been established to
co-ordinate global supply chain
{focus on water and energy
meters) with orders placed in
advance to de-risk supply. We
also seek to use multiple device
manufacturers and meter
providers.

Argiva recognises the
importance of our people and
seeks to make Argiva a
rewarding and enjoyable place
to work with the People and
Culture initiative roadmap. The
Group operates a campetitive
annual bonus plan for all
empioyees and a long-term
incentive plan for our
leadership team. Additionally,
the Group operates formal
retention and succession
planning in knowledge-critical
areas of the business.

The changing customer and
campetitive landscape as well
as our internal changes to

our strategy, organisational
design, technology and
processes require a different
set of mindsets, behaviours,
capabilities and skills 5o Argiva
has established and launched
the Culture transformation
programme tp drive our people
work.

There is ongoing monitoring
and detailed change controf
and regular monitoring of third-
party savings initiatives at both
the Executive Committee and
shareholder levels.

A simplification team has been
astablished to follow on from
the transformation programme
undergone and drive forward
efficiencies in our processes
and operations.

continues to support the DCC on the

meter roll out programme.

Argiva has continued to focus on
supporting individuals with
increased support and training for

new managers and emerging talent

and has established a People and
Culture Initiative Roadmap to
support employees and the
development of our culture,

The culture transformation
programme was launched in 2022
establishing the 3 culture goals to
support the achievemnent of cur
strategy.

The strategic priorities of the Group

for the next 10 years put a focus on

the sustainable future of the

business inciuding the development

of sclutions for new and emerging

sectors to make the most of our

existing infrastructure platforms and

expertise.

The Group has also launched in the

year its sustainability roadmap with

goals to mitigate our impacts and
support the environments we
operate in.

Details of the financial risks and details of mitigating factors are set out in the Directors’ report on

pages 66-67.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of Argiva Group Limited (‘AGL'), registered company number 05254001, (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) submit the annual report and audited consolidated financial statements (“the
financial statements”) in respect of the year ended 30 June 2022.

The Company is a holding company with an investment in a group of operating companies, financing companies
and other holding companies.

The Directors’ report for the Company is set out on page 135.

Wates Corporate Governance Statement

For the year ended 30 June 2022, under The Companies {Miscellaneous Reporting} Regulations 2018, Argiva has
continued to apply the Wates Corporate Governance Principles for Large Private Companies (as published by
the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) in December 2018 and available on the FRC website).

Companies are able to adopt the Wates principles as an appropriate framework when making a disclosure
regarding corporate governance arrangements. We have adopted the disclosure in our 2022 Annual Report and
Financial Statements and we set out below how the principles have been applied over the past year.

PRINCIPLE ONE - PURPOSE AND LEADERSHIP — An effective board promotes the purpose of a company, and
ensures that its values, strategy and culture align with that purpose.

Purpose/focus and activities during the year.

The focus of the Board and Executive Committee during the year has been to lead Argiva through the continued
uncertain Covid 19 period and respond to the fire at the Bilsdale mast in Yorkshire and to re-set the business’
purpose with a particular emphasis on its core broadcast, media networks and utilities businesses and its
customers. The following items were the key areas of focus during the year:

[ tem o lswmmary 0 v n T E L o AE
Headline purpose and The development of a new and updated purpose for Argiva — which is “Enabling a
strategy matters switched-on world to flow” - and also the Vision 2031 work which has brought our

purpose, our vision and our strategy together has been the focus for building a
sustainable future for Argiva. The Board has overseen these matters alongside the
development and adoption of a detailed and robust long-term plan for the business
with appropriate cost and investment assumptions which now underpin the
business.

Capital structure Following the significant repayment of external debts in the prior year, the Board
has continued to monitor the capital structure in place to ensure its suitability for
the business needs. This included the establishment of new facilities post year end,
the proceeds of which will be used to redeem the Groups outstanding £625m
Junior bonds.

Customers Arqiva is a smaller and less complex business post the Telecoms divestment, and
the Board has sought to ensure senior engagement with key customers and
stakeholders to strengthen working relationships, share Arqiva’s new purpose and
to open up further opportunities for coliaboration.

In addition, a significant customer engagement survey was carried out in May 2022.
This provided valuable insights in to Argiva’s performance, what it needs to do to
maintain its position in certain areas, and what it needs to do to prepare for the
future.

Integrated organijsation | The Board has overseen the implementation of an integrated crganisational design
whose purpose is to more directly and effectively serve our customers and ensure
alignment across our functions with the business’ purpose and direction.
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People & Culture A continued focus has been on ensuring the right levels of skills and experience
amongst our employees which was important to deliver Argiva’s new purpose in
the new organisational design. The Board has overseen a company-wide
restructuring and redundancy programme which was carried out during the year.
This resulted in a significant number of changes in the employee mix — with a
number of individuals leaving the business, others being successful in being
appointed to new roles, and also a significant recruitment exercise to fill vacant
roles.

A senior leadership group continues to benefit from significant investment through
personal and leadership development activities. The |leadership group has been
key to certain Culture transformation initiatives over the course of the year and
bringing to fruition a target culture blueprint for the business.

In addition, the implementation of our past-pandemic "Work. Life. Smarter.”
practices continues to be rolled out. The intention is to enable a migration to a
hybrid home/office working model for cur people.

Operational The operational performance of the business has been closely monitored by the
performance Board as part of the regular Board meeting agendas. In particular, the impact of
Covid 19 on the performance of the business has been considered on a more
frequent basis, and the relevant operationat risks associated with Covid 19
continue to be carefully managed. In addition, the global component shortage has
had an impact on meter supply schedules and this has been frequently considered
by the Board and senjor management.

As noted below the operational performance of the business has been impacted
by the Bilsdale fire during the year, and the Board has overseen the Group’s
response as a priority.

Governance A number of appointments/changes have been made to the Group’s executive
committee during the year. In addition to the business’ new integrated
organisational design, a number of improvements and updates have been made to
the business’ internal governance structures and delegated authorities.

Covid 19 The principal aims of the Board in its response to the ongoing Covid 19 pandemic
were to ensure the safety of its employees and assist individuals with the evolving
lockdown situations and ‘working from home’ realities, and also maintain
operational capability and delivery to the Group’s customers. (n addition, the
Board continued to oversee the Group's engagement with its most affected and
key customers.

Transformation rﬂ Board has continued to oversee the programme to upgrade the Group’s IT,

systems and processes to enhance operational capability and bring efficiencies to
the Group’s operations.
Bilsdale transmitter The fire at the Bilsdale transmitter site has had a significant impact on the group’s
fire operations in the year, with the response to the incident being a key area of focus
for the Board. The Board continues to oversee the restoration programme, with
key priorities being supporting the community and returning coverage.

Values and culture

Argiva’s values are embedded throughout the organisation, and adherence to them forms part of employees’
performance reviews and reward structure. Independent surveys of both employee and customer engagement
are undertaken. Engagement with BECTU is described under Principle 6 {Stakeholders) below. The Group’s
People & Culture team monitors absenteeism rates and processes are also in place to encourage and monitor
exit interviews. These form part of matters reported upon to the Operational Resilience Committee, which
reports in to the Board.
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PRINCIPLE TWO - ROARD COMPOSITION - [jfective buard composition requires an effective chair and o balarice
of skills, backgrounds, experience and knowledge, with individual directors having sufficient capocity to make a
valuable contribution. The size af g board should be guided by the scale und complexity of the company.

Chair
The Group’s corporate governance structure creates a clear separation between the role of the Chair and that
of the Chief Executive Officer.

The Chair {who is independent of the Group’s Shareholders) is a highly experienced business executive having
held many senior executive roles in the technology and telecoms sectors. The Chair has actively encouraged
open debate and discussion in the appropriate forums including main Board meetings which are scheduled to
take place at least six times per year, and also at Board sub-committee meetings [those committees being the
Audit & Risk Committee, Nominations & Governance Committee, Operational Resilience Committee, Capital
Structure Committee and the Remuneration Committee).

Balance and diversity

The Board has deep and relevant experience which has provided invaluable external industry input to assist
more effective decision-making in relation to a number of key matters brought before the Board. The Group
operates in a number of diverse and complex markets which require the Board to have a detailed understanding
of the relevant sector in order to arrive at informed decisions.

Argiva is actively working with Inclusive Employers in relation to diversity and inclusion. The Group recognises
that there is further work to do in this area and continues to promote relevant initiatives. Page 37 of the Annual
Report provides a breakdown of the gender of Directors and employees.

Size and structure

The size and structure of the Board remains under periodic review so that it is best organised to meet the needs
and challenges of the Group. In terms of Board size, a balance has been struck between ensuring Shareholders
are adequately represented via their nominated Directors but also identifying directors with relevant industry
experience to be appointed together with the Group’s CEO and CFQ (see pages 45-49 of the Annual Report for
full details of the composition of the Board of Directors and Senior Executive Management). Whilst Frank
Dangeard, Mike Darcey and Sally Davis all originally joined Argiva as independent non-executive directors, each
of them were also Shareholder directors representing Macquarie, CPPIB and MTAA/IFM respectively in the year
to 30 June 2022,

We acknowledge that there is a relative lack of diversity on the Board. As part of the new appointments to the
Senior Leadership groups, improvements have been made to broaden diversity and this will continue in the
future. Details of the actions taken in the year towards this are discussed in the Corporate responsibility
statement on page 37 of the annual report,

Effectiveness
The Group undertook an extensive Board effectiveness/evaluation exercise in December 2020 using an externai
online platform together with relevant diagnostics, and the results of the exercise were considered and
discussed at a meeting of the Nominations & Governance Committee and the Board of directors in February
2021. The key action recommendations from the exercise included the following:
- Argiva’s sustainability activities should be an increasing priority that form part of the company’s value
creation and strategic objectives.
- Diversity & inclusion and sustainability matters will be a more prominent agenda item at relevant
committee meetings and also at the Board twice a year from FY22 onwards.
- Succession planning and talent review matters will be regular agenda items for the Nominations &
Governance Committee,
- The composition of the Board {and/or the potential for a Board observer or external advisor} would be
kept under review to ensure the right breadth of experience and input at the Board.
- Anincreased focus by the Audit & Risk Committee in appraising strategic risk factors and whistleblowing
matters.
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PRINCIPLE THREE - DIRECTOR RESPONSIBILITIES — A board should have a clear understanding of its
accountobility und terms of reference. Its policies und procedures should support effective decision-making and
independent challenge.

The Board has a programme of six principal meetings every year, with additional meetings arranged for key
projects, strategic matters or circumstances such as Covid 19 or the fire at the Bilsdale mast in Yorkshire, as may
be required.

Accountability

Decisions which are within the remit of the Board or Shareholders are set out in a Shareholders’ Agreement (as
Board Reserved Matters and Shareholder Reserved Matters). There is a comprehensive Delegation of Authority
policy which sets out the responsibilities that are delegated to the Executive and those decisions which must be
made at Board or Shareholder level, This policy was updated and a revised policy brought to the June 2022
Board meeting for approval. Typically, Board or Shareholder Reserved Matters are raised at regular Board
meetings and written resolutions are obtained where otherwise required.

A Conflicts of Interest paper is maintained and regularly updated with details of Board or Shareholder conflicts.
Any conflicts which may compromise independent decision making would be raised by the Company Secretary
at the relevant Board meeting; a Director having a conflict is not entitied to discuss or vote on the relevant
matter, or to count in the quorum.

Committees

Five Board sub-Committees have been instituted. Pages 68-69 of the Annual Report provides an overview and
description of each of the Board sub-Committees comprising: Audit & Risk, Remuneration Committee,
Nominations & Governance and Operational Resilience and Capital Structure Committee. The Board sub-
Committees promote effective decision making and greater accountability and focus in relation to each of the
areas covered by the respective Board sub-Committees.

Integrity of information

The Board receives regular reports from the Executive and Senior Management on key matters for which the
Board has responsibility, including strategic projects; comprehensive financial reporting; key customer and
regulatory matters; updates on operational resitience (including physical and cyber security as well as health and
safety and environmental issues); details of major bids and performance of key contracts and market issues
faced by the Group as well as developments in technology and regulation.

The Group uploads papers to a board portal for ease of review and administration. Other than in exceptional
cases papers are submitted in advance and taken as read at Board meetings, allowing any presentations to focus
on highlighting key issues, discussion and dealing with questions. The Chairs of each of the Board Committees
are aware of the importance of their position and during FY22 they have each met {virtually) with key employees
of the Group to build relationships and gain direct access to those dealing with the day to day business of the
Group.

PRINCIPLE FOUR - OPPORTUNITY AND RISK — 4 Board should promote the fong-term sustainable success of the
company by identifying opportunities to create and preserve velue, ond establishing oversight for the
identification and mitigation of risks.

Opportunity

The Group’s Board maintains a focus on how the Group creates and preserves value over the long-term which
is principally achieved through a well-developed strategic and long-term planning process. The Board keeps its
strategy under review which provides a forum to present future business opportunities. Appropriate
governance mechanisms are in place to ensure that new business opportunities above a certain value are
considered and approved by the Board.

Risk

The Group has a well-developed risk management process in place and continues to use its an online risk
assessment tool, which is used throughout the business {which is described on pages 50 of the Annual report).
The Group’s Audit and Risk function works with the Chief Executive Officer to review and consclidate the maost
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significant business risks into a corporate risk regisler for scrutiny at quarterly Executive Committee and Audit
& Risk Committee meetings.

Argiva’s key operational risks and mitigations are outlined in detail on pages 54-55 of the Annual Report.

Responsibilities
The Group has adopted the Enterprise Risk Management approach to managing its risk which has been approved
by the Group's Audit & Risk Committee. This incorporates an internal control framework clearly defining roles
and responsibilities of those involved. Responsibilities include the following:
- The Group's Executive Committee takes recommendations for ensuring the risk management
framework remains effective going forward;
- Processes are in place for managing the principal risks and uncertainties;
- Theinternal control framework (described on page 50 of the Group’s annual report) confirms that there
is @ monitoring and review process in place to evaluate risks at both business unit and Board level.

PRINCIPLE FIVE - REMUNERATION - A board shauld promote executive remuneration structures oligned to the
long-term sustainable success of a company, taking into account pay and conditions elsewhere in the company.

Remuneration

A consistent approach has been adopted in setting the level and structure of remuneration in relation to each
member of the Executive Committee to secure appropriate and fair levels of remuneration. Benchmarking and
advice from external remuneration consultants is obtained. Remuneration comprises of a number of elements
including base salary, an annual bonus and a long-term incentive plan.

Page 37 of the Group’s annual report provides more detail and explains how remuneration is structured to
recognise high performance reward for achieving targets in line with the Group's sustainable success and values.
This aligns with remuneration arrangements for the remainder of the organisation where every employee’s
remuneration is made up of a combination of base salary and annual bonus (which, again, is linked to personal
performance and achieving financial targets in line with the Group’s ohjectives).

Policies

The Group has delegated remuneration matters to the Remuneration Committee {which is a committee of the
Board}. The Remuneration Committee operates in accordance with documented terms of reference. The
Remuneration Committee is committed to take into account the pay and employment conditions of the Group’s
wider workforce when making recommendations in relation to Executive pay.

The Group’s bonus and long-term incentive plans are documented in writing and reviewed at least annually by
the Remuneration Committee and any payments made operate against documented perfermance targets.

In addition, the Remuneration Committee considers the company wide annual pay increase on an annual basis.
As part of this process, the Remuneration Committee will assess increases against certain criteria including
taking into account other comparative pay metrics in the industry, discussions held with BECTU, the existing and
future financial capacity of the business, and also aligning with the long term sustainable success of the
company. In the year to 30 June 2022, annual pay negotiations were concluded with BECTU with agreement to
go to a ballot of its members. This occurred in early July 2022 and agreement was reached on the business’
proposals.

The Group has published its full gender pay gap report which is available on the company website at
www.argiva.com. The latest report shows the emphasis and commitment to diversity and inclusion with
improvements in both the mean and median pay gaps for the reporting period. The full report provides details
on why we have a pay gap, the reasons for the increase in the year and the actions we are taking to address the
issue.
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PRINCIPLE S|X - STAKEHOLDERS — A board has a respansibility to oversee meaningful engagement with material
stakeholders, including the workforce, and have regard to that discussion when taking decisions. The board has
a responsibility to foster good stakehalder relationships based on the company’s purpose.

Stakeholders

The Graup’s key Stakeholders include its employees; customers; suppliers; debt investors; Shareholders;
pensions trustees; and regulatory and government bodies including Ofcom, DCMS and BEIS.  Senior
Management and the Strategy and Regulatory team work closely with industry and lobby groups and
representatives of the various regulatory bodies, and the Board is regularly briefed informally and formally on
developments. The value of good relationships with local communities, in the context of planning requirements
for example, is understood and focus is given to fostering these relationships. The Group provides reports to
investors and creditors as part of its listed debt obligations and conducts regular investor calls which give the
opportunity for debt investors to raise questions with the Group. The Group’s procurement operations function
actively undertakes reviews of its supplier base and to enhance its best practice in this field.

Workforce

Arqiva communicates to its employees through regular email newstetters, updates over email directly from the
CEO and local messaging from the Executive Management. The CEO and Executive Management have also
conducted small listening groups in person where possible. However, due to the Covid 19 pandemic, the use of
live broadcasts and presentations streamed online {rather than roadshows} has continued and this has been
well received by employees. This has been done alongside interactive question functionality which enables a
live dialogue with the workforce. Individual video interviews with members of the Executive Management have
also been published on the Argiva intranet. During the Covid 19 pandemic in particular, the Executive
Management team has been the principal conduit through which the Board has been able to assess workforce
considerations and related views for the purposes of their decision making processes.

The Group has active union representation from BECTU, as well as an elected Employee Board, and employee
forums throughout the different functions. The People & Culture team work closely with each of these bodies,
consulting on any proposed changes to terms; policies and processes; as well as seeking feeaback on workplace
morale, culture and issues of concern or interest to the workforce. in the year to 30 June 2022, due to the
company wide restructuring and redundancy programme and return to the office after the Covid 19 lockdown,
the interaction between Argiva, its Employee Board and BECTU has been heightened. A constructive and pro-
active dialogue was swiftly established between the parties and a constructive relationship has been cemented
as a result.

External impacts

The Group’s Corporate Responsihility statement sets out, on pages 35-39 of the Directors’ Report, a description
of the Group’s focus areas used to ensure that it acts responsibly, ethically and safely, from a Corporate;
Community; Employee; and Business perspective. The statement also includes a summary of the Group’s
approach to environmental factors. The Group’s Modern Slavery Act: Stavery and Human Trafficking Statement
on page 42-43 sets out a description of Argiva’s considerations in this area, including supply chain impacts.

61



Argiva Group Limited (05254001)
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2022

Strcamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR)

Introduction

This report provides an overview of Argiva’s approach to environmental sustainability as well as progress and
successes made during the financial year. It also provides information and data we are required to report under
the Task Force for Climate Change Disclose (TCFD) and the Streamlined Energy Carbon Reperting (SECR).

New Sustainability Framework
This year Argiva launched its sustainability framework. The framework is focused on environmental

sustainability and has three clear goals:
Goal 1 Become a net zero organisation by 2040, with an interim goal of net zero across our scope
1 and 2 emissions by 2031

Goal 2 Positively enhance the environments we operate in
Goal 3 Optimise our use of natural resources

Gool 1 Net Zero

We understand and can currently measure our scope 1 and 2 carben emissions. As a result we have set a more
aggressive goal to achieve net zero compared to our scope 3 emissions. We have specifically chosen a 2031
deadline to align with Argiva’s ten year business strategy Vision 2031.

We are currently focused on the creation of abatement plans detailing how we will achieve next zero on our
scope 1 and 2 emissions. Currently we can measure only part of our scope 3 emissions. This year we will
undertake further analysis of our supply chain to measure the current carbon emissions and work with our
suppliers to understand their plans towards net zero.

We are committed this year to supporting the Science Based Target initiative to enable us to measure our
progress towards net zero and provide credibility to cur plans.

Goal 2 Environmental Enhancement
Our second goal targets how we can positively enhance the environments we operate in. Initially we will focus
on three areas:
1. Identifying ways in which we can reduce our energy consumption in our buildings and technical
equipment
2. Argiva own and operate a network of over 1,500 sites around the UK. We have an opportunity to make
decisions about how we manage the land and how we can support and improve biodiversity
3. To provide greater transparency of the individual carbon footprint of our key products and services to
ehable our customers to make informed choices

Goual 3 Resource Optimisation
Our third goal will ensure we can find ways to optimise the use of our natural resources. We will take a holistic
view of how we use our natural resources, both upstream to understand how we minimise waste creation and

downstream to maximise reuse and recycling.
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Sustainability Successes
We are still developing our plans to achieve our three goals but have still had some notable successes during the
year.

Carbon Emissions Reduction

Carbon Emissions

The table below provides a breakdown of carbon emissions by scope in accordance with the Green House Gas
Protocol.

UK Greenhouse Gas Emissions Yeor ended Year ended
et e .30 June 2022

Total Energy consumption (kWh) 214,456,587

| Gas 1,772,197 2,055,282

Electricity 207,524,329 215,261,826

Transport Fuel 5,414,256 5,040,650
Scope 1 emissions in t/C02e i Gas 319 376

| Gas Qil* 129 -

! Fluorinated Gases (HVAC} 618 -

| Owned transport {fleet) 1,208 1,120

! Total 2,274 1,496
Scope 2 emissions in t/C02e Market Based 9,943 639

Location Based 40,131 46,471
Scope 3%* emissions in t/C02e Business travel {employee owned 178 129

i and hire vehicles)

© Public Transport and 231 -

i Accormmodation

| Water Consumption 21 -

Waste in Operations 5 -

| Total 435 129
Total gross emissions in metric Market Based 12,846 2,264
tonnes CO2e (Scope 1,2 &3}

| Location Based 43,134 48,096
intensity Ratie 7CO2e / £m ! Market based method 20.5 3.49
revenue %

. Location based method 68.30 74.31

Footnotes:

Emissions sources reparted are whera we have verifiable data to support.

**This is not a complete Scope 3 Inventory; we are currently working towards understanding carbon emissions associated with our supply
chain.

*Does not include emissions associated with portable diesel generators.

The following standards and guidance are used to both monitar and report on our relevant carbon emission

SOUrces:

e Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard developed by World Resource
Institute (WRI) and World Business Council for Sustainable Development (WBSCD) which can be accessed
via https://gheprotocol.org/standards

* Green House Gas Reporting: Conversion factors 2022: full set, used to report on 2022 greenhouse gas
emissions. Access available via hitps://www.gov. uk/government/publications/greenhouse-gas-reporting-
conversion-factors-2022

*  Environmental Reporting Guidelines: Including streamlined energy and carbon reporting guidance March
2019.  Access available via bhitps://www.gov.uk/sovernment/publications/envircnmental-reporting-
guidelines-including-mandatory-greenhouse-gas-emissions-reporting-guidance
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Scope 1 Emissions

This year we have trialled several electric vehicles to heip gain a better understanding of operating an effective
electric vehicle business fleet for our field engineers. We have also installed electric car charging points at our
head office and plan to roll out further charging points across our other office locations.

Scope 2 Emissions

Argiva, like many businesses, has taken the opportunity following the pandemic to review ways of working to
ensure we have the right office environments for all employees. This has resulted in the sale of one office and
consolidation of working areas on larger sites to reduce the need for heating and lighting. These initiatives
delivered annual energy savings of over 165,000 kilowatt hours.

Our existing on-site solar generation across four of our sites continues to provide the national grid with clean
renewable energy. This year our sites generated over 200,000kWh of power, enough to support over 45
domestic homes in the UK using an average energy profile.

Environmental Enhancement

Energy Use Reduction

The old transmitters at our sites Meldrum, Pontop Pike and Rowridge have all undergone technical refreshes
and replaced with new more efficient technology. Transmitters at Washford, Droitwich and Holme Moss have
all been re-engineered, allowing them to operate at a reduce power consumption.

The combined impact of all these technology changes has reduced the overall energy consumptions across the
six sites by over 1750 Megawatts or 339 tonnes of carbon dioxide.

Biodiversity
Argiva is committed to enhance and protect our natural envirenment. Increasing biodiversity, helps to ensure
ecosystems are resilient to climate change and also helps control climate change through carbon sequestration.

Our site at Morn Hill, part of the South Downs National Park, provides a good example of where proactive
management can both support and enhance biodiversity. The site is managed predominantly using grazing
animals and scrub clearance to create ground conditions suitable for a variety of plant and animal species. This
year over 750 Brown Argus butterflies were recorded, the highest number since menitoring started in 1991, The
site also hosts a stable population of slow worms and common lizard, which is a great reflection of the overall
health of the habitat.

Resource Minimisation

Our ambition is to embed the principles of a circular economy into all aspects of our business operations to
ensure we are considering both the up and downstream effects of our decision making. This year Argiva recycled
over 100 tonnes of waste, achieving an average recycling rate of 46% across its operations.

Our employee canteens are a great example. We removed all single use plastic and promoted the use of bringing
your own drink and food receptacles,

Climate Change
As well as our commitment to reducing our carbon emission and becoming a net zero organisation we also
consider the impact of climate change on our business operations.

Climate Change Risk Governance

Arqgiva have implemented a Sustainability Committee consisting of member of ExCo and senior leaders across
the business. The role of the committee is to ensure that Argiva meets its environmental sustainability ambitions
and commitments,

Qutput from this committee is fed into the Operational Resilience Committee, a subcommittee of the Board.
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Climate Risk Management
Argiva have a large portfolio of sites. We have taken a risk-based approach and assessed the resilience of sites
with greater strategic importance for network resilience.

Cur assessment has focused primarily on environmental physical risks and opportunities such as:

* Flooding

*  Storms and severe weather
*  Rising temperature {for example heat stress on eguipment)

= Poor Air Quality

s Wildfires

*  Thraugh the risk assessment process the following physical risks have been deemed material and the
business impact and subsequent response has been provided

Risk / Opportunity

Potential impact

Business Response

Wildfires (for
example moorland
fires)

Wildfires can cause
significant damage to
Argiva assets and extreme
events could cause
catastrophic failure to our
sites and services

Full site audit completed on significant assets to assess
fire risk. Installation of fire breaks and increased
maintenance around perimeter fence and stay wires
to reduce risk of adjacent fires impacting Argiva assets

Increasing external
temperature

Unexpected increasing
external temperatures can
lead to instability in
equipment performance
leading to service failure.

Trial deployment of remote monitaring temperature
and humidity sensors. Operational readiness improved
through system monitoring reducing response times
to potential system failure, Opportunity to reduce
engineer resource through on-site monitoring.
Increased productivity and reduction in miles travelled
and associated carbon emissions

Storms and Severe
weather

Extreme weather events
can lead to hazardous
conditions accessing site
te undertake planned or
reactive maintenance.

Operations Centres monitor Meteorological Office
Weather forecasts daily and issue pro-active alerts,
which are issued to Field Qperations Managers to
allow forward planning of engineering resource

As our carbon abatement plans mature and formalise over this forthcoming financial year for our scope 1 and 2
emissions sources so will our level of understanding of the risks associated with our transition to a low carbon
economy. This process will identify those risks that are material, allowing them to be considered in the context
of the overall strategic direction of the organisation.
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Directors Report

Financial Risk Management

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group have been outlined previously in this report (see pages 51-
55). As a result of these, as well as the on-going business activities and strategy of the Group, Argiva is exposed
1o a variety of financial risks that include financing risk, purchase price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest

rate risk and foreign exchange risk.

The key financial risks affecting the Group are set out below, together with a summary of how these risks are
managed.

L 45 PpiEa g
High intlation risk has an adverse
impact on both operating and

. financing cashflows,

¢ The Group will need to refinance
at least part of our debt as it
. matures and may need additional
financing to cover capital
expenditure and certain other
expenses to support its growth
plans. The Group cannot be
certain that such financing will be
readily available on attractive or
historically comparable terms.

Breach of debt covenants and/or
a downgrade in our rating could
impact the availability of finance
or the comparability of terms.

Energy is a major component of
the Group’s cost base and is
subject to price volatility.

The Group is exposed to credit risk
on customer receivables.

kbt

The Group uses derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to adverse impacts to debt as a resuit of
inflation. Inflation-linked swaps convert fixed or
floating rate interest costs to RPI-linked costs.

A significant proportion of the Group’s revenue
contracts within core TV and radio products are RP}
index linked.

Increase in power costs are in part managed via pass-
through arrangements to customers.

The Group mitigates this risk by the strength of the
stable long-term investment grade capital structure in
place. Our BBB+/BBB (S&P/Fitch) ratings reflect our
strong ability to service and repay debt from our cash
flows over a reasonable period of time, maintaining
debt with a variety of medium- and long-term
maturities, so that over time we do not have a
significant concentration of debt due for refinancing in
any given year, and aiming to refinance debt well in
advance of the maturity date.

With regards to covenants the Group maintains
financial covenant monitoring and modelling, both
retrospectively and prospectively and maintains
regular dialogue with credit ratings agencies.

A proportion of this risk is managed via pass-through
arrangements to customers. The Group’s residual
exposure to fluctuations in the electricity price is
managed by forward purchasing the majority of power
requirements. Key revenue and cost milestones are set
on larger projects to ensure the financial risks of
volatile market pricing are mitigated.

Credit risk is managed through appropriate credit
checking procedures prior to taking on new customers;
and higher risk customers paying in advance of services
being provided. Performance is closely monitored to
ensure agreed service levels are maintained reducing
the level of queried payments and mitigating the risk
of uncollectible debts.
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The Group is exposed to
counterparty risks in its financing
operations.

Ensuring the Group has sufficient
available funds for working capital
requirements and planned growth
and funding for the Defined
Benefit pension scheme.

Exposure to interest rate risk due
to borrowing variabie rate bank
debt.

The Group operates from UK sites
and predominantly in the UK
market. While some customer
and supplier contracts are
denominated in other currencies
{mainly US Dollars and Euros), the
majority of the Group’s revenues
and costs are sterling based, and
accordingly exposure to foreign
exchange is limited,.

The Group carefully manages the credit risk on liquid
funds and derivative financial instruments with
balances currently spread across a range of major
financial institutions which have satisfactory credit
ratings assigned by international credit ratings
agencies. The levels of credit risk are monitored
through the Group’s on-going risk management
processes, which include a regular review of the credit
ratings. Risk in this area is limited further by setting a
maximum level and term for deposits with any single
counterparty.

The Group maintains cash reserves and access to
undrawn committed facilities to cover forecast
requirements. As at 30 June 2022 the Group had
£251.2m cash avaitable and £66m and £150m undrawn
working capital and liguidity facilities respectively
available to cover senior interest payment if required.
The Group also has a £30.0m facility to support
‘Comms Hub Receivables Purchasing’. The Board
considers the availability and adequacy of working
capitai funding requirements in conjunction with
forming its long-term financial pfan for the business. A
further £50m working capital facility has been
established post year end which can be drawn as
required.

The Group uses derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to rising interest rates. The Group maintains
a hedging policy to manage interest rate risk and to
ensure the certainty of future interest cash flows and
compliance with debt covenants. The derivative
contracts held are fixed rate hedging, split between
interest rates and inflation-finked swaps. The Group
has, however, elected not to apply hedge accounting
meaning gains and losses are recognised through the
income statement as fair values fluctuate (2022:
£76.1m loss; 2021: £11.1m loss). interest rate swaps
convert variable rate interest costs to fixed rate
interest costs while inflation-linked swaps convert
fixed or floating rate interest costs to RPi-linked costs,
which fluctuate in line with the RP! index as do a
significant proportion of the Group’s revenue
contracts.

Management regularly monitors the impact of foreign
exchange risks and assess the need to put any
mitigating financial instruments in place. This risk is not
currently considered to be material and no currency
financial instruments are held at 30 June 2022.
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Internal control over financial reporting

The Board of Directors review the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal centrol, including risk
management systems and financial and operational controls (see page 50).

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee includes representation from the Board of Directors. Mike Parton will chair Audit
& Risk Committee meetings {or another committee member may be appointed to chair the meetings as
required}.

The Committee has responsibilities of oversight of risk management procedures, monitoring compliance and
regulatory issues (including whistieblowing arrangements) and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal contrals and internai audit function.

The Committee is authorised to seek any information it requires from any employee of the Company in erder to
perform its duties, and to abtain any external fegal or other professional counsel it requires.

Meetings of the Committee are attended, at the invitation of the Chairman of the Committee, by the external
auditors, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and representatives from the business as
required.

Internal Audit

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for reviewing the work undertaken by the Group’s internal audit
function, assessing the adequacy of the function’s resource and the scope of its procedures. The internal audit
function agrees its annual audit plan with the Audit and Risk Committee and regularly reports its findings and
recommendations. The Group's internal audit plan incorporates an annual rolling review of business activities
and incorporates both financial and non-financial controls and procedures.

External Audit

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the Group’s external auditor. The Committee makes an assessment of the
auditors’ independence and objectivity taking into account the relationship with the auditors as a whole,
including the provision of any non-audit services.

PwC were re-appointed as external auditor in 2016 following a competitive tender process.

The auditors have provided certain non-audit services, principally in relation to non-audit assurance. The Audit
and Risk Committee considers the acceptability of all non-audit services with the auditors in advance of
commencement of work to confirm acceptability and ensures that appropriate safeguards of audit
independence are established and applied, such as partner rotation.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, chaired by Sally Davis, is established to make recommendations to the Board
regarding executive remunerations, including pension rights and to recommend and monitor the level and
structure of remuneration for each member of the Executive Committee. Additional oversight is extended to
setting and monitoring reward and incentive policies, including the bonus schemes, and reviewing and making
recommendations in relation to wider reward policies.
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Governance and Nomination Committee

The Governance and Nomination Committee, chaired by Mike Parton, is established to give oversight to the size,
structure and composition (including skills, experience, independence, knowledge and diversity) of the Board to
ensure that the continued [eadership ability is sufficient to allow the business to compete effectively in the
market. This also includes oversight of the succession planning for directors (and other senior executives where
appropriate}.

Operational Resilience Committee

The Operational Resilience Committee, chaired by Mike Darcey, has oversight of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the operational resilience strategies and procedures of the Group (including principles, policies and practices
adopted in complying with all statutory, and sub-statutory, standards and regulatory requirements in respect of
safety, health and environment ('SHE’j matters affecting the activities of the Group). This includes consideration
and risk management of areas of significant and individual cyber security, physical security, business continuity
and SHE risk.

Equal Opportunities policy

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the respective
aptitudes and abilities of the applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every
effort is made to ensure that their employment with the Group continues, and the appropriate training is
arranged. It is the policy of the Group that the training, career development and promotion of a disabled person,
should, as far as possible, be identical to that of a person who does not have a disability. Further information on
how Argiva supports its employees can be found on page 36.

Political Donations

No political donations were made during the year (2021: none).

Charitable donations

The Group has made £0.1m (2021: £0.1m) of charitabie donations in the year.
Research and development

The Group performs research and development into new products and technology, the costs of which are
capitalised where they meet the criteria for capitalisation in accardance with the Group’s accounting policy. The
research costs expensed in the year were £1.5m {2021: £2.0m). In addition, the Group carries out research and
development as part of its contract bid processes and these costs are expensed as part of the bid costs unless
the development expenditure can be capitalised. The bid costs expensed during the year total £1.4m (2021:
£1.3mj.

Development costs incurred as part of capital expenditure projects, which support customers contracts, are
included with the total project spend within property, plant and equipment. The Group’s capital expenditure in
the year was £98.5m (2021: £104.0m) and includes capitalised labour of £26.1m (2021: £34.4m}. Other
development costs are capitalised within intangible assets. In the year, new development costs capitalised total
£1.8m (2021: £0.3m} with amartisation of £2.5m (2021: £1.6mj charged against such capitalised development
costs.

Overseas branches

The Group has trading branches based in the Isle of Man, the Channel Islands and France.
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Events after the reporting date

On 19 August 2022, the Group signed a commitment for a £450m term facility and a £50m Working Capital
Facility both with an expected maturity date of 2028. These facilities are floating rate in nature with a margin
over SONIA. Argiva Broadcast Intermediate Limited (a subsidiary of the Group} is the borrower of this
arrangement. The proceeds of this facility when drawn will be used to redeem the Groups outstanding £625m
Junior bonds.

The maturity of Shareholder Loan notes have also been extended since year end and now have maturity dates
ranging from March 2029 to March 2030.

On 21 September 2022, a second interim stage payment of £10.0m was received from the insurers in relation to
the Bilsdale fire. At 30 June 2022, this represented a contingent asset and has therefore not been recognised in
the income statement.

On 23 September 2022, it was announced that the corporation tax rate change from 19% to 25% with effect
from 1 April 2023 was to be cancelled. For further detail see notes 12 and 19 of the financial statements.

Dividends and transfers to reserves

Now Digital (East Midlands), a Group company which includes a non-controlling interest, declared a dividend in
the year of £nil (2021: £0.4m).

The Directors’ of the Groyup have not recommended a dividend in the year (2021: nil).
The consolidated loss for the year of £634.6m (2021: restated® profit of £480.5m) was transferred to reserves.
Going Concern

The Strategic report includes information on the structure of the business, the business envirenment, financial
review for the year and uncertainties facing the Group. Notes 20, 23 and 25 of the consolidated financial
statements include information on the Group’s cash, borrowings and derivative respectively; and financiat risk
management information presented within this report.

The Group meets our day-to-day working capital and financing reguirements through the net cash generated
from our operations. The Group performs a review of going concern through a review of forecasting including
cash flow forecasts and considering the requirements of capital expenditure and debt repayments and including
any severe but plausible scenarios. The Group has sufficient financial resources which, together with internally
generated cash flows, will continue to provide sufficient sources of liquidity to fund our current operations,
including our contractual and commercial commitments both in terms of capital programmes and financing as
they fall due. This is further supported by the new debt facilities established post year end, see note 31 for
further information. For this reason, the Directors are confident that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing this financial information.

Future Developments

The Group plans to continue in its commercial and operational business in accordance with its strategy. Further
detail is contained within the Strategic report on page 19.

¢ The prior year profit has been restated to reflect adjustments to the tax credits recognised. See note 12 to
the financial statements for detail.

70



Argiva Group Limited (05254001)
Annual Report and Financial Statgments — Year Ended 30 June 2022

Ownership and Directors

A description of the ownership of the Group and the Board of Directors holding office during the year and up to
the date of signing of the financial statements can be found on page 45.

At 30 June 2022, Mike Parton was the Group’s independent Chairman and Katrina Dick was the Company
Secretary. Katrina Dick was appointed to this role on 6 April 2022, This role was previously held by Jeremy Mavor
who resigned on this date.

For details on the background of the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee please refer to page 45.
Details of the statutory directors of the Company are shown on page 135.
Directors |Indemnities

The Company has provided an indemnity for its Directors and the Company Secretary, which is a qualifying third-
party indemnity for the purposes of the Companies Act Z006. The indemnity was in force during the full financial
year and up to the date of approval of the financial statements.

Disclosure of information to the Independent Auditors
The Directors of the Group in office at the date of approval of this report confirm that:

- S0 far as the Directors are aware there is no relevant audit information of which the Auditors are
unaware; and

- Each Director has taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s Auditors are aware of that
information.
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Birectors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards and the Company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure
Framework”, and applicable law).

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

s state whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed for the
Group financial statements and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 have been
followed for the Company financial statements, subject to any material departures disciosed and
explained in the financial statements;

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Group and Company will continue in business,

The Directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are also responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group’s and Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website. Legislation in the

United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions.

On behalf of the Board

S —

Mike Parton

Director
26 September 2022
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Independent auditors’ report to the
members of Arqiva Group Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion:

« Argiva Group Limited's Group financial statements and Cunpany financial statements (the “financial statements”) give
a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2022 and of the Group’s ioss
and the Group's cash flows for the year then ended;

« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards;

« the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure
Framework”, and applicable law); and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the "Annual
Report"}, which comprise: the Consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at 30 June 2022; the
Consolidated income statement, Consolidated statement of comprehensive income, Consolidated cash flow statement and
Consolidated and Company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial
statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibiliies for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Qur audit approach

Overview

Audit scope

+ For the Group Financial Statements we performed an audit of the complete financial information of three entities and
the consolidation. We also conducted audit procedures on specific line items for 12 entities to ensure sufficient
coverage. The audit work performed achieved coverage of 95% of revenue and 99% of adjusted EBITDA (consisting
of continuing profit before tax, finance income, finance costs, other gains and losses and exceptional income and
expenses). All entities have been audited by the Group audit team and hence no component auditor has been involved
in the audit of the Consolidated financial statements

Key audit matters

s Carrying value of goodwill (Group}

+ Recognition and recoverability of deferred tax assets (Group)

+ Valuation of defined benefit pension scheme obligation (Group)
+ Recoverahility of intercompany receivable balances (Parent)

Materiality
s  Overall Group materiality: £11,800,000 based on approximately 3.5% of Adjusted EBITDA,
« Overall Company materiality: £200,000 based on approximately 2% of Net Assets.
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s Performance materiality: £8,900,000 (Group) and £150,000 {Company).

The scope of our audit

As pan of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
{whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit
strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and
any comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.
Recoverability of intercompany receivable balances (Parent} is a new key audit matter this year. Valuation of financial

instruments and Covid-19 impacts, which were key audit matters last year, are no longer included because of the limited
ongoing impact of Covid-19 on the Group and Company, and the vatuation of financial instruments being less complex

and less significant in the current year. Otherwise, the key audit matters below are consistent with last year.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Carrying value of goodwill (Group)

IAS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’ requires management to
perform annual impairment assessments in respect of
goodwill. The Group's goodwill is material, amounting to
£1,457 4m (£1,339.6m allocated to 'Media Distribution’
and £117.8m allocated to 'Smart Utilities Networks'), and
the impairment assessments performed over goodwill
include a number of assumptions which are subject to
management judgement and estimates. Our elevated
audit risk relates predominantly to the Smart Utilities
Network CGU, given the lower headroom on this CGU
and the greater uncertainty around the future growth of
the utilities sector.

Refer to page 94 and page 108 (note 4 - critical
accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty —\mpairment of goodwill and note 14 -
goodwill)

We obtained an understanding of the allocation of goodwill
to cash generating units in management's impairment
model and assessed its appropriateness.

We tested the impairment model, assessing its
mathematical accuracy, the accuracy of inputs to the model
and the reasonableness of the assumptions applied by
management in assessing the recoverable amount for each
cash generating unit. These included the assumptions for
revenue and cost growth, capital expenditure and the
discount rate used.

We tested the cash flows and agreed these to Board
approvals and performed 2 ook back test to assess
accuracy of forecasting.

We involved our PwC valuations experts to evaluate the
discount rate and terminal growth rate used to calculate the
present value of the cash flows and confirmed these were
calculated using an acceptable methodology and concluded
that the discount rate and terminal growth rate is materially
in line with what we would expect.

We reviewed management's sensitivity analysis and
perfarmed our own sensitivity analysis considering various
reasonably possible scenarios impacting key assumptions,
including forecast cash flows, terminal growth rate and
discount rates. Based on this testing, we considered
whether the carrying value of the goodwill balances were
adequately supponrted by the value-in-use impairment
model prepared by management, and found there to be
sufficient headroamn.

Recognition and recoverability of deferred tax assels
{Group)

Following the introduction of legislation in previous years
which restricts interest deductions, the Group recognised
a significant deferred tax asset at that time. At year end,
a deferred tax asset of £233.8m is capitalised on the
balance sheet with a further £478.4m of potential
deferred tax assets not recognised on the basis that they
are not considered to be recoverable.

We obtained management's detailed workings which set
out the various elernents of the deferred tax asset, including
support for judgements taken on recognition. The
appropriateness of this assessment was in conjunction with
our taxation specialists.

We challenged management's assumptions in relation to
tax losses and the evidence gvailabie to support the
recognition of losses arising in various entities, including
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There is judgement involved in the determination of the
elements of the deferred tax asset to recognise and the
value of that recognitian, including the cxtent to which
there are foreseeable taxable profits to support its
recoverability.

Refer to page 94 and page 114 (note 4 - critical
accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty — deferred tax and note 19 —deferred tax)

consideration of whether specific steps are required in
order to enable the value of the losses to be realised and
the stage of Arqiva’s steps towards recovery.

We obtained management's forecast of taxable profits and
agreed those to the approved long term plan, and also
agreed the consistency of these forecasts with those
utilised in management's goodwill impatrment assessment.
The calculations of the ferecast taxable profits were
reviewed, and an analysis of the sensitivity of the utilisation
horizon to variations in EBITDA was considered.

We further assessed the potential deferred tax assets not
recognised and concluded that only assets that are
expected to be available to the Group have been
recognised and judgement relating to these unrecognised
assets will remain under review and reassessed as the
Group's circumstances and relevant tax legislation evolves.
We have reviewed the disclosure over the significant
judgement in the financial statements and we concur with
the disclosures made.

As a result of our work performed no material errors were
noted in respect of the amount of deferred tax asset
recognised in the financial statements at 30 June 2022.

Valuation of defined benefit pension scheme ohligation
(Group)

The Group operates one defined benefit plan which has a
surplus at the year end of £61.0m (2021: £47.1m). The
valuation of the defined benefit plan obligation (£184.6m,
2021: £248.8m) includes a high level of estimation
uncertainty, comprising several different key
assumptions. There is a risk that an error within one or a
combination of those assumptions could lead to a
material misstatement in the financial statements.

Refer to page 95 and 129 (note 4 - critical accounting
judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty —
Actuarial assumptions used to determine the carrying
amount of the Group’s defined benefit plan liabilities and
note 29 - retirement benefits)

With the support of our PwC actuarial specialists we
assessed the appropriateness of key assurnptions used to
derive the pension benefit obligation, including relativity to
our acceptable ranges based on market data, and
concluded that all of the key assumptions are appropriate.

We also tested the key inputs used by management’s
expert to supporting evidence with no exceptions noted. We
reviewed the actuarial report and enguired of
management's actuarial expert. We understood how
management addresses the risk of the actuary’'s modelling
accuracy and the controls in place for the modelling, and
performed our own data validation checks. We also
performed risk assessment analytical procedures on both
the financial and demographic assumptions.

As a result of our work performed no material errors were
noted in respect of the pension benefit obligation
recognised in the financial staterments at 30 June 2022.

Recoverahility of intercompany receivable balances
(Parent)

The Company has balances receivable from a Group
company amounting to £4.4m (2021: £4.0m) as at 30
June 2022. This is considered a key audit matter as there
is consideration in the assessment of the recoverability of
receivables.

Refer to page 144 (note 4 - Other receivables)

We evaluated management's assessment of the
recoverability of intercompany receivables, including
compliance with the requirements of IFRS 9 and expected
credit loss methodology, and reviewed and independently
tested an assessment of the ability of other Group
companies to repay by comparing the receivable to net
assets of the counterparties.

As the net asset values did not support the recoverability of
the intercompany receivables, we considered the assets
held and confirmed that by taking into account the liquidity
of assets held that the intercompany receivables are
considered to be recoverable.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company, the accounting processes and
controls, and the industry in which they operate.
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We tailorad the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work ta be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company, the accounting processes and
controls, and the industry in which they operate. Argiva Group Limited's business is carried out through a single principal
trading subsidiary, aligned into two customer-facing business units; Media Distribution and Smart Utilities Networks,
supported by the Group’s Cperations, Technology and Transformation and Corporate functions. In addition, there are a
number of entities which provide financing to the operations.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative threshoids for materiality.
These, together with gualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect
of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judigement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Financial statements - Group Financial statements - Company
Overall £11,800,000. £200,000.
materiality
How we Based on approximately 3.5% of Adjusted Based on approximately 2% of Net Assets
determined it EBITDA
Rationale for Based on our professional judgement, Based on our professional judgement, net assets is an
beachmark adjusted EBITDA is an appropriate appropriate measure to assess the performance of the
applied adjusted measure to assess the Company and is a generally accepted auditing
performance of the Group, which focuses benchmark. A rule of thumb of approximately 2% is
on the underlying trading results. appropriate given that the entity itself is not a PIE.

For each component in the scope of our Group audit, we allocated a materiality that is tess than our overall Group
materiality. The range of materiality allocated across components was between £0.01m and £11.2m. Certain components
were audited to a local statutory audit materiality that was also less than our overall Group matenality.

We use performance materiality to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected
and undetected misstatements exceeds overall materiality. Specifically, we use performance materiality in determining the
scope of our audit and the nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures,
for example in determining sample sizes. Qur performance materiality was 75% of overall materiality, amounting to
£8,900,000 for the Group financial statements and £150,000 for the Company financial statements.

in determining the performance materiality, we considered a number of factors - the history of misstatements, risk
assessment and aggregation risk and the effectiveness of controls - and concluded that an amount at the upper end of our
normal range was appropriate.

We agresd with those charged with governance that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit
above £590,000 (Group audit} and £10,000 (Company audit) as well as misstatements below those amounts that, in our
view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have perfarmed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the Group's
and the Company's ability to continue as a2 going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annuai Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
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in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2008 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain
opinicns and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directars’ Report for the year ended 30 June 2022 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ respensibilities in respect of the financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framewaork and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Company's ability to
continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the Group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws
and reguliations related to the Communications Act 2003 and UK Tax law, and we considered the extent to which non-
compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that
have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated management’s incentives
and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and
determined that the principal risks were related to management's manipulation of key performance measures such as
adjusted EBITDA {consisting of continuing profit before tax, finance income, finance costs, other gains and losses and
exceptional income and expenses). We have determined adjusted EBITDA is the key metric for stakeholders, such as the
Group's ultimate shareholders and lenders. It is considered that the most likely risk of management manipulation of this
metric is through the posting of manual journals and management bias in significant accounting judgements and estimates.
Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

» Discussions with management and Directors, including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations and fraud;

» Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management and considering risk of management bias in their
significant accounting judgements and estimates as disclosed in Note 4 of the financial statements;

« Identifying and testing unexpected journal entries, including any journal entries posted with unusual account
combinations or journals posted by unexpected users;

+ Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;
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« Reviewing financial statement disclosures made by management in their significant accounting estimates and
judgements as disclosed in Note 4 of the financial statements; and
* As required by ISA 240, incorporating an element of unpredictability into aur audit testing.

There are inherert limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are lass likely to become aware of instances
of non-compliance with faws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements. Aiso, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations,
or through collusion.

Qur audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data
auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than testing
complete populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In
other cases, we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample is
selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors' report. In our engagement letter, we
alsc agreed to describe our audit approach, including communicating key audit matters.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’'s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do nof, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required fo report to you if, in our opinion:

= we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« cerain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

1 Contle

Nigel Comelle (Senior Statutery Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Landon

26 September 2022

~
W
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Consolidated income statement

Year ended 30 June 2022

Year ended 30 June 2021

(Restated)*
Note Lestiring Discertinues Cantind.ng fherertmues
cperatiors aperarns Total operations aperatiens Toral
£rn L im £m £m fin
Revearnued 5 6241 624.1 6423 449
Caat of sales {202.8) {202.8) 1230.1}
Gross profit 421.3 - 421.3 412.2 2.8
Depreciution i6 158 G I [xg
Armartisation 15 fis. 4G 7)
Exceptional operating expenses’ 7 rig I
disposal of assersd 7 17 5) £ 5}
Pz ment s assers 35
Other operahinG exoenies (B9 N [EEF {03 <4
ety Cr0nEe s {2490 &) - [290.8) [283.0) (1.0}
Other sgome 7.7 77 a3 i)
Errosugnal ather e ? 7 FRY) 5.0
Operating profit 3 143.2 . 143.2 138.5 1.9 140.4
Firance income 9 2.9 39 27 2.7
Finiance costs 10 {732.0) - {733.0) [663.0) 0.1} {563.1}
7 - 1,028.3 1,028 2
Chhior wams ahed 1585es 11 (76.7) (76 1} (7.8} {67 .8)
tageplional other garn and oses” 11 {7.6) {7.6)
{Lose] / profit hefore tax {662.0} - [662.0) {5597.2) 1,040.1 442.9
Tax 12 27.4 - 27.4 433 (5.7 376
Loss rofit for the year from ‘ : L
{Loss) / p the y (634.6)
continuing operations
Profit for the year fram docontnued
operations
{Lass} [ profit for the year {634.6)

Attribuinable to.

Owners of the Company

Nori-contrelling mterests

1624.8)

(634.6);

Further comments on conselidated income statement line

1 Prioe year figures have heen recizted ¢

items are presented in the notes to the financial statements.

creflect = adpistinent to the tas charge See note 17 for detail.

2 Revenue £ ttuted net of exceplional senvice credits rerognised in the vear See note 7 for detan

*Evceplonal ttems are presented 1o assist with the understanding of the Group’s performance Leg note 7 for further information
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

{Loss) [ profit for the year
Iltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuarizl gans on detined henefit pension schemes

Maovement on deterred 15y relabng to pension tthemes

Items that may be reclassified subseguently to profit or loss

Exchange dierences on transiztion of fToregn oper

Total other comprehensive incorme

Total camprehensive {loss) f income

Atinbutable to:

Cwners of the Company

Nere confrolling inter

Al e of other comprenenave meanee relate tn 2ont

<o year figy have heer sled b

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

(Restated)!

Note fm for
(634.6) 480.5

29 6.7 54
. (£ £}

5.0 19.8

{0.2) a2

4.8 200

{629.8) 500.5

BN AT Lhier 1 G the tay (herpe Gee rate 1I{u oetald

81  Arqiva Group Limited {company reg 05254001)



Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2022

Consolidated statement of financial position

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
{Restated}?
Note £Em £m
Non-current asiets
Soudwill 14 1,457.4 1,457.4
Other intangibie asoets 15 36.4 403
Property, piart and aguipmernt 16 13011 13520
Deferrod tax 19 123.8 208 1
Retiroment benefis 29 610 471
Interest i ass0Ciates 3nd Jomt venTLras 17 0.1 6.1
Dervative finanoial instruments, 24 30 72
3,122.8 3,152.2
Current assets
Trade and ather receivables 18 123.0 1280
Contract aswets 18 41.5 61.2
Cash and cash e-uivalents 20 251.2
Total assets 3,548.5
Current liabilities
Trode anrd other pavabies 22 {121.0) £1200)
Lorpaoraton Lax 22 {2.4) 12.4)
Contract habiitlies 72 {106.2) [99.5})
BOrOwWINgs I3 [2,961.3) {2,332.9)
Provisinng 6 (3.9} (3.2} )
(31948 (2,558.0)
Net current liahiities {2,769.1} 12,125.3}
Non-current lighjlities
Contract hataiitiog 12 1371.4} 355.5)
Borrowings 33 {3 777.4) 13,5404
Gervative frnancial ingdroments 25 {345.5) {333.5)
Provisinns 26 (33.9) (36.2)
{4,578.2) (4,621.6)
Total Habilities {7,773.0) (7,3179.6)
Net liahilities {4,224.5) [3,594.7)

The Consaldsted caternem of binanmal position s continued an the next page.

! Frior year figures haye heen restalad to teflect a0 adpastment to the tax charge, 35 weli ar the zesooated tax batances See nnte 12 for detarl.
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Consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£m {Restated)?

Equity
Share capital 655393 5533
Share premiurn 3156 3156
Accumufated (osees 15,154.5) {4,485 1)
Transiation reserve 7 {315}
Total eguity sttributable 1o owners of the Farent (4.226.1) {3,585 1)

Non-corirciing nterest

Total equity {4,224.5) {3,594.7)

Thewe finencial statenonte on pages 8010 134 were approved by the Roard of Drectors and authonged for sue o0 76 Sepremher
oogned on s bebslf by

e -

2 They were

Mike Parton — et

oo tex champe, @5 wetlas e zosoricted tar bawnre s See note 35 for getall
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Total Lguity

attributabile to No#-
Share share Transhation owtiers of the controlling Total
Note capitai” premiune Accumulated losses reserve Parent mterests eguity
im £m £m £m fm £m £m
Balance at 1 july 2020 653.9 315.6 {5,065.1) (0.7} {4,096.3) 1.2 14,095.1)
ralt for the year (Restated ! - . AR0.2 - 480.2 0.3 4805
Other comprehensive incorme - - 19.8 0.2 200 - 20.0
Total comprehensive incoemes . . 5500 .2 i RO 03 BSOS
Oividends paid 13 - - - B : e} (0.1)
Balance at 30 June 2021 (Restated)! 653.9 315.6 (4,565.1} {0.5) (3,596.1) 1.4 {3,594.7)
Laws for the year B : {6348} {634.8) 0.2 (634.6}
Other comprebensive loos 5.0 (0.2} 4.8 - 4.8
Tolal comprehensive Inss . - {6249.8} 032 {5304 0.2 (F25.8)
Balance at 30 June 2022 653.9 315.6 {5,154.9} {0.7) {4,226.1} 1.6  {4,224.5)

*Comprises 653,928,000 (2021, 653,922,000} authorised, ssued and fully paid ardinary shares of £1 each.

Uiag: yest igures bave been cectated to reflect s adjustment Lo the tas charpe, a5 wellan the sssocaterd deferred tas halances Tee nnte 12 fol detail
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Nate Year ended Year ended
30 fune 2022 36 June 2021
im £m

Net cash inflow from operating activities 27 3313 1987

Investing activities

interest received 0.8

Purchase of tanginle assets (83.9) (855
Purchase of mtangible assets (4.8 06
Receipt of msurance stege payments 5.0

ispu of subsidiary net of cash dispased and rred mrome generated b _ .
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from investing activities (82.9) 1,734.3

Financing activities

18 of external horroy 22
Repaymiernt af external berrowings 33
Move ment in bhorrows
riterest pald
Repaymant of capial element of lease raetals 28 (40.7}
triterest glement of | i h {74)
Cash settloment of prinoipat accretinn onntlanon linked swans 25 {90.40) {145}
Zehlicsue nogis and facility arra it foes {143
Briak cout on early febt rapaymer: rick o
Casb ouflow on redernoton of cwaps
Net cash outflow from financing activities {240.7)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 7.7 1334
Cack and ash enuivalents ot the begor of thefiran

ash equeziome gt and of the financisl year i 7 7 251.2 7 " 7243.5 "
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Notes to the Group financial statements

1 General information, authorisation of financial statements and Statement of

Compliance

Argiva Group Limited (‘AGL’) (‘the
Company’) is a private campany
timited by shares and incorporated in
England, in the United Kingdom
('UK'} under the Companies Act 2006
under registration number
05254001. The address of the
registered office is Crawley Court,
Winchester, Hampshire, Fngland
5021 2QA.

These consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 3¢

June 2022 comprise the Company
and its suhsidiaries {together the
"Group").

The nature of the Group’s operations
and its principal activities are set out
in the Strategic Report on pages 16
o 18.

Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in
accordance with UK-adopted

International Accounting Standards
and with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 as applicable to
companies reporting under those
standards.

The Company has elected to prepare
its financiai statements in
accordance with FRS 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework and with the
reguirements of the Companies Act
2006, These are presented on pages
1355 t0 1455.

2 Adoption of new and revised Standards

New and revised Standards
The following new and revised 3tandards and interpretations have bean adopted in the current year. Their adoption
has not had any significant impact on the amounts reported in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 interest Rate Benchmatk Reform

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRS Standards that have been issued hut are not yet effective:

IFRS 17 {Including the June 2020
amendments to IFRS 17)

Amcndments 1o FRS 10 and 1AS 28

Amendments to [AS 1
Amendrients to IFRS 3
Amendments to 1A 16

Amendments to 1AS 37
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards
2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to [AS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statcments 2

Arendments to IAS 8

Amendments to |AS 12

Insurance Contracts

Szle aor Conttibution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or joint Venture

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-currant
Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment—Proceeds before Intended
Usa

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilhing a Contract
Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International
Einancial Reporting Standards, IFRS 8 Financial Instruments,
IFRS 16 Leases, and 1AS 41 Agriculture

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Definition of Accounting Extimates
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities atising from a
Single Transaction

Argiva Group Limited (company reg 05254001)
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3 Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These conselidated financial
statements have been prepared in
accordance with UK-adopted
Internationa! Accounting Standards
and with the reguirements of the
Campanies Act 2006 as applicable 1o
companies reporting under those
standards.

The financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis,
except for the valuation of finandial
instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below. Histaorical
costis generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in
exchange for gnods and services. The
principal accounting policies adopted
are set out below. These policies
have been applied consistently
across the comparative financial
neriods included within these
financial staterments.

The Campany’s financial statements
have been prepared under FRS 101
and in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 and are
included in this reporl - see page
1355,

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial
statenients incorporate the financist
statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company
{its subsidiaries, together ‘the
Group’) made up to 30 June 2022

Cortrol iz achigved when the
Company:

e has demonstrable power over
the relevant activities of the
investes;

e s exposed, or kas rights, to
variabie return from its
involvement with the investes;
and

¢ has the ability to use its power
1o affect its returns.

87 Argiva Group Limited {company reg_}jSi 4001)

The Company reassesses whether or
not it cortrols an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed
above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins
when the Company obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, the results of
subsidiaries acguired or disposed of
during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from
the date the Company gains controf
until the date when the Company
ceases to cantrol the subsidiary.

intra-group profits have been
eliminated. Undertakings, other than
subsidiary undertakings, in which the
Group has an investment
representing not less than 20% of the
voting rights and over which it exerts
significant influence are treated as
associated undertakings. Where the
Group has an investrment that has
joint control, this is treated as a joint
venture. Associates and joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity
methaod of accounting in accordance
with tAS 28 ‘Investmients in Associates
and Joint Ventures’.

Going concern

Historically the Group has reported
‘osses and has a significant net
lizbility position on the Statement of
Financial Position, caused primarily
by debt and the related financing
costs. However, the Group has
cortinued to generate strong
operating cashflows.

The Group meets our day-to-day
working capital and financing
requirestients through the net cash
generated from our operations. The
Group performs a review of going
concern through a review of
forecasting including cash flow
forecasts and considering the
requirements of capital expenditure
ard debt repayments and including
any severe but plausible scenarios,

The Group has sufficient financial
resources which, together with
irternally generated cash flows, will
continue to provide sufficient
sources of liquidity to fund our
current operations, incduding our
contractual and cormmercial
cormmitments both in terms of
capital programmes and financing as
they fall due. For this reason, the
Directors are confident that the
Group has adeguate resources to
continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future. Thus, the
Group continues to adopt the going
concern hasls of accounting in
preparing this finandial information.

Revernue recognition

Revenue represents the gross inflow
of economic benefit for services
provided utilising Argiva’s
communications infrastructure,
completion of significant enginesring
projects and the sale of
cornrunications equipment.
Rovenue is stated net of value added
tax. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received
or receivable.

On inceptian of a contract,
performance obligations are
identified for each of the distinct
goods ar services that have been
promised to e provided o the
customer. The consideration
specified in the contract is allocated
te each performance obligation
identified based on their relative
standalone selling prices and is
recognised as revenue as they are
satisfied. Determining the
standalone selling price often
requires judgement and may be
derived from regulated prices, list
prices, a cost-plus derived price, or
the price of similar products when
sold on 3 standalone hasis by Argiva
or a competitor. In some cases it may
be appropriate to use the contract
price when this represents a bespoke
price that would he the same for a
similar customer in a similar
cirrumstance.
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Cash received or invoices raised in
advance are taken o deferred
intome and recognised as contract
liahilities, and subhsequenthy
recognised as revenue when the
services are provided. Where
consideration received in advance is
discaunted, reflecting a significant
financing compornient, it is reflected
within revenue and interest payahle
and similar charges on a gross basis.

Revenue recognised in advance of
cash being received or an invoice
being raised is recognised as accrued
income within contract assets and
subsequently reclassified to
receivables when the right to
consideration is unconditional.
Invoices are issued in line with
contract terms,

The Group recognises deferred
income within contract liabilities
which relates to cash received in
relation to future services for TSAs
and the utilisation of hroadcast sites
for telecommunications equioment
as a result of the sale of the
Teiecams business, The contract
liability associated with the
utilisation of broadcast sites and
equipment is expected to be
refeased over the next 34 years.

The Group does nat have any
material abligations in respect of
returns, refunds or warranties.

The following summarises the
performance obligations we have
identified, and provides information
on the timing of when they are
satisfied and the related revenue
recognition policy. The revenue
expected to be recognised in future
periods for contracts in place at 30
June 2022 that contain unsatisfied
performance obligations is included
in note 5,

Rendering of services

Pertormance obligations under
contracts for the rendering of
services, which inciudes netwaork
access riphts and licence ownership,
are identified for each distinct
service or deliverable for which the

customer has contracted and are
considered to he satisfied over the
time period that the services or
deliverables are delivered. Revenue
is recognised over time in fine with
the service provision over the
contractual period and appropriately
reflects the pattern by which the
nerformance obligation is satisfied,
Such revenues include television and
radio transmission services, media
services, and machine-to-machine
connectivity.

for long-term services contracts
revenue is recognised on a straight-
line basls over the term of the
contract. However, if the
performance pattern is other than
straight line, revenue is recognised as
services are provided, usually an a2n
output or network coverage basis.
Such revenues include Smart
metering netwark build and service
operation.

Pre-contract costs relate to the
Srnart Utilities Network contracts
and are incurred in the initial set up
phase and deferred. These costs are
then recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis
over the remaining contractual term,
uniess the pattern of service delivery
indicates a different profite is
appropriate. These costs are directly
altributable to specific contracts,
refate to future activity, witl generate
future economic benefits and are
assessed for recoverability on &
regular basis. Costs related to
delivering services under long-term
contractual arrangements are
expensed as incurred.

The Group holds contracts which
include a customer’s right to receive
credits in the event of service loss.
Provisions for service credits are
recognised through a reduction in
revenue which reflects the expected
value of any such service credits. The
Group only recognises revenus to
the extent that it is highly prohbabie
that there will not he a2 material
reversal in the future.

Delivery of engineering projects

Artiva provides support to its
customers by undertaking various
engineering projects. Contracts for
the delivery of engineering projects
are split into specific performance
obligations. Performance obligations
relating to services are satisfied over
the time period that services are
delivered, performance ohligations
relating to the provision of assets are
satisfied at the point in time that
contro! passes to the customer.
Revenue from such projects, which
are long-term {greater than 12
months) contractual arrangements,
ts recognised hased on satisfaction of
the identified performance
obligations using the percentage of
completion method, The stage of
completion is based on the portion
of costs incurred as a percentage of
total costs. Profit is recognised, if the
final outcome can be assessed with
reasonable certainty, by including
revenue and related costs in the
income statement as contract
activity progresses.

Aloss on afixed price contract is
recognised immediately when it
hecomes probable that the contract
cost wilt exceed the total contract
revenue.

Sute of communications equipment

Performance obligations from the
sate of communications equipment
provided as part of customer
contracts are satisfied and revenue is
recognised at the point in time that
control passes 1o the customer,
which is typicaily upon delivery and
acceptance by the customer. In some
cases, payment is not received in fuli
at the time of the sale, and a
contract asset is recognised for the
amount due from the customer that
will be recovered over the contract
period. Revenue to be recognised is
calculated by reference to the
relative standafone selling price of
the equipment.

Business combinations, including
goodwill

Acquisitions pf subsidiaries and
businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a
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husiness combination is measured st
fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of assets transferred by the
Group, Habilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the
zcguiree and the equity interest
issued by {he Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised n profit
or lgss as incurred, Goodwill is
measured as the sum of the
consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controliing

interests in the acguiree, and the fair
value of the acguirer's previously
hield eguity interest in the acquiree
{if any} less the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the
liahitities assumed. Goodwill is not
amaortised but is reviewed for
impairment at least annuslly or
where there is indication of
impairment. On disposal of a
subsidiary, the attributable armount
of goodwill is included in the

determination of the profit or loss on
disposal.

intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially
recognised at cost and are
subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any
accumuiated impairment {osses.
Amortisation is charged to the
income statement on a straight-line
hasis over the estimated useful life of
the asset, on the following bases:

Asset Description

Estimated Useful Life

Licences
Development costs
Access rights

Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the
pertad e which it s incurred.

An internally-generated intangible
asset arising from development {or
from the development phase of an
internat project) s recognised if, and
onty if, all of the following conditions
have been demonstrated;

¢ ihetechnical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for
use or sale;

¢ theintention to compiete the
irtangible asset and use or cell
it

e theability to use or sell the
intangible ascet;

+ howtheintangible asset will
generate probable future
eronomic benefits;

e« the availability of adequate
techrica!l, financial, and other
resources to complete the
development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

« the ability 1o measure reliably
the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its
developiment.

The amount initially recognised for
internaliy-generzted intangible
zssets s the sum of the expenditure
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Length of the licence period (no more than 20 years}

10 years

Length of the agreement (no more than 20 years)

_ 5-10years

incurred from the date when the
intangible zsset first meets the
recognition ¢riteria listed above.
Where no internally generated
intangible asset can be recognised,
development expendirure is
recognised in the income statement
in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition,
internally-generated intangible
assels are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on
the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised
on disposal, ar when no future
economic henefits are expected from
vse or disposal. Gains or josses
arising from de-recognition of an
intangible ssset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal
nroceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment aré
stated at historical purchase cost
{which includes costs directly
attributabie to bringing the assets
into working condition), being fair
value for tangible assets acquired on

acguisition, less accumaulated
depreciation and any proviston for
impairment,

Assets in the course of construction
for production, supply or
administrative purposes, are carried
at cost, tess any recognised
impairment loss, The cost of seif
constructed assets includes the cost
of materials and direct labour.
Labour costs are capitalised within
the cost of an asset 1o the exient
that they are directly attributable to
the construction of the asset. The
value capitalised captures all
eterments of employee benefits ac
defined by 1AS 19,

Cost intiudes professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy.

Depreciation of these assets
commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
Depreciation is recognised so as to
write off the cost or valuation of
assets (other than freehold land and
assets under construction) less their
residual vatues gver their useful lives,
using the straight-ling method, on
the foliowing bases:
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Asset Description

Estimated Useful Life

Freehold buildings
Leasehold buildings
Plant and equipment

- Communications infrastructure network

- Network computer equipment
- Motor vehicles

The estimaled uselul lives, residual
values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each
reposting pericd, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Assets held under leases are
depreciated over the shorter of their
ease term and their expected useful
lives {on the sarme basis as owned
assets).

Anitern of property, plant and
eguipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. The
gain or loss arising on the disposal of
an asset is determined as the
difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, and is recognised in the
income statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets
At each reporting period date, the
Group reviews the carrying armounts
of its tangible and intangible assets
o determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the assel is
estimated to determine the extent of
the impairment loss {if any}. Where
the asset does riot generate cash
flows that are independent from
other assets, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also

20— 80 vyears

Length of lease (typically between 20-80 years)

& - 80 years
3 - 20 years
3o byears

allocated to individuat cash-
generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a
reasonahle and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

An intangible asset with an indefinite
useful life, such as goodwill, is tested
for impairment at least annually and
whenever there is an indication that
the asset msy be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value less costs to sell, and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their preseny value
using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the
ricks specitic to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

H the recoverable amount of an asset
{or cash-generating unit} is estimated
to he less than its carrying armount,
the carrying amount of the asset {or
cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverahle amount. An
impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset {or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but 50 that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset {or
cash-penerating unit) in prior years.,
A reversai of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or

loss unfess the impairment relates to
goodwill, in which case it cannot he
reversed,

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial
liabilities are recognised in the
Group's statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are
directly atiributahie to the
acguisition or issue of financial assets
and financial lizbilities {other than
financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit
or foss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial lizhilities
at fair value through profit or ioss are
recognised immediately in profii or
loss, presented as an ‘other gain or
loss’,

All finandal assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date
where the purchase or sale of 2
financial asset is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the
financial asset within the timeframe
=stablished by the rmarket
concerned.

The Group's financiof assets are
classified into the following specified
categories: tinancial assets ‘st fair
vatue through profit or foss’
['FVTPL’}, '‘measured at amortised
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cost’ ar ‘measured at fair value
through other comprehensive
income’ {'FYOCI'). The classification
depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initiaf
recognition.

Financial assets measured at
amaortised cost are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not
quoted in arn active market. They are
initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest
method. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 rmonths after the reporting
date, which are dassified as non-
current assets. The Group's financial
assets measured at amortised cost
comprise trade and other receivables
and cash and cash equivaients:

Trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry
any interest and are stated at
their nominal value as reduced hy
appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amournts.
Impairment of irrecoverable
armounts is based on an expected
credit loss meodel. In addition to
the expected credit loss mode!,
the Group’s policy is 1o aiso
consider specific provisions for
trade receivables autstanding for
more than 30 days beyond the
agreed terms, or where the
business environrent indicates a
specific risk. Management makes
an assessment of the level of
provision required and
adjustments to the calculated
level of provision are made
eccardingly.

Cash and cush equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and
demand degosits and other
short-term highly Higuid
investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount
of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of change In
value.

91 .

The Group’s financial liabilities are
classified as either financial liabilities
‘at FVTPL or financial liabilities “at
amartised cost’ accarding to the
substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into.

Borrowings

interest-hearing bank loans and
overdrafts are initially recorded
at fair value, calculated as the
proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs. Finance charges,
including premiums payable on
settlement or redemption, and
direct issue costs are accounted
for on an accruals basis to the
income statement using the
effective interest method, ard
are added to the carrying amount
of the instrument 1o the extent
that they are not settled in the
period in which they arise,

Trade and other payabies

Trade and other payables are not
interest bearing and are initially
recorded at fzir value and
subsequently measvured ar
amortised cost using the effective
interest method. They are
included in current liabilities,
except for maturities greater than
12 months after the reporting
date, which are ¢lassified as non-
current liabilities.

The Graup enters into a variety of
derivative financial instruments 1o
manage its exposure to interest rate
through irterest rate swaps.

Derivative financial instruments are
recognised et fair value st the date
the derivative coniract is entered
into and are revalued at fair value at
eachi balance sheet date, The fair
value of these instruments is
determined from the expected
future cash flows discounted at a
risk-adjusted rate, The future cash
flows are estimated based on
forward (interest/inflation) rates
observable from rates and yield
curves at the end of the reporting
period, and contract rates. The
difference between the fair value ot
the risk-adjusted rate and the fair
value at the risk-free rate is used to

determine the debit valuation
adjustment and/or credit valustion
adjustment to these instruments.
The Group does not apply hedge
accounting principles.

A derivative is presented as a non-
current assel or a non-current
liability if the remaining maturity of
the instrument is more than 12
months and it is not expected o he
realized or settled within 12 months.
Otherwise derivatives are gresented
as current assets or current liabilities.
Where derivatives have an
amortising profile, the fair value of
the element (i.e. the notiona!
principal) that matures within 12
months is presented as a current
asset or current liahility. These
derivatives are presented on g net
hasis.

Fair value measurement

1FRS 13 defines fair value as the price
that would he received to seil an
asset or paid to transfer a liahility in
an orderly transaction between
market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly
ochservahle or estimated using
another valuation technigue in
estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Group takes into
accournt the characteristics of the
asset or fiability if market
participants would take those
characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or ligbility at the
measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a
basis.

In addition, for firancial reporting
purposes, {air value measuremerits
are categorised into Level 1, 2 0r 3
based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value
measurements are cbservable and
the significance of the inputs to the
fair value measurement in ite
entirety, which are described as
follows:
+ Level linputs are quoted prices
{unadjusted) in active markets
for identica!l aczets or liabitities



Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2022

that the entity can access at the
measurement date:

s level Zinputs are inputs, other
than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or
liahility, either directly or
indirectly; and

¢ Llevel 3inputs are unohservahle
inputs for the asset or liahility.

Disposal group held for sale,
discontinued operations and gain on
disposal of discontinued operations
Disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will
he recovered principatly through 2
sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and & sale is
considered highly probable within
the next 12 months. They are
measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell, except for assets such as
deferred tax assels, assets arising
from employee benefits and financial
assets that are carried at fair value,

Aryimpairment loss is recognised for
any initial or subsequent write-down
of the disposal groun to fair value
less costs to sell. A gain is recognised
for any subsequent increases in falr
value [ess costs to self of an asset (or
disposal group}, but not in excess of
any cumulative impairment loss
previcusly recognised. A gain or loss
not previously recognised by the
date of the sale of the dispaosal group
is recagnised at the date of
derecognition.

Naon-current assets that are part of a
disposal group are not depreciated
or amortised while they are classified
as held for sale. Interest and other
expenses attributable to the
liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale continue to
he recagnised.

The assets of a disposat group
classified as held for sale are
presented separately from the ather
assels in the balance sheet, The
liabilities of a disposat group
classified as held for sale are
presented separately from other
liabilities in the balance sheet,

A discontinued operationis a
component of the entity that has
heen disposed of or is classified as
held for sale and that represents a
separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, is
part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of such aline of business or
area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to
resale. The results of discontinued
operations are presented separately
in the Incecme Statement

A gain or loss on disposal of
discontinued operations is
recognised within the consolidated
income statement representing the
consideration received less
transaction costs and the carrying
value of the disposal group held for
szle, and deferred income generated
in relation to future services.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present abfigation {legal
or constructive) as a resuit of a past
event, it is probable that the Group
will be reqguired to settle that
ohligation and a reliable estimate can
he made of the amount of the
cbligation.

The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the
consideration reguired to settle the
present obligation at the halance
sheet date, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows
estirnated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows
{when the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When some or ali of the economic
benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset 7f
itis virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably.

Decornmissioning provisions are
recognised within provisions for
liabilities and charges and included
within property, plant and
equipment, where the costs of
disrantiing assets are considered
material. The amounts recognised
within property, plant and
eguipment are depreciated over the
useful economic iife of the asset. The
previsicns are discountad to reflect
the time value of money where
material,

When the probability that the Group
will be required to settle an
obligation or a reliable estimate
cannot be made of the amount of
the abligation the Group discloses a
contingent liability in the nores to
the financizl information.

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum
of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

Current tox

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxahle
profit differs from net profit as
reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income
ar expense that are taxable ar
deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never
taxabie or deductible, The Group’s
fiabsility for current tax is calcuiated
using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to
he payable or recoverable on
ditferences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liahilities in
the finencial information and the
corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxabie profit and is
accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred tax
Habilities are generally recognised for
ali taxahie temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised 1o
the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax
assetls is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is
settied or the asset is realised based
on tax laws and rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
is charged or credited in the income
statemnent, except when it refates to
iterns charged or credited in other
comprehansive income, in which
tase the deferred tax is also dealf
with in other comprehensive income,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax
liahllities and when they relafe to
income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

Retirement benefits

Defirned contributiaon schermies

for defined contribution schemes,
the amount charged to the income
statement in respect of pension costs
and other post-retirement henefits is
the cantribution payable in the year.
Differences between cortributions
payable for the year and
contributions actually paid are
shown as either accruals or
prepayments in the staterment of
financial position.

Defined benefit schemes
Detined benefit schemes are funded,
with the assets of the scheme held
separately from those of the Group,
in separate trustee administered
funds. Pension scheme assets are
measured at fair value and liabllities
are measured on an actuarial basis
ising the projected unit method and
discounted at a rate equivaient to
the current rate of return on a high
guality corporate hond of equivalent
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currency and terms to the scheme
liabilities.

The Plan closed to future accrual of
benefits on 31 lanuary 2016.

Prior to closing the scheme to future
accrual, the Group presented current
and past service costs within cost of
sales and administrative expenses
(see note 29) in its consolidated
incomae statement. Curtailments
gains and losses are accounted for as
a past-service cosl.

Net interest expense or incame 1s
recognised within finance income
{see note 9).

The retirement benefit obligation
recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position
represents the deficit or surplfus in
the Group's defined benefit
schemes. Any surplus resulting from
this calcilation is limited to the
present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of
refunds frorm the schemes or
reductions in future contributions to
the schemes.

A tlahility for a termination henefit is
recognised at the eariier of when the
entity can no longer withdraw the
offer of the termination benefit and
when the entity recognises any
related restructuring costs.

Leases

The Group as lessee

when the Group enters into a lease a
‘right-of-use asset’ is recognised for
the fegsed item and a lease Hahility is
recognised for any future lease
payments due at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-
use asset s initially measured at cost,
being the present value of the lease
payments paid or payable, plus any
initial direct costs incurred in
entering the lease.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis from the
commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the asset’s useful life or
the end of the lease term, The leaze
term is the non-canceliable period of
the tease plus any periods for which

the Group is ‘reasonably certain’ to
exercise any extension options.

The usetul life of the asset is
determined in @ manner consistent
t that for owned property, plant
and equipment. If right-of-use assets
are considered to be impaired, the
carrying value is reduced accordingly.

Lease liabilities are initially measured
at the value of the lpase payments
that are not paid at the
commencement date and are usually
discounted using the incrermental
borrowing rates of the applicable
Group entity. Lease payments
included in the lease lighility include
both fixed payments and in-
substance fixed payrnernts during the
term of the lesse,

After initial recognition, the lease
liability is recorded at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
it is remeasured when there s a
change in future fease payments
arising from a change in an index or
rate {e.g, an inflation refated
increase), a renegotiation of the
lease terms or if the Group's
assessment of the lease term
changes; any change in the lease
liability a5 a resuit of these changes
also resuits in a corresponding
change in the recorded right-of-use

asset,

Government grants

Government grants are not
recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching fo
them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grarts are recognised in
profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are
intended to comaencate. Specifically,
government grarits whose primary
condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise
CYUITE nON-CUrrent assets are
recognised as deferred revenue in
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the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of
the related assets.

Operating profit and exceptional
items

Operating profit is stated after
exceptional items, incduding
restrocturing costs, impairment and
after the share of results of
associates bul before finance income
and finance costs.

Exceptional items are thase that are
consicered to be one-off, non-
recurring in nature or material,
either by magnitude or nature, that
the Directors believe reguire
separate disclosure to avoid the
distortion of underlying
performance, for example one-off
impairments, redundancy
programmes, restructuring and costs

related 1o significant corporate
finance activities. The Directors
helieve the resulting EBITDA
represents underlying performance,
excluding significant one-olf and
non-recurring evernts, that more
fairly represents the on-geing trading
perfarmance of the business. Theze
items are therefore presented
separately on the face of the income
staternent.

EBITDA is an alternative performance
measure defined as operating profit
hefore depreciation, amortisation,
profits/{losses) on disposal of fixed
assets, impairment of assets, other
income, and exceptional itemns. A
reconciliation hetween operating
profit and EBITDA is provided in note

[
G

Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are
transiated at the exchange rate

vuling ot Lhe date of the transaction,
except in the case of certain
financing transactions where hedging
arrangements are in place and
transactions are recorded at the
contracted rate.

Mornetary assets and liabilities
denoted in foreign currencies are
retransiated at the exchange rate
ruling at the halance sheet date or
the contracted rate if applicahle, Any
exchange differences arising are
taken to the income statement.
Transactions in the income
statement of overseas operations are
transiated using an average
exchtiange rate,

Exchange differences on translation
of overseas subsidiaries sre
recognised through the statement of
comprehensive income in the
Group's translation reserve.

4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

in the application of the Group’s
accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are
required 1o make judgements,
estimates and assumntions ghaut
the carrying amaunts of agsets and
liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources.

The judgements, estimates and
assoctiated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other
factars that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may ditfer
from these judgements, estimates
and assumptions.

The judgements, estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an an-going basis. Revisions are
recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised.

Critical judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty in
applying the Group’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical
judgements and those involving
estimations that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the

Group's accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in financial
staternents and could reasonably be
expected to change materially in the
next 12 months.

Deferred tax
Critical accounting judgements:

As distlosed in note 19, the Group
has a significant unrecognised
deferred tax asset, primarily in
respact of deferred interest expenses
and tax losses. Judgement is required
in determining whether these assels
can be accessed considering the
restrictions of relevant tax legislation
and expectations of future profits
within particufar group entities.

Orily assets that are expected to be
avallable 1o the Group have been
recognised but the judgement
retating to these unrecognised assets
will remain under review and
reassessed 35 the Group's
circumstances and relevant tax
legislation evolves.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Critical accounting judgements:

As disclosed in note 26, the Group’s
provisions principally relate to
chligations arising from contractual
obligations, restructuring and
property remediation plans and
decommissioning obligations.

The identification of such obligations
in the context of daily operations
which require provisions to be made
requires judgement,

Judgement is also required 1o
distinguish between provisions and
contingent liabilities. See note 28 for
detail,

tmpairment of goodwilt
Key estimates:

The carrying amount of the Group’s
goodwill is reviewed at each
statement of financial positien date
to determine whether there is any
impairment, in compliance with the
Group’s accounting policies  See note
14 {or detail.
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Actuarial assymptions used to
determine the carrying amount of
the Group’s defined henefit plan
ohligation

Critical aocourniting fudgemernts:

The Group's detined benefit plan
liabiities are discounted at a rate set
by reference to market yields at the
end of the reporting period on high
guality corporate bonds. Sigrificant
judgement is reguired when setting
the criteria for bonds to be included
in the population trom which the
yield curve {s derived. The most
significant criteria considered for the
selection of bonds include the issue

size of the corporate bonds, quality of

the bonds and the identification of
outliers which are excluded. The
Group selects these assumptions in
consultation with an external

fied actuary.

quak

RNey estimarions:

Estimates are used in determining
the present vaiue of the scheme
ltahitities, which depend an such
Tactors as the life expectancy of the
members, the salary progression of
gur clurrent employees and price
intlation

Management has (onsidered the
ectimated impact of adjusting the
assumptions used to determine the
present value of the scheme
liahilities, which are summarised in
rote 29,

{mportant accounting judgements
and estimates

Important accounting judgemaernts
and estimates are those judgements
and estimates which management
considers (o be important to the
understanding of the financial
statements hut that are not
materially significant enough to be
deemed critical.

Useful lives for property, plant and
equipment and intangibles

tmportant accounting estirnotes:

Depreciation or amortisation is
charged to the income statement
based upon the useful lives selected.
This assessment requires estimation
of the period over which the Group
wilt derive benefit from these assets,

Management moritor and assess the
approprialeness of useful economic
lives, such lives may also be
impacted by external market
changes. In the event that such a
change were to result In a revision of
useful economic lives this could
result in a change to the annual
depreciation charge going forwards.
In the theoretical scenario whereby
rmedium and long term useful
economic lives of property, plant and
equipment were to be reduced by
ane year the estimated impact on
the depreciation charge for the year
s approximately £14m {2021
approxiraately £12m), with a
reduction in depreciation in later
years.

The Group manages its property,
plant and equipment on 2 portfolio
basis through a central estates team.
This team contains qualified
surveyors who have a wealith of

95 Arqiva Group timited (company reg 05254001]

experience working forthe Group
and within the industry as a whole.

The carrying values of intangibles are
disclosed in note 15, and those for
property, plant and equipment are
ditcionsed in note 16.

Provisions

Key gstimations:

Estimates have been made in respect
of the probable future obligations of
the Group. These estimates are
reviewed annually to reflect current
econormic conditions and strategic
plans.

The decammissinning provisions are
reviewed annually and are calculated
based upon expected costs and past
costs incurred on similar sites as
determined hy site and project
management, as well as ssessments
made by irternal experts {see note
26).

Management is also required to make
estimares in refation to the discount
rates applisd in the calculations,

Managemerit has estimated the
impact of reducing the
decommissioning timetable by one
year ta be £0.2m (2021: £0.2m} in
relation to the unwinding of provision
discounting or, if all site
decormimissioning was recognised in
iine with potential eartier expiration
dates, a sensitivity of up to £10m
across the portfolio as a whoie. Such
movement in any one financial year is
not considered fikely.
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5 Revenue and functional information

The Group derives its revenue from the rendering of services, engineering projects. and the sale of commurications
equipment. See note 3 for the accounting policies adopted.

The following tables disaggregate revenue from contracts with customers by cur major service lines.

Media Smart Utilities Total continuing Jotal discontinued
Distribution Networks operations operations! Total
Year ended 30 june 2022 £m £m £m £m fm
Randernng of services 464.2 1130 8772 . 5771.2
Engmeenng projects 2.1 2.1 2.1

148 - 24 K

Sale of poods

Revenue 466.3 157.8 624.1 - 624.1

Total continuing

Media Smart Utilities Total discontinued
operations
Distribution Networks operations’ Total
Year ended 30 June 2021 (Re- £m
presented) £m fm £m £m
Randering of servires 48273 109.4 591.7 4.4 5961
Enginearng projects 11.2 112 0.5
Sale of goods 3%.4 394
Revenue 433.5 148.3 642.3 4.9

Revenue expected to be recognised in future periods, included in our order book, for perfermance obligations that zre
rot comptlete (or are partiatly complete) as 30 June 2022 is £3,397.2m (Restated 2021: £3,743.1m). During the year
management has performed a review of the classification of expected revenues between rendering of services and
sale of goods in the order baok. The grior year numbers have been restated to remove £0.4bn of cornitract RPI
indexation incorrectly included.

The anticipated timing of recognition of this revenue is as follows:

<1 year 1-2 years 2 -5 years 5-10 years > 10 years Total
Year ended 30 june 2022 £m £m £Em £m £m fm
Rendering of services 502.8 4556 1,0133.4 10313 355.0 3,362 1
neenng projects
LA 162 5.1 g 51

Sale of goocs

Revenue 508.2 441.0 1,029.6 1,039.4 359.0 3,397.2

ations arse solefy from the Telecoms busness soid inthe year

Diceontinned op

Friveven foaes b et preserter o eleel the nev eperting i non,
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Year ended 30 June 2021 < 1year 1-2 years 2~ 5years 5-10 years > 10 years Tatal
Restated
(Restated) £m Em £ £m £Em im
fendering of services 4737 4265 10288 1,140 3 3,435 G
Ergineerng projects 20 11 ER
Sale of guods a0 % 1195
Revenue 531.3 468.5 1,2148.1 3659
Prior to restatement, the order hook for the prior year were reported ac follows:
> 10 years
<1vyear 1-2 years 2 -5 years 5-10 years Total
Year entled 30 June 2021 £m
£m £m £tm £m £m
(Reported)
Rendering of tenigas 6737 47€.5 1,028.6 1,140.3 766 3 38354
Engineening projets 2.0 11 31
Cale uf gonds 115 BS O 1050
Revenue 1,148.1 1,229.3 766.3 4,143.5

Contract assets and liabilities

The Group has recognised the following sssets and Labiiities In relaton Lo contracts with custorners:

30 june 2022

30 June 2021

£m

Contract agsets

Lurzent

Contract Habilities
Current

N Carrent

£104.8m of the contract tability
recognised at 30 June 2021 was
recognised as revende during the
year (2020: £852m). Impairment,
josses of £0,2m {2021 £0.2m) were
recognised on contract assets during
the year,

usuat
movements there were no significant
changes in contract asset and liability
balances during the year,

In zdditiont

Other than business-as- |

the cortract balances

};r;waGroup umn&d [company reg {)_5_2540_0 1 }

disciped above, the Group has also
recognised an asset in relation to the
prepayment of costs to fulfil a
contract. This is presented within
other receivabies in the balance
sheet and totalled £0.8m (2021:
£1.0m}. Amortisation recognised @5
a cost of providing services during
the year was £0.1m (2021 £0.1m)].

Reporting by markets

Curing the current financial year, the
Group changed its reporting
structure, moving away from the
traditional business units and
adopting an integrated functional
operating madel. Under the new
structure the business considers the
custgmer facing furctions of Media
Distribution and Smart Utilities
Netwaorks, supported by Operations,
Technology and Transformation and
Corporate functions. The functiona!
revenue and EBITDA for the Group
for the prior year have been re-
oreserted to align to this new
structure,
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Year ended 30 June 2022

Coramercial

Othies

Media Srnart Utilities Operations  Technology and Corporate Discontinued  Consolidated
Distribution Networks Traustormation Cperations
im im £m £m fm fm £m
Revenue 466.3 157.8 - - - 624.1
Functional result* (EGITDA) 343.1 67.2 {25.3) {28.5) (15.1) - 3414
Bepreciation and amgreticalion (371 6)
Lass on disposal of fixeg aggets iz 1
Impairment of ascets (05}
fxeeptional opersng expernces {196}
Lxceptional inss on dispoata of (551
asskts
Qther ncome 7.7
Lxr ephonal othe ncegme ER1]
Excephonal revenue (7.6
Operal'll‘ig profit fram continuing 143.2
opel ations
Finange it o iz
Fnanece costs
Dther gains and losses
Loss before tax from cantinuing
cperations
*Functional result is defined as total operating profit hefore the items set out helow,
Year ended 30 June 2021 Commercial {Jther
(Re-presented)!
Media Semiart Utilities Operations  Technology and Corporate Discontirued Consalidated
Pristribution Networks Transformation Qparations
£ £ £ im £m fm fim
493.% 148.8 - ~ 4.9
334.7 57.4 {21.4) (z4.4) {33.9} 2.5

Depeciation snid atn tisation
Exceptianal opatating v pences
{ther incame

Uperatng profit from decontmued

QPeralnns

Operating profit from continuing
operations

Fanee ing o

Himance costs

(et gams end fcsnes

toss before tax from continuing
operations

165 )

175 44

{597.2)

Priot sem 12

¢ binve heen eemmenented toreflect the nes peporting fun. ons
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*runctional result 15 defined as total operating profit before the items set out below.

EBITDA is a key measure of the Groups financizl performance. A reconciliation of the reported EBITEA to the
operating profit is provided below:

Year ended Year ended
Note 30 June 2023 30 June 2021
£m £m
Operating proftt from continuing operations 1483.2 15%.5
Depreciation 16 153.4 1685
Amortisation 15 132 9.7
Loss on disposal of fixed ssoets & 2.1
Exteptiangl aperaling €xpeaces 7 19.6 256
Excagtional on dispasal nf g 7 9.5
Trepairment of asuets 0.5
Operating wrofn frie comtinues cperations 1.5
r I ome 177} {9.3}
Excepticnal other income 7 {50
Exceptional revenus 7 76
EBITDA ) 341.4 334.9
The acrounting policies of the centrat administration costs. This i< allocsting resources beltween
reportabie functions are the same as the measure reported to the Group’s  functions, the CODM monitors the
the Group’s accounting policies CODOM for the purpose of resource capital expenditure of property,
described in note 3. allocation and assessment of plant and equipment and intangible
funictiona! performance. assets {presented on acash basis)
Functional result represents the planned and utitised by each
EBITDA earrned by each operating For the purpose of monitoring function, an anslysis of whichis
function without allocation of the furctional performance and shown helow.

tEini o leTTE b @rgens (G uders

Bt s rrsenterd i the smennie

ot reface e

rgedlgn
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Media Srnart Utilities Other*® Consolidated
Distribution Networks
£Em £m fm £
Capital expenditure:
For the year ended 30 fune 2027 29.5 159 433 88.7
Furthe year ended 20 June 2021 6.5 182.5 50 3 86.1

*Includes maintenance capex which is managed centrally and not ailocated to individual business functions.

Nnte: the above is presented on a cash basis and therefore cannot be agreed directly to the capital additions presented
innotes 15 and 16. The total balance comprises property, plant and equipment of £83.9m {2021 restated: £85.5m) and
intangibie assets of £4 8m (2021 restated: £0.6rm) as referred to in the cash flow statement.

Geographical information

The UK is the Group’s country of domicile and the Group generates the majority of its revenue from externat
customers in the UK. The geographic analysis of revenue is on the basis of the country of origin in which the custorner
is invoiced.

The following revenue was generated from external customers:

Yearended Yeur ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Adune 2022 30dune 2022 30June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2031 30 June 2021

Continuing Discontinued Cortinuing Ulscontinued
opErations operations Total nperaticns operations Totatl
frm £m £m frn £m £m
LK 6185 : 618.5 £34.7 L] 639.6
Rest of Eurnspean Econnmmc Ares [DEA) 51 5.1 6.4 - 6.4
Rest ot Wurld 0.5 : 0.5 1.2 - 1.2
Revenye £24.3 - 624.1 642.3 49 6472

The Group holds non-current assets {excluding financial instrumenis, deferred tax assets and pension surplus}in the
following geographical locations:

30 June 2022 30 funie 2021

£m £m

Lk 2,792.8 2.048.2

Rest of European Economi Area (EEA) 15 1.5
Fest of Workd

information about major customers

included in the revenues arising from Media Distribution are revenues of £146.3m (2021 £€146.3m} which arcse from
sales 10 a major customer, and Smart Utilities Networks revenues incdlude £93.5m (2021: £81.7m) from a major
customer.

No other single customers contributed 10% or imore to the Group’s revenue in the aforementioned financial vears.
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6 Operating profit

Operating profit for the yesr has been arcived at after charging / (crediting):

Year ended
30 June 2022

Year ended
30 June 2021

£m fm
Net furegn exchange (g3ing) / lnsses {0.3) [$8¢)
Resenrch and development coots 1.5 20
Cegreciataon of property, plant and equipment {see nole 16
Owrind assets 135.9 1420
Lewsed aasete 225 246
Luss on disnonal of praperty, plant snd equipreent ang intangibie aseets 21 31
Arcortitation of intenpdle age 132 @7
Sra {3.2) 170.9)
Emipicyes axsts {see note &) 74.1 829
Exepptionzl sparating cxpenses (ses note 7} 1%.6 258
Excephonal inss on dheporal -t (sen note 7) 4.5
Exceptangl other meome (see note 7} th )
Ercephicral revenue (see note 7) 7.a
Services pravided by the Group’s Auditors and network firms
During the year the Group obtained the following services from the Group’s Auditors st costs as detailed helow:
Group Group
Year ended Year ended

30 June 2022

30 lupe 2621

£m £m

sany Auditors furthe audit of parert company end roasohdated fnaros! (SR 0.1

Foes poyable fGrane audt of tre zry's aladiaries 54 Ca

Drher audi fees UE] 0.1
Non-audit services

Forrer tary-c s .

Total cost of services provided by the Group’s Auditors 0.8 0.9
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7 Exceptional items

The Group recognises exceptional items which are ane-off and non-recurring in nature or material items which the
Directors believe reguire disclosure hy virtue of their size or incidence for the financial statements to give a true and
fair view. Further information is disclosed in note 3.

{Loss) / profit before tax is stated after {charging)/crediting:

Year ended
30 June 2022

Year ended
20 June 2022

Year ended
20 bune 2022

20 dune 2021

Year ended
30 june 2021

Year ended
30 dune 2021

Discontinued

Year ended

Continuing Uiscontinved Continuing
uperations operatinns Total operat|ong aperatinns Total
£m m £m fin i £m
Revenue:
Revenue service Cradits 17.6) {7.6)
{7.5) {7.6]
Operating expenses:
Reorgamsation and severance 5.4} {5.4} {21.8) {21.8)
Crorporate Tinance gotvities t4.7) (4.2} {3.8) {3.8)
Restaration casts 110.0) {10.0} -
{15 6) {19.6) [25.6)
Loss on disposel of fived assets {9.5) {8.5)
Other exceptional items:
Other inceme 50 5.0
Gan on disposal of discontinued i . 1058 10283
aparations
5.0 5.0 1,038.3 1,038.3
Total exceptional items {z21.7) (31.7} {75.6) 1,05383 1,012.7

Exceptional gains and losses are
disclosed separately within note 11,

Recrganisation and severance
expenses include costs relating to
changes in the organisational design
and restructuring of the business and
delivery of the Group’s
transfurmation grogramme. This is a
one-off multi-year transformation
programme that will help Argiva
streamiine precesses, modernise IT
systerns and achieve significant cost
efficiencies and savings. The
transfermation programme is
expected o complete later this
calendar year.

Corporate finance activities figures
relate to costs and accrusls
associated with one off projects, and

corporate trapsactions including
refinancing activities,

The gain on disposal of discontinued
operations relates to the sate of the
Group's Telecoms infrastructure and
related assets on & July 2020 as
disclosed in note 21,

With the exception of the corporate
finance activities the amounts
inciuded within exceptional
operating expenses above are
deductible for the purpose of
taxation. The gain on disposal of the
discontinued operation is not subject
to UK Corporation tax as il is exempt
under the Substantial Shareholding
Exernption.

Bilsdale — Project Restore

The restoration costs retate 1o costs
incurred to reinstate services present
at the Bilsdale transmitter site
following a fire which broke out on
10 August 2021 and include £4,8m of
community support activities.
Engineers have heen working on &
recovery plan to reinstate services
present on the mast. The recovery
plan included service recovery with
works completed for the
improvement of TV coverage from
other local not-spot sites, as well as
the erection of a temporary mast at
the Bilsdale site. To date arcund 99%
ot households have been returned to
coverage for TV and commercial
radic has benefited from improved
coverage from what it was before
the fire. Further works to complete
the enduring solution and re-build is

Argiva Group Limited {company reg 95254001}
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ongoing with works started on the
build of a new permanesnt mast.

WManagenient is still assessing the
financial impact of the incident and
the asvets damaged by the fire, and
has engaged with the Group's
insurers. Costs recognised are those
which have been incurred 1o date
and can he reliably measured,
including £7.6m of service credits
deducted from revenue during the
period,

See note 28 for further details of
contingent liabitities and assets in
relation to the Bilsdale fire,

The exceptional loss on disposal of
assets relates 1o the impairment and
subsequent disposal of assets
damaged by the Bilsdale transmitter
site fire discussed above,

Exceptional other income relatesto a
stage payment received from
insurarce claims related to the

Bilsctale transmitter site fire
discussed above. This income is
subject fo UK corporation tax.

On 21 September 2022, a secand
interim stage payment of £10.0m
was received from the insurers in
retation to the Bilsdsle fire. At 30
June 2022, this represented &
contingent asset and has therefore
not been recognised in the income
statement.

The overall financial impact of the fire at Bilsdale for the year is surnmarised as follows:

Loss on disposal of Tived asse

P& impact  Balance sheet impact

Beralrig Cr FEses

within exceplionai insg on daposal of aszets

nlcani e firdd stege payment - within exceptonal ather ncomes

Revent e SRIVIRE Gredits = within axce ptugt 2! revenns

Capitsl expenditure

8 Employees

The average monthly number of persons {representing ‘full-time equivalents’) employed by the Group during the year

was 35 follows:

UK
Non LK

Tota! employees
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Year ended
30 fune 2022

Year ended
3¢ lune 2021
{Re-presented)?

Number Nurnber

Media Disteibution 248 13
Smart Utiithies, Networks 37 B4
Operations 571 655
Technoingy and Transformation 20 5
Corporate 361 461
Total employees 1,287 1,528

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2022

30 June 2021

£m £m
Wages and calaries 86 100.5
Sorial security (osts a7 a8
Clher pension eosis 5.6 70
total staff costs 100.5 1173
Capstatized catf costs 126.1} (34.4)
Income statement expense 74.4 82.9

9 Finance income
Year ended Year ended

30 June 2022

30 June 2021

Total Total
fm £m
Bank deposits 0.8
Other hinsnice ncome 3.1
Total finance income 3.9 2.7

Other finance income includes £1.0mm (2021 £0.3m) in relation to net finance income on the defined benefit pension

scheme.

Al finance income the year ended 30 fune 2022 and 30 fune 2021 relates to continuing operations,

Protyedt fiv e, have heen te-presenzed teeflent e new weporting funchions, see bote $ for fire doai
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10 Finance costs

Year ended Year erided Year ended Year endet Year enged Year ended

30 bune 2022 30 une 2072 3G June 2022 30 June 10231 Hsune 20211 30 june 2021

continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
nperations opéerations Total 010ratIons UpErElions Total
{m frm im £t &m £m

20.6
75.6
86.2 . 96.2

interest on bavk overdrafts and loans

Other loan interest

Bank and other nan interest

Amortisation of debt ssue costs 4.2 : 4.2 a0 : 4.0
trit@rest an fedse obiigations (note 24 6.7 6.7 7.4 0.1 7.5
Shareholder Ioan note nterast 602.7 . 602.7 529.8
Other interecy 210 21.0 201
Total interest payabis 748.8 657.6
Unwinding of discount on provision. a2 5.5
Total finance costs 733.0 663.1

The shareholder loan notes carry fixed interest rates of hetwesn 13.0% and 14.0%, payment of which can be deferred
at the option of the Group subject to certain conditions, qualification of which are subject to bi-annual review (see
note 23}

11 Other gains and losses

Note Year ended Year ended

3G June 2022 30 June 2021

£m fm

Ferewn ex-hange tugs on finaning iRy

Fairvalve inss on dervative linangat inatriments 25 [76.1) (111}

Sreak caens nn early debt repaymerts gand dervabver {35.%;

Other lesses (76.1) {67.8)

75 117

Errephonal i e 12.9}

Exceptional cther losses - (7.8)
Total other gains and losses {76.1)

All other gaine and losses in the year ended 30 tune 2022 and 30 June 2021 relate to continuing operations.
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12 Tax
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 june 2021
{Restated)
£m £m
UK corparation tax:

- Current year - 2.9
Total current tax - 2.9
Deferred tax {see note 19)

- Ongination and roversal of temporary differences {11.5}) 281

Recognition of previously unrecognised deferred tax nsset (16.6)

- Acjuntment in respect of prior years {4.4] 5.8

irnpact of rate change {11.5) (29.%8)
Total deterrad tax {27.4) (4n.E)
Totak tax credit for the year {27.4) {37.6)
INenme rax expense is attributable 1o:
Loge from cortinuing cperations (27.4} 43.3)
Profit from discortinued operations - 5.7
Tatal tax credit for the year (27.4) [37.6)

UK corporation tax is calculated at a rate of 19.0% (2021: 12.0%) of the taxable profit for the year. Taxation for other
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The tax credit for the year can he reconciled to the profit/ (loss) before tax in the income statement as follows:

Year ended Year ended
30 bune 2022 30 june 2021
{Restated)
£m £fm
Profit floss) befure tax {£62 0) 4425
Tax at the Uk corparation tax rate of 19.0% (2077 19.0%) {125 8} 242
Tax eftect of exgenies that are not deducubie in determmoung taxable profit {a) 897 593
Tax effect of income not taxahle {b) . {197 .3)
Change inurrecognised Jeferred tax asiets (n) 44 6 5.8
Eecagnition of previously unrecogrised deferred tax auaet () - (46.6)
Adustrentin respect of prnor years {e] (4.4; 68
Impact of change intax rate 111.5) {29.8)
Total tax {credit} / charge for the year {27.4) {37.6}
During completion of the tax higher than reflected in the prior year  assets of £53.3m were utilised in the
compliance precess for the year statutory accounts. This arose dueto  period and a UK corporation tax
ended 30 June 2021, it was identifiad  the treatment within this legislation charge of £2.4m has baen recognised.
that the disallowed finance expenses  of the exceptiona! gain on the In addition, a deferred tax asset has
under the Corporation Inferest disposat of discontinued operations. been recognised in the year ended 30
Restriction legislation were materially  As & result, additional deferred tax June 2023. This resulted from a

Argiva Group Limited {company reg 05254001} 106



review of the ability of the group 1o
utilise this asset taking into account
the above-described restatement,
This gives rive to an increased
deferred tax asset of £31.3m and a
reduced unrecognised deferred tax
asset of £31.3m (see note 4). The net
impact of these adjustments has
resulted in a restatement In the year
ended 30 June 2021 of £24.4m
decreased tax credit, £22.0m
decreased deferred tax assets and
£2.4m increased corporation tax
payable.

The main rate of UK corporation tax
was 19.0% during the year. In the
Finance Act 2021 it was enacted that
the main rate of UK corporation tax
would be increased to 25.0% from 1
April 2023, UK deferred tax has heen
valied at between 19% and 25% {30
June 20271: between 19% and 25%)
depending on the period it is forecast
1o reverse in.

On 23 September 2022, it was
annousced that the corporation tax
rate change from 19% 10 25% with
effect from 1 April 2023 was to be
cancelled. This was not substantively

13 Dividends

enacted at the halance sheet dote
and therefore the impact of this
change is not reflected in the
measurement of deferred tax. if the
rate change had been substantively
enacted prior to 30 June 2022, the
impact would have heen to reduce
the deferred tax assel by £50 1m with
arorresponding charge to the income
statement.

Expenses that are not deductible
in determining taxable profit
principally relate to interest
payabhle on shareholder foan
notes and in the year ended 30
hune 2021 interest expense from
3¢ party lenders which has been
treated as not tax deductible in
the period in which it arose as a
result of the Corporate interest
Restriction legislation.

(a)

{h} tncome not taxabie principaily
relates to the profit arising on the
szale of Argive Services Lid. The
gain arising is not taxable a5 it
folls within the Subsiantisl
Shareholding Exemption for sales
of trading bust

e} Change in unrecognised deferred
tax assets principally relates 10
deferred interest expenses (see
note 19).

Recognrition of previously
urirecognised deferred tax asset
represents the additional
recognition of deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses as
it hecormes probable that the
group will be able to utilice
these in future.

(e) The adjustment in respect of
prior years refates to refinements
of estimates of taxable profits
arising from the completion of

the tax compliance process.

Tax in Consolidated Statement of
Comgprehensive Income

Thereis a tax charge of £1.7m {2021:
credit of £6.6m) in respect of the
actuarial movement of £6.7mw {2021,
£26.4m}in the Consclidsted
taternent of Comprehensive Intome.

£ per share

Year ended
30 June 2021

Year ended
30 June 2022

£m

£m f per share

aot Whdlandz) imited

Total dividends payable to minority interests

The above amounts represent dividends declared to non-

AGL Group.

40.10 Gl

controlling interest shareholders by companies

within the

No dividends were declared or paid 1o AGL sharehotders during the year (2021 £nil),
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14 Goodwill

£m

Cost:
At Y fuly 2020 5n0 30 June 2073

At 30 june 2022

Accumutated pmpairment losses:
AL 2 July 2020 and 30 June 2021

At 30 Jung 2022

Carrying amount:
At 30 June 2022

AL30 lune 2071

Goodwill atquired in a business
combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating
units {'CGUS’) that are expected to
berafit from that business
combination, The CGUs that have
associated goodwill sre Media
Distribution and Smart Utilities
Netwaorks.

These are the smallest identifiable
groups of assets that generate cash
inflows that are largely independent
ol the cach inflows from other groups
of assets, and to which goodwill is
allocated.

The carrying value of goodwill as at
the balance sheet date by the
principal CGUs is shown as follows:

30 fune 2022 30 June 2621

Media Distribition
Srrnrt ULilites Networks

Total

The Group tests goodwill annuaily for
impairment, or more frequently if
there are indications that goodwill
rmight be impaired. The recoverable
amounts of the CGUs are determined
from value-in-use calculations ("VIU').

The key assumptions for the VIU
calculations are those regarding the
discount rates, growth rates and
expected changes to cash flows
during the year for which
management has detailed plans.

Management estimates discount
rates using pire-tax rates that reftect
current market assessments of the

time value of money and the risics
specific to the CGUs. Growth rates are
based on internal and external
growth forecasts. Changes to cash
flows are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the
market.

Projected cash flows and the
‘recoverahle amount’

The value in use of each CGU 13
determined from the cash flow
forecasts derived from the most
recent financial forecasts approved by
the Board for the next five years. They
reflect management’s expectations of
revenue, EBITDA growth, capital

expenditure and working capital
hased on past experience and tuture
expectations of performance,
Discount rate

The pre-tax discount rate applied to
the Group’s cash flow forecasts are
derived using the capital asset pricing
model for comparable businesses.

The assumptions used are
henchmarked to externally available
data. The pre-tax discount rate used
for the Group is 8.3% (2021, 8 1%).
This discount rate does not represent
the weighted average cost of capital
{WACC} for Argiva, but instead is an
industry and comparative company
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108



Annual Report a}nd Qqnsf‘

hased capital asset pricing model
(CAPM) derived discount rate,
utilising current spot rates at the time
of calculation.

growth rates of the markets n which
the CGU operates (2022 2.0%,; 2021:
2.1%). The growth rete has been
benchmarked against externally
available data. This rate does not
exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant markets.

Terminal growth rates
The terminal growth rate s
determined based on the long-term

15 Other intangible assets

Sensitivities
There is headroom in all CGUs.

No

reasonably possible change in the key
assumptions would cause the carrying

armount of the goodwilt by CGU

to

exceed the recoverahle amount

pased upon the ViU,

Licences Development Agcess rights Software Assets under Total
Losts the course of
construction
{ALC)
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost T S
AT July 2020 137 7.4 it.4 1011 15i 6
Aadddionsg 03 [PA] 0%
Transfers trom AUC (note 16) 3.3 33
Doposats -
A1 30 lune 20 B jjﬂi _-‘ R ) ‘1(}’-1 k4
Additions .4 34 1.8
Transiers from FUL {note 16 4.0 £4
Disposals 143 7) (687}
At 30 June 2022 13.7 71.4 15.4 63.4 3.0 116.9
Accumulated amortisation
At saly 2020 7% ER:] 15.4 74.2 106 5
Anmorhisation 11 1.6 7.3 &7
Disposza -
At 30 une ZU o 15; - o N
Arrort 1 25 3.2
Lizponals {3.0) . 148.7]
At 30 June 2022 9.2 10.7 T 154 o . -3—057
Carrying amount
At 30 June 2022 i ) 4.5 18.2 3.0 36.4
ALE0 ane o s 235 403

Development costs in respect of products and services that are being developed by the Group are being capitalised in
accordance with 1AS 38. These are amortised over their expected usefud fife once the orodudt or service has been

commercially faunched,

Disposals in the year relate (o old software repisced as part of the Group's transformation programme,

Other intangible assets are recognised at cost and are amortized over their estimated useful lives,
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16 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold lard Leasehold Piant and Assets under the Total
and buildings buildings equipment  course of construction
{AUC)
£m £m £m fm £m
Cost
At 1 July 2 322.0 145.8 1,786.6 1031 2.357.5
Rexctasufications (53.4} 7.2 6.2
Adjucted halance 2t T Juty 2020 268.6 173.9 1,812.8 103.1 2,357.5
Adeditions 11.7 s él.fl 103 7
Cumptetlon of At 4.5 0.5 47.3 (52.3 -
Tranufers to oiher irdangibles (note 15) {3.2) {2.3)
Disponals {8.2] (72.4) [0.1) {30.5)
At 30 June 2021 273.3 176.8 1,848.0 128.8 2,426.8
Additinng 4.8 72 79.4 Q1.5
Campletion of AUC 2.3 0.9 916 {94.8)
Transters to olther intangsbles (nnte 15) 44} {4.4]
Disposals {3.3) (13.6) (263} (37.2)
Impatrnent 10.5) - - - {05}
At 30 June 2022 271.6 169.0 1,926.6 109.0 2,476.2
Accumulated depreriation
At 1 July 2020 57.1 40.9 784.1 - 382.1
Keclasshicauons {53.4) 272 DE
Adjasted batanae ot 1oy 2070 3.7 810.3
Depreration 69 14.9 T 3467 - ‘1685 "
Dicpusals {51} 1l 112.3) 1154
At 30 June 2021 5.5 B4.6 944.7 - 1,034.8
Deprecariun 7.9 111 139.4 - 15%.4
Disposals 12.5) (7.1} (8.5) {18.1)
At 30 June 2022 10.9 ) 88.6 1,075.6 - 1,175.1
Carrying amaunt
At 30 June 2022 260.7 20.4 851.0 109.0 31,3011
AL A June 7821 2676 2.3 G933 1785 1,392.0

Freehold iand included above but not
depreciated amounts to £155 9m
(20Z1: £156.1m)

Reclassifications have been recognised
between categories to adjust opening
balances following reassessment of
category of historic assets.

At 30 June 2022, the Group had entered
into contractual commitments for the
acquisition of property, plant and
eguipment amounting to £16.6m (2021:
£23.1m) ~ see nute 28 for further
details.

The Group’s current and non-current
assets have been pledged as security
under the terms of the Group’s externa
debt facilities {see note 23). In addiion,
the Group’s [ease ohligations {see note
24} are secured by the lessors’ title of
the leased assets, which have a carrying
amount of £4.6m {Z021:£5.1m)
included within leasehold buildings.

Argiva Group Limited {company reg 05254001) 110



Annual Repoct anpf Conselidated Financial Statements 2022

17 Interest in associates and joint ventures

In addition to the subsidiary undertakings (see note 3 to the Company financial statements
holds the following interests in associates and joint ventures:

on page 140} the Group

Percentage
Country of L. L . § Year .
Company . . Principal activities Registered office of ardinary
incorporation end
shares held
Joint ventures
Media Houue Peterbaraugh
Owrership and nperation . o b
. ) . ) Busiress Park, Lynch Woed, . .
Sound Digital Linited Urited Kmgom of UK DAR ramio multipiex ! . 31D 40 OF
g = ) Peterborough, Uniled Kingdom,
licance 5 eE
ce PE2 BEA
Associate undertakings:
. Greenworks Dog And Dack Yarg
Bidaing for UK DAB digital g ‘
Mo Lintied Leiited Kingdarn 'd‘ e It IK [ll J‘g Frincetan Street, London, 31 -Dag 257154
radin multiplex beence: . o h
a vhE England, WCLIR 4RH
Support delive ia 15 Alfred Place, London, R
ec Kingdom _uppmtoc wvery uf a fred Place, > o D Mar 10.0%

& for

1WTE TEB

Share of resuits of assodiates and
joint ventures was £mil (2021: £nii) for
the year with the interest in
associates and joint ventures being

There are no other associates or joint
ventures that are considered
material, either individually or in
aggregate, to the Group’s position or

that the carrying values of the
investments are supported by the
underlying trade and net assets.

£0.2m (2021: £0.1m). performance. Transactions with associates and joint

ventures in the year are disclosed in
The Directors consider the carrying note 30,
vaiue of the Group's investrments gn
an annual basis, or more frequently
should incicators arise, and betieve

11 ,i‘_________ S — J—
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18 Trade and other receivables

30 June 2022 30 june 2022

fm £m
Trade and other receivables
Trade receivahles nha 3 65.0
Diher receivables 57 3.0
Pregpayments 58.0 E0.0

Cantract assets

128.0

The decrease in contract assefs in the year is driven principally by releases in the utiiities husiness, together with

regular business as usual movements.

The ageing of the Group’s net trade recaivables which are past due but where no indication of non-recoverability has

been identified is as follows:

30 june 2022 30 june 2021

£m £m

Up to 20 diye overdue 5.5 2.3
U to 90 days overdue 2.2 2
Betwesn 91 and 150 days overdue 22 ¢4
More than 150 days overgue 2.0 1.5
1:.9 7.4

Trade receivables and contract assets are stated after deducting ailowances for expected credit fosses, as follows:

Year ended
30 June 2021

Year ended
30 June 2022

Em £im
Allowince at 1July 4.5 55
Amaounts utifised (1.0) (2.1
Provided during the year 1.1 07
Allowance at 30 June 4.6 4.5

The Group applies the IFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring

expected credit losses using a lifetime

expected credit loss provision for
trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure expected credit lpsses on
a collective basis, trade receivables
and contract assets are grouped

based on simifar credit risk aging. The
contract assets have similar risk
characteristics 1o the trade
receivables for <imilar types of
contracts.

The expected loss rates are based on
the Group's historical credit losses
experienced over the five year period

prior to the period end. The historical
loss rates are then considered for
current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the Group’s
customers. No adjustments were
made to the expected loss rates
applied for the current year.
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The Group’s expected 1oss rate for receivables is 0.4% {2021 0.4%). At 30 June 2022 the lifetime expected loss
provision for trade receivables and contract assets is as follows:

30 June 2022 Current Up to 30 Upto 80  Between 91 More than Total
days days and 150 150 days
overdue overdue days overdue
overdue
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Grose carrymg arnourst

it
i

31 5.4 7ze

Trade receivabieg 54

Contract assats

Lass provesien - Expenterd 0.4 - - - E 04

Lesss prowvisian - Spectfic - . 02 0.8

30 tune 2021 Current Up to 30 Upto 90  Between 91 Maore than Total
davs days and 150 150 days
overdue overdue days overdue
overdue

GrOSS Larrying amaurnt
- Trade recavailos

Contract asset:

inss provision - Expertad

- Speaihie

£02m 2021 £0.2m) of the £4.6m where the business environment any change in the credit guzlity of the

(2021 £4.5m) lifetime expected loss indicates a specific risk. Management  trade receivable from the date credit

provision refates to the contract will make an assessment of the level was initialfy grarnted up to the

assets. of provision based on the Group reporting date. Before accepting any
policy. Adjustments to the calculated  new customer, the Group uses an

in addition to the expected credit loss  level of provision will be made external credit scoring system o

model, the Group’s policy is to alsa accordingly. assess the potential customer’s credit

consider a specific provision for trade quelity. Far further infarmation on

receivables outstanding for more than  In determining the recovershiiity of & how the Group manages credit risk
30 days beyond the agreed terms, or frade receivable the Group considers cee note 25,
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19 Deferred tax

The balance of deferred tax recognised at 30 June 2022 is £233.8m (2021; £208.1m (restated)’). The movement in
deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Tax losses Fixed asset Derivative Other Total
Deferred tax assets temporary financial temporary
differences instruments differences
£m £Em fm £m £m
AL July 2020 iRE 4G.6 1034 9.2 17201
391
Credited / (charged) to the income statement (16.4} {20 &j PR
At 30 June 2021 (Reslated) 72.7 Z24.7 746 48 % 219.%8
21
Credited / (charged) 1o the tcame statement 15.0 17.6 {5.5) 242
At 30 june 2022 87.7 41.8 68.1 50.4 249.9
Retirement Total
Deferred tax liabilities )
benefits
£m £m
At 1 July 2020 3.0 2.0
Chatged Lo the income statement 2.3 2.1
Charged to statement of corpprehensive income €6 6.6
AL 3D June 2021 11.7 11.7
Charged to the eome statement 1.3 1.8
Charged to statement of COrnprehensive income 1.7 1.7
At 30 June 2022 15.2 15.2

The corporation 1ax rate was
increased to 25% from 19% effective
from 1 April 2023; the deferred tax
asset is znticipated to reverse both in
the periods prior to and after 1 April
2023 and therefore the deferred tax
asset has been recognised at the
relevant tax rate.

Or 23 September 2022, it was
announced that the corporation tax
rate change from 19% to 25% with
effect from 1 Aprit 2023 was to be
cancelled. This was not substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date
and therefore the impact of this
change is not reflected in the
measurement of deferred tax. If the
rate change had been substantively
enacted prior to 30 June 2022, the
impact would have been to reduce
the deferred tax asset by £50.1m

L 2o year figures

with a corresponding charge to the
income statement.

Other temporary differences are
comprised primarily of timing
differences relating to deferred
income and provisions that are tax
deductible as utilised. Temporary
differences arising in connection with
unramitted earnings of overseas
subsidiaries and interests in
associates are insignificant.

attetie deferred tax pos Lion See note 7 for detall

There is an urirecognised deferred
tax asset of £478.4m (2021: £420.4m
{Restated}). This is in respect of tax
losses of £40.7m (2021 £40.7m) and
deferred interest expenses £437.8m
(2021: £379.7{Restated)). These
deferred tax assets may be carried
forward indefinitely. These assets
have not heen recognised since it is
not prohanle that these assets will be
able to he utilised against future
taxahle profits of the Group.

The Group continues Lo recognise its
deferred tax assets as supported hy
the same long-term group profit
forecasts that are used for goodwill
impairment testing {see note 14). No
attributes have a time expiry and
these forecasts show the deferred
tax assets reversing to a net liability
position by 30 June 2030, Due to the
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iong-term stable nature of the tax asset is not considerad to be reasonably possible trading
business, with significant long term materiaily exposed to the forecasts.
contracts, the recognised deferred performance of the Group Dased pn

20 Cash and cash equivalents

30 June 2022 30 lune 2021
£m £m
Cash at bank %7 5.4
Short e deponits 2355 2351
Total cash and cash equivstents 2531.2 243.5
21 Discontinued operations and disposal group held for sale
On 8 tuly 2020, the Group sold its The profit on the disposal of the The post-tax gain on disposal of
Telecoms infrastructure and related discontinued operation is not subject  discontinued operations was
assets including its 100% interest in to UK Corporation tax as it is exempt  determined as follows:
Argivae Services Limited and its under the Substanitial Shareholding
subsidiaries. Exemption.

30 June 2021

Totai cash sonsideiaton receved
Less (ash disposed of

Less deferred incame ganeratea in relation to fultre services

Net cash intlow on dieposal of disconninued gperations

Hot amsets dizpoed (oibhar than cash)

Graelwill N
Intangible assets BR]
Property, Foand egquipment 5015
Trave and other receiv 177
Contract asnets 202

De-forrod 1ax

wrie and other payatlen

Contrent patouties

tax gain on crposal o

Samer dispnsa of

Lrimued aperauon

included within the total cash consideration received was an amount related to the buyers continued use of Araivs
sites infuture years, and as such represents deferred income for the Graun, This amount hag therefore been deducted
from thetoral considaration when calcuiating the gain on disposal.
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Result of discontinued operations
The results of the discontinued aperations are disclosed in the Income Statement.

Statement of cash flows
The staternent of cash flows includes the following amounts relating to discontinued operations:

30 June 2021

£m
Qperating activities s
Investing aclivities
Finanging activities
Net cash from discentinged operatinns 2.5
22 Trade and other payables
30 fune 2022 30 lune 2021
[Restated]®
£m £m
Current
Tracde and other payables
Tracde payables x8.2 443
Taxation and sncial security 146 165
Cither payebles 4.4 51
Accruals 5%.8 545
121.0 120.4
Carporation tax 2.4 2.4
Contract liabilities 106.2 9%.5
Non-current
Centract habilities 3714 355.5

o1 year figLres have beer restated 0 1efl ne gdiislmieat 1o the defer ed oy apemen Sae s dte 12 for getan
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23 Borrowings

Denominated currency 30 lune 2022 30 june 2021
£m £m
within current liabilities:
Leasa habiities Sterling 88 2106
Bank facilties Ltering 4.0
Seniar honds, noteg and private placements Sterling 504 56.7
Accrued interest on jumior and cerar finanong? tng il.z 11.0

Aecrued interest on shareholder loan notes? Sterling 2,546

Borrowings due within one year 2,961.3

Within non-current liabilities:

Bank Inans 2B4.5 287.6
Lenior debt Sleriing 620 2.0

Issue 1, Sterting (0.5) {0.5)

Othar faoiities Sterling 3.0 761

Cther ierng 1,278.0 1,324.4
dyeedds, soter private placeme Steelirg E57.0 7074

r honds steriing 5150 R25.0

cuot Ste (a.03) 1200

Sharebalder ivan notes Stering 2,148.1 2,138.1
Lesce hiabilitios Sterhing 66.8 86.3
Borrawings due after more than one year i 3,777.4 3,é46.4

Included within the £6,738.7m (2021: £6,179.3m) are debt Issue costs of £4.5m (20211 £8.5m). Total borrowings
excluding these amounts are £6,743 2 (2021: £6,187.8m}, which comprise debt principal and interest, Lhe maturity of
which i included in the table below.

30 June 2022 30 june 2021

fm £m

Borrowings falling due within:

e yeur

Cins 0 five yea re 3,317.8 3,303.5
Maore thar 4550 42 G
Total 6,738.7 6,179.3

The weighted average interest rate of - Bank loans form part of the Group’s A summary of the moverment in

borrowings {excluding sharehalder senior debt. Other loans comprise horrowings during the financial yesr is
interest as described above) i« 5.85%  the Group’s senior bonds and notes given below:
(2021 5.44%). and junior bonds.
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Borrowings: Reference At 1 July 2021 iease Amcunts Amounts AL 30 June
mavements drawn repaid 2022
£m £m £m £m £m
Senior debt —netitational term foan {7 9001 - Ao
Sernor debt — Eurgpran inveutment b} 17201 172.0
Bank
Orher faciities {c} 261 3.1 3.0
Barnk fachinies {e 34.0; 34.0
Senior bonds, notes and US private fa) 7641 {(56.7) 707.4
Hacement
buion Ly i 625.0 6250
Total bank loany and private 1,677.2 - 34.8 {59.8) 1,651.4
placements
Leace liabilities g} 73 {(21.7} 25.8
Sharcholder lcah notes thi 2,1481 21481
Total borrowings excluding accrued 2,932.6 123.7) 34.0 {59.8} 3,885.1

interest

The Group’s borrowings cutlined in
the table above incorporate;

{a} an institutional term loan (2022:
£90.0m outstanding; 2021: £90.0m)
with an expected maturity date of
Decermber 2023,

b} a loan from the Furopean
frvestment Bank (2022: £172.0m
outstanding; 2021: £172.0m) with an
expected maturity date of June 2024.

(¢} financing facitities in Argiva Smart
Financing Limited (a Group company)
established in December 20173 that
support the Group’s smart energy
metering contracts by financing the
purchase of communication hubs.
This £30m facility matures in June
2028 and a net of £23.0m was drawn
at the end of June 2022 (June 2021:
£26.1m}. The remaining £3.9m
commitment was cancelled on 27th
Navember Z2020. This loan is
amaortising over time with the final
maturity In June 2028,

These loans have floating rates of
interest with margins ranging from
SONIA + 1.30% to 2.50%.

(d) Working capiral facitity (2022:
£34.0m outstanding; 2021: £nil},
which has an expected maturity date
of July 2024, This facility is floating

rate in nature with a margin over
SONIA of 130 bps. Argiva Financing
Nol Limited ("AF17) is the borrower
under all these arrangerments.

The Group has £216.0m (2021:
£250m} of undrawn senior debt
facilities availeble. These facilities are
at floating interest rates. For further
information on the Group’s liguidity
risk managernent, see note 25,

{e} a2 combination of publicly listed
bonds and US private placement
notes.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group has
£444.0m (2021; £470.7m) sterling
denominated bonds outstanding
with fixed interest rates ranging
between 4 88% and 5.34% (2021:
4.88% and 5.34%), These bonds are
repayable between December 2022
and Decernber 2032 and are iisted on
the London Stock Exchiange. Argiva
Financing Plcis the jssuer of all the
Group’s senior listed bonds.

The remaining senicar notes relate to
a number of US private placement
issues in steriing with floating
interest vates. The Group has
£263.4m (2021: £293.4m) of sterling
derominated floating rate US private
placements that are amortising in
nature with repayments due

hetween December 2022 and
December 2029. These instruments
have a margin over SONIA of
between 210 and 220 Bps.

The fair value of the guoted senior
bonds based upon observable market
prices {fair value hierarchy level 1)
was £474.8m (2021: £561.7m) whilst
their carrying value was £444.0m
(2021 £470.7m).

The remaining £263.4m (2021
£283.4m} of senior debt relates 1o
other unguoted barrowings.

The directors consider the fair value
of all other un-guoted borrowings to
be a close approximale to their
carrying amount.

{f) Junior bonds of £625.0m
represent ameounts raised from the
issuance of notes hy Argiva
Broadcast Finance Ple, These notes
have a fixed interest rate of 6.75%
and are repayable In September
2023, These notes are listed on the
Luxembourg Market.

As discussed in note 31, onthe 19
August 2022, the Group signed a
commitment for a £450m term
facility and a £50m Working Capital
Facility both with an expected
maturity date of 2028, These

Argiva Group Limited {company reg 05254001}
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facitities are floating rate in nature
with a margin over SONIA, Argiva
Broadcast intermediate Limited {(a
subsidiary of the Group} is the
borrower of this arrangement, The
proceeds of this facitity when drawn
will be used to redeem the Groups
outstanding £625m junior bonds.

The Group continues to comply with
all covenant requirements, including
financial covenants as detailed on
page 32.

The fair value of the guoted junior
bonds based upon chservable market
prices {fair value hierarchy level 1)
was £587.6m (2021 £643.0m) whilst
their carrying value was £625.0m
(2021 £625.0m).

(g} Ohiigations under leases are as
detined within niote 24.

(k) Shareholder loan notes which are
unsecured, are listed on the Channel
lslands Stock Exchange, are
repayable between September 2024
and September 202%, and cannot be
called upon early. The shareholder
joan notes carry a fixed rate of
interest ranging between 13% and
14% applicable to the capital and
un-paid interest which can he
deferred at the option of the Group
subject 1o certain canditions,
gualitication of which are subject to
hi-annual review, applicable to the
capital and unpaid interest. The

Group has exercised this option to
defer interest payrents since 2009.

The Group's senjor bonds and notes
are structured within a Whole
Business Securitisagtion package
(WBS). These instruments have
covenants attached, principally an
interest and debt service cover ratio
and a debt leverage ratio. The Group
continues to comply with all
covenant requirements.

There have been no breachies of the
terms of the loan agreements during
the current or previous year.

The value of the interest deferred on
the shareholder loan notes at 30 June
2022 was £2,846.9m (2021
£2,244.2m)
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24 lLeases

Leases as lessee [IFRS 16)

The Group holds lease arrangements primarily relating to land and buildings, circuit contracts and vehicles.
Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets related (o leased properties and land are presented as plant and equipment. Plant and equipment
leases relate to the use of fibre, other fixed telecommunications lines, and IT equipmert,

Leasehold buildings Plant and Total
£m equipment
Em £m
As ot 1luly 2020 68 3 510 119.3
Deprecation charge for tha year {30.03) {14°6) [24.6)
Addiuons to night-of-use asset: g1 4.4 125
Effact of modifeation to lease Terms 23 2.3
Derecogrition of right-ol-use assets {4.1} {73.8)
At 30 June 2021 646 353
Deprecation charee for the year (%3} 113.2}
Additions to nght-of use assets 1.0 0.3
Eftect of medificatinn to leasse tarmg {18} 1.5 -
Derecopnition of right ot use gisets s} (0.5)
Balance at 30 June 2022 536 4.2 77.8
Amounts recognised in the Income Statement
Leases under IFRS 16 Year ended Year enged

38 June 2022

20 june 2021

£m £m
Expense relating to vadable lease payments not included i the measuramant of lease 3.7 Lo
flshiities

tnterest on lease habilities

Amounts recognised in the Cash flow Statement

6.7

7.4

Year ended 30

Year ended 30

tune 2022 tune 2021

£m Em

Repayment of capital glement of leage reral: 221 406
67 71

Interest element of iease rentals

The Group’s lease Habilities are disclosed in note 23 Barrowings. The maturity profile of the Group’s lease liabilities are

disclosed in note 25 Financial instruments and risk management,
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25 Financial instruments and risk management

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to
ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going
concern white maxirising the return
to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and eguity
halance.

The capital structure of the Group
conisists of net debt (as set out in
note 27; see note 20 for cash and
cash equivalents and note 23 for
borrowings) and equity of the Group
{comprising issued capltal and share
premium, reserves, retained earnings
and non-controlling interests)

Levels of debt are maintained on an
ongoing basis to ensure thal no
breaches occur and repayments can
be and are made a3 necessary with
refinancing carried out as required.

Significant accounting policies
Details of significant accounting
policies and methods adopted
{including criteria for recognition, the
basis of measurement and the hases
for recognition of income and
expenses) for each class of financial
asset and financial liability are
disclosed in full in note 3.

The Group's derivatives {i.e. intérest
rate and inflation linked) are
measured on a fair value through
profit and loss basis. Whilst the
Group’s derivatives act as an effective
hedge in econamic terms, hedge
accounting principles are not appliied.
This means that the Group's
derlvatives are recognised at their
rick-adiusted fair value (i.e. risk-
adiusted Mark to-Market vatue} st
the date they are entered into and
are revalued at each balance sheet

121 Argiva Group Lt
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date, with gains and losses being
reported separately In the income
statement within ‘other gains and
fosses’. Net amounts paid in the yedr
{excluding termination amounis) on
interest rate swaps (together with
similar amounts under the cross
currency and index linked swaps) are
reported as a component of net bank
and other loan interest within finance
Costs.

Financial risk management

The Group's treasury function
provides services to the business,
coordinates access to domestic and
international financial markets,
monitors and manages the financial
riske relating to the operations of the
Group using financial instruments
wherever it s appropriate to do so.

The treasury function reports into the
Groun Finance Direcior and the
Group’s Board of Directors and the
Audit and Risk Committes, an
independent function with a scope
that includes monitoring the risks and
policies implemented to mitigate risk
exposures, The main risks addressed
by financial instruments are interest
rate risk and foreign currency
exchange risk. The Group’s policies in
respoct of these risks remain
unchanged throughout the year.

The Group enters into a variely of
derivative financial Instruments to
manage its exposure to foreign
currency and interest rate risk,
including:

- interest rate swaps, includirg
inflation-linked swaps, to
mitigate the risk of rmoverment in
interest rates; and

- Forward foreign exchange
contracts to manage exchange
risks arising from transactional
foreign exchange exposures.

The Group does not enter into or
trade financigt instruments, including
derivative financial instruments, for
sperulative purposes.

Foreign currency risk management
The Group principally operates from
UK sites and predominantly in the UK
market, but has some averseas
subsidiaries and transactions
denominated in foreign currencies,
While some customer and supplies
contracts zre denominated in other
currencies {mainty US dotfars (‘USD)
and Euro), the majority of the
Group’s revenue and Costs are
Sterling hased and accordingly
exposure to foreign exchange risk is
fimited.

Foreign currency exchange risk can he
subdivided into two components,
1transactional risk and transiation risk:

Transactional risk: The Group's policy
is to hedge material transactional
CUrrency exposures via the use of
forward foreign excharge contracts.
The rmeasurement and control of this
risk is monitored on a Group—-wide
basis.

Transiation risk: The Group transiates
cverseas results and net assets in
accordance with the accounting
policy in note 3. Given the Group
predominantly operates in the UK,
there is a relatively small exposure
with oversess entities accounting for
only 1.3% (2021: 0.1%) of operating
profit and 0.1% (2021: 0.1%) of tatal
assets for the Group.
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The Sterling equivaients of the carrying amournits of the Group’s foreign currenicy denominated monetary assets and
tabiiities {exciuding hedged currency and US dollar-denominated borrowings) at the year-end were a5 follows:

30 June 2022 30 June 2071

£m fm
Monetary assets:
s Doliar 41 3.4
bure 1173 206
Other {iacludng SGG*) 1.2 25
Total 17.3 26.5
WManetary Kabilities:
US Dollar {1.4) {(1.6)
furo (7.1} {7 6}
Total i8.5]) (8.2}

*refers to Simgapore dotiar, being the most Treguently trangacted currency within ‘other maneta

Interest rate risk management

The Group has variable rate bank and
US private placement debt and uses
interest rate swaps (IR} and
inflation-linked swaps ('ILS") to hedge
its exposure 1o rising interest rates.
The Group maintains a hedging
policy to manage interest rate risk
and to ensure the certainty of future
imterest cash flows. The Group has
fixed rate hedging, spiit between IRS
and ILS. IRS convert variable rate
interest costs to fixed rate interest
costs while ILS convert fixed or
variable rate interest costs to RPI-
linked costs, which fluctuate in line
with the RPl index as do a portion of
the Group’s revenue contracts. These
swaps are entered into on terms
{including maturity) that mirror the
debt instrument they hedge, and
therefore act as an effective
economic hedge.

As the Group uses hedging ta
maintain fixed interest rates on the
majority of its material borrowings
lexcluding revolving fadilities), thera
is minimal exposure on the interest
expense to interest rate movements.
Arise or fall in interest rates would
therefore not materialty impact the
interest expense payable by the
Group.

Liquidity risk management

To ensure it has sufficient available
funds for working capital
reguirements and plarned growth,
the Group maintains cash reserves
and access to undrawn committed
faciiities to cover forecast
requirements.

The Group is due to repay or
refinance £3.3bn of debt in the next
5years to 30 june 2027. Regular
reviews are performed to assess
headroom between interest and
rapital repayments against forecast
cash fiows, thus monitoring the
frquidity risk and the Group's ability
to repay the debt,

Cradit risk management

The Group carefully manages the
counterparty credit risk on liquid
funds and derivative firancial
instruments with balances currently
spread across a range of major
firancial institutions, which have
credit ratings not lower than A-
assigned by international credit
rating agencies. The levels of credit
risk are monitored through the
Group’s ongoing risk management
processes, which include a regular

review of counterparty credit ratings.

Risk in this area Ts limited further by
setting & maximum level and term
for deposits with any single
counterparty.

<sete znd lisbilities’

The Group is exposed to credit risk
on customer receivables, which is
managed through credit-checking
pracedures prior te taking on new
customers and higher risk customers
naying in advance of services heing
provided. Performance is closely
monitored to ensure agreed service
levels are maintained, reducing the
level of ueried payments and
mitigating the risk of uncollectable
debts. Expected impairment for
trade receivables are calcutated
based on historical default rates.
Details of this provision are shown in
note 18.

The following tables set out the
maturity profile of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities and
derivative financial tiabilities.

The amounts presented in respect of
the non-derivative financial liabilities
represent the gross contractual cash
flows on an un-discounted basis.
Accordingly, these amounts may not
reconcile directly with the amounts
disclosed in the statement of
financial position.

The amounts presented in respect of
the Group’s derivative financial
instrurnents represent their fair
value and are sccordingly consistent
with the amounts included in the
statement of financial position.
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SWHES

Total swaps

Total financial iability

Amounts fafling due

interest Total financial

to be liability per

After incursed statement of
five Effectof  in future financial
years Total  discounting periods position
£m £m fm £m

L 382

LW 4.4

628 63.8

451.7 3,7495.1 37951
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227 85.6 856
nE 1 276.0 (265.7) 11.2
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{327 Q.7 (33.0)

1734 (27.9} 345.5
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Interest vy fWaps
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Total financial fiabitity
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After
five
years

661.0 6,958.3

fffect of
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£fm Em
435
51
545

"
iz

(30.4)

Interest
to be

incurred
in future

periods

im

Total financial
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statement of
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pasition

£m

43.9
5.1
54.5
3,825.3
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3,928.8

107.3
11.0

2,244.2

(6.8)
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The table beiow ocutlines the additional financing facilities avaiiable to the Group:

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

£m im
Seecured bank facihities,
Amount utiised 240
Amnurd unutilised 2360 2500
Total 250.0

250.0

Financial instruments

With the exceplion of derivative
financial instruments {(which are
recognised and measured at fair
value through profit and lass) the
Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are recognised and
measured fallowing the finarcial
assets measured at amortised cost
recognition category.

The weighted average interest rate
of fixed rate financial Habilities at 3G
June 2022 for the next 12 months
was 6.044% (2021: 6.1%) and the
weighted average period of funding
was 3.4 years (2021; 4.3 years).
Within the Group’s financial Habilities
were borrowings of £6,738.7m
(2021: £6,179.3m) (see note 23},
which includes £582.3m (2021:
£581.5m) with floating rate interest
and the remainder with fixed rate
interest {(prior to the hedging
arrangements described previously).

The Group's financial assets
measured at amortised cost
comprise cash and cash equivalents
of £251.2m (2021: £243.5m) and

or year compnarative has been
d to exclude pre
which totalied £60m.

payment balanreg

other financial aszets of £75.0m
{2021 restated: £68.0m} as
presented in notes 20 and 18
respectively.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group seeks to manage the
exposures of its debt payment
ohligations through a combination of
index linked and interest rate swaps.

At the year end, the Group held
interest rate swaps with notionai
amounts of £420.5m (2021:
£444.6rm) which hedge the interest
obligations of the Group's floating
rate debt. The average fixed rate on
these instruments is 0.2% (2021:
0.2%}. The swap contracts have
rermination dates that match the
maturities of the underlying floating
rate deht instruments {see note 23).

The Group has also entered into
index lirked swaps (notional
amounts of £681.8m in 2022; 2021:
£681.8m) where the Group receives
ficating and pays fixed linked to
infiation interest obligations to an
average rate of 2.9% indexed with

RPL The notional amounts of these
swaps increase with RPLand these
accretion armourits are cash settled
annually, most recently in June 2022
(£89.96m; 2021: £14.5m) based on
the March index.

All of these instruments have a
maturity date of April 2027, These
instruments were established to
hedge the Group’s fixed rate debt
(namely fixed rate sterling bonds and
the fixed rate US Private Placement
issues) and in order to ensure that
the cash flow characteristics align
with these instruments, the Group
has entered into £600.5m (2021:
£657.1m} of fixed to floating rate
interest rate swaps to match the
cash flows on both the fixed rate
debt instruments and the index
finked swaps set out above.

The fair value of the interest rate and
intlation linked swaps at 30 June
2027 is a liability of £312.5m {2021:
£376.3m). This tair value is calculated
Jsing a risk adjusted discount rate.

Argiva Group LimHed {(company reg 05254001) 1
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The following table details the fair velue of financial instruments recognised on the statement of financisl position:

Within non-current assets

interest rate swaps

Within non-current liabikities
Interest rate swaps

Intiztion-finted ntevost rate swopns

Total

Change e fair value recogrised in the mecie statem

Atsributable 16 charges in maerkel copdi

- Altributable Lo changes i perosived crodi risk

Total foss recognised in the income statermernt

Cash settioment of nrincipal acer

Cash owflow on regeraptic: SWERS

Ercentivinal ioes recogrised an close actof imflatian arke

Cxoeptional oy 7scr

Where possible, the Group secks to
rrateh the maturity of any derivative
contracts with that of debt
instruments that it has issued. In

sorme of the Group’s derivative -

mstruments, break clauses have

heen included to both match

underlying faciity misturities and 1o
optimise the availability and cost of
hedging lines with the Group’s -
derivative counterparties

The fair value of zil other finan
assets and liabilities is considered to
be a clgse approximation 1o their
carrying amount,

ial

Fair vatue hierarchy
Financial instrurnents that are

measured subseguent 1o initial -

recognition at fair value are grouped

o
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nne gy of fnterest eat

noon eflatan-linked swans

into levels 110 3 based onvthe
degree to which the faw value is
observahie:

Level 1 fair value
measiyrements are those

derived from guoted prices
{unadjusted) in active m

for identical assets or lisbilities;

Level 2 fair value
measurements are those
derived from inputs other than
guoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observahble for
the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) ar
indirectly {i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3 fair value
measurements are those

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

fm fm
330 7.2
330 7.2

(0.4)

{312.5) {326.3}
(725 (1.8}

derived from valuation
technigues that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are
not hased on observable
market dsta {unobservable
inputs).

nterest rate swaps and inflation-
linked swaps are all classed as level 2
on the fair value hisrarchy. In each
case the items are valued hased
upon discounted cash flow, Future
cash flows are estimated based on
forward {interest/ inflation/
exchangej rates observable from
rates and yield curves st the end of
the reporting period, znd contract
rates, discounted at a risk-adjusted
rate.
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26 Provisions

Decommissioning ARestructuring Remediation Onerous Other Total
Contracts

Em £m Em fm £m £m

AL T July 2021 71.5 1.9 51 4.7 7.2 £29.4

Incofne staternent expensa 1.7 0.3 0.7 2.7

Adjustments throvgh property, plant snd . .

cquipment 13 1.2

Urnwind of discount IR 0.2 an

keleased - (1.6} 11.2) 131) {5.9)

Utihsed {1 (a0 {3.7)
At 30 fune 2022 - 7?83 e 1.0 37 - 4.8 873

30 June 2022 30 fune 2021

£m £m
Analysed as:
Curreat 29 3.
Nen-Lurrant 4249 H6.2
£7.8 $9.4

Provisions are made for
decommissioning costs where the
Group has an obligation to restore
sites and the cost of restoration is not
recoverahle from third parties.

The decommissioning provisions are
reviewed annually and calculated using
expected costs as determined by site
and project management. The
provision is in relation to assets for
which the remaining useful economic
life ranges up to 20 years, with the

majority of the provision relating to TV
and Radio products for which there is
no material decommissioning expected
before 2040. A discount rate of 5.6%
has been applied in calculating the
decommissioning provision (2021:
5.4%} based on the Group’s weighted
average cost of capital.

The restructuring provision relates to
the costs of exceptional activities to
reorganise the Group.

The remediation provision represents
the cost of works identified a5 being
required across a number of the
Group's sites and is expected to be
WHiliced over the next one to ten years.

Ctlher provisicns represent a variefy of
smaller iterns which are expected to be
utilised over the next one to ten years.
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27 Notes to the cash flow statement

Reconciliation from operating nrofit 1o net cash fraom oper

ing activities:

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
v Em
Gperating prof 1132 1404
Adjustrmants for
Depreciaton of peoperty, plant ardd cyapmernt 1584 1635
Amortisation of intangible atsets }'5.2 8.7
trceptional ioss on disposal of assets 4.5
impairment of as5ets R
Loss on disposal of property, nlant and equipment 21 31
Cther incore {9.3)
Fevenue service credils
Receipt of insuance stage paymers -
Cperating cach fisws before mavem 3124
Decrears 11 receivabile: 25.3 241
(Uacreata) [ increase v peyaales (5125 57.¢
{Lecrese] /intrease 1 provisions %8 5.6
snefil Penian Fan .6 1

Cash generated from operating activities
Taxes pad

Net cash from operating activities

Anaiysis of changes in financial ablities:

Changes in Changes in Other changes
financing foreign Changes in including
At 1 july cash flows exchange fair value  accrued interest At 30 June
2021 (Cash) (Non-cash} {Non-rash) {Non-cash} 2022
£m fm £&m £m fm £in
Cumrent borrowangs (Note 2%) 777 54,6} =01 103.%
3,854 9 177.5} 3,777 4
2,244 2 £L27 2,545 9
11 {54 ) 550 312
2363 90 Oy 75.2 i1rh
Total 6,514.1 (23%.4) - 6.2 700.3 7,051.2

The moverrents a

bove do not include

ments (see note 23).

]
~J
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28 Financial commitments and contingent liabilities

Financing commitments

Under the terms of the Group's external debt facilities, the Group has provided security over substantially all of its assets by
way of a Whole Business Securitisation structure.

Capital commitments

Commitments for the acquisition of plant and equipment contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as a

ltahility are payable as follows:

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

£m £m

Within oric year G7 43 1
Within twio to five years 6.8

16.6 231

Total capital commitments

There are ne capital comimitrments payable in more than five years.,

Contingent assets and liabiiities

Bilcdale Tower Firg:

On 10 August 2021 a fire broke out at
our Bilsdale transmitter site. Argiva’s
engineers have worked on a four-stage
recevery plan 1o reinstate services
delivered via this site. Through efforts
utilising existing and temporary
infrastructure, 1o date around 99% of
households have been returned to a
coverage area for TV and commercial
radic benefited from improved
coverage to what it was before the
fire. Argiva continues to engage with
local stakeholders, including viewers,
MPs, local government and Lthe media
through its ‘Bilsdale Mast: Project
Restore’ programme,

Argiva has been informed that its’
insurers have now concluded their
investigations. Precise findings have

not been publicly shared and Argiva is
unable te comment in detail on these
findings white the claims process s
ongoing.

These finzncial staterments include
losses recognised on disposal of assets
damaged or destroyed in the incident
and subsequently disposed of, as well
as costs incurred in the period, see
note 7. Management continues to
work with specialist advisors to assess
any further potential financial
penalties and service credits that may
be due to third parties. At the current
time it is not possibie to determine the
expected outcome or guantification of
such amounts and therefore the
Directors consider this represents a
contingent liability. The group holds
insurance coverage and management
continues 1o engage with the group's

insurers to assess the value of losses
and restoration costs.

Al the current time such insurance
claims are considered contingent
assets and are not therefore
recognised in the statement of
financial position in accordance with
accounting standards, with the
exception of a first interim stage
payment of £5.0m which was received
from the Group’s insurers in June 2027
which has been recorded as
exceptional other income (see note 7).

Cn 21 September 2022, a second
interim stage payiment of £10.0m was
received from the Insurers in relation
to the Bilsdale fire. At 30 June 2022,
this represented a contingent asset
and has therefore riot been recognised
in the income statement.
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29 Retirement benefits

Defined contribution scheme

Argiva Limited has operated a Defined
Contribution Scheme during the year,
for those employees who are not
members of the Group’s Defined
Benefit Plan, Contributions gayable in
respect of this Scheme for the year
were £5.4m (2021 £6.8m). The assets
of the scheme are held outside of the
Group.

An amount of £O.9m {2021 £1.2m}is
included in accruals being the
outstanding contributions to the
Defined Contribution Scheme,

Defined benefit plan

tn the year to 30 June 2022, the Group
operated one Defined Benefit Plan,
sponsored by Argiva Limited. The
Defined Benefit Plan is administered
by a separate entity that s legally
separated from the Group, and
therefore the Plan assets are held

separately from those of Argiva
Limited. The Trustees of the Plan are
required by faw to act in the interests
of the Plan and of ail refevant
stakeholders in the Plan. The Trustees
are responsible for the mvestment
policy with regards the aswets of the
Plan.

The Plan typically exposes the Group
o risks such as: investment risk,
interest rate risk, fongevity risk, and
salary risk.

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit Plan liability for 1AS19 purposes is calculated using
a discount rate determined by reference to high quality corporate bond vields, which is
different 1o how the Plan assets are invested. Currently the Plan has a relatively balanced
investment in equity securities, deht instruments and real gstate. Due to the long-term
nature of the Plan liabilities, the trustees of the Plan consider it appropriate that a
reasanahle portion of the Plan assels should be invested in equity securities to leverage
the expected return generzted by the Plan assets.

Interest risk

A decrease in the bond intérest rate will increase the valuation of the Plan’s 1A5S19 lighility
but this will be partially offset by zn increste in the value of the Plan’s

cerporate hond

Longevity risk

& 10 a best
estimate of the mortaiity of Plan participants hoth during and after their retirement. An
increase in the He expectancy of the Plan participants will increase the Flan's assessed
fiability.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit Plan lability is calculated by reference 1o the
future salaries of Plan participants. As such, an increase inthe salary of the Plan partidipants
will increase the Flan's liability,

The triennial valuation carried out as ot

The Plan closed to the future accrual of
benefits on 31 January 2016. The
weighted average duration of the
expected benefit payments from the
Plan is around 16 years.

30 June 2020, has been used for the
purposes of measuring the plan assets
and the present value of the defined
henefit iability. This was carried out by

18519 defined benefit liability, and the
related current service cost and past
service cost, have been measured
using the projected unit credit method
based on roll-forward updates to the

an independent firm of consulting
actuaries, The present value of the

tatest triennial valuation figures.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the sctuarial valuations were as follows:

30 June 2022 30 june 2021

Key assumptions
Diccount rate

Erce inflauga (RE)

Ltk expectanry of 2 maie / temale age 60

e eapectanicy of 3 mate / ferazie

Other linked assumptions

Beeinfigticn 0Py

rieses (KFD with

2 80% 7 50%
330 3.10%
L6 LR TS 26 Tyre [ TEAyrs

ITTIEC Ly

27 Fyro f 25 Tyns

LY I.30%

IR ST R F 505

[&P] with 7 e um of 10%; 3 313%
i r'/;
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Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement in respect of the defined benefit plan were as follows:

Year ended Year ended

30 june 2022 30 June 2021

fm fm

Net mterest on Lhe debimed henefit asset 1.0 0.3
Loss on cdrtainents {2.6) {1.1)

0.4 (08)

The rniet interest itemn above has been included within finance income (see note 9). The re-measurement of the net defined
benefit Fability is included in the statement of comprehensive income. The loss on curtaifments incurred during the year
has been included within exceptional costs (see note 7).

Amounts recognised in the statemem of comprehensive income in respect of the defined benefit plan were as follows:

Year ended Year ended

30 fune 2022 30 fune 2021

£m £m

[Loss) /return o Plan assels excluding Interest Income (%3.6} 12.2
Expenence (lowses) / gains arming on the Plan’s habdwes 174} 53
Actuarial guing arfsing from changes i hinancial assumyaions 659 8.3
Actuanial gains ansing flom changes in demographic ascurmptions U6 0.6

The amount incduded in the staternent of financial position arising from the Group’s obligations in respect of its defined
benefit plan was as follows:

30 June 2022 30 june 2021

£m £y

Fait vaiue of Plan assets 2456 2559
present vaiue of defined benefit Plar b {154 .6} (248.5)
Surplus at 30 June 61.0 471

The Group has considered the impact of IFRIC14 and in line with the Plan’s Rules, the Group is able to recognise the Plan’s
surplus iri its entirety,
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r the year is as follows:

s

inancial position ov

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2622 30 June 2021

£fm fm

Serplies gt Tioly 471 161

Arnaunt reccgnised in profit orloss 04 {28}

Amouist recogrised in Gther Comprehensive income 5.7 in.4g

Campany contributions £2 54

Surplus at 30 june 61.0 - 4?-._?:7
The present value of the pian llabilities has moved over the year as follows:

Year ended Year ended

3Q june 2022 30 June 2021

£m

1 Juty (2481} (366.8)

Contributions by emsloyess {0.3)

intarest coct {4 6} [E5)

Banefits paid 91 93
txperienca (lossas) / gamz atsing on the Flam’s habitaes {7 7}
Actuariat gains arising fom changes i finan asturiphang (6 9

PEES N GENGET ARG el nhions 04 4R

el (1.1}

a {184.6) - " (248.8)

moved over the year as follows:

Year ended Year ended
30 lume 2022 30 June 2021
fm £
1 luly 2959
interest mcomie ) a7
{Loss) / return on Plar pcsets ex e (B3.€)
Cortrbunons by eriloger &8 o4
Cuartnpshiors by empioyees 5
Benelivg paid w1y 2%
30 June 245.6 285.9
131 Argiva Group Limited (compary reg 05254001
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The major categories and tair values of Plan assets at the end of the reporting year for each category are as follows:

30 June 2022 30 june 2021

£m £

Eguty mstruments &6 29.8
Diversitied growth funds 197 212
Corparale honds 614 740
Wiult ascet credil 169 201
Government honds 033 905
Cash and equivalents 57 0.3

T s 2959

Total

As at 30 June 2022 £7.4m of the Plan’s
corparate bonds were unguoted. All
other equity and debt assets have
guoted prices in active markets,

The Plan includes holdings of gilts and
corporate bonds, which are intended
to partially hedge the finandial risk
from lizbility valuation movemaents
associated with changes in gilt and
corporate bond yields. 1AS19 liahility
movements from changes in the
discount rate will also be partially
hedeged by the Plan’s corporate hond
holding,

No amounts within the fair value of
the Plan assets are in respect of the

The sensitivity of the 2022 year end results 1o changes in the three key assumptions

Group's own financial instruments or
any properfy occupied by, or assets
used by, the Group.

The triennial vaication carried out as at

30 June 2020, was approved and
signed on 27 January 2022, has been
used for the purposes of measuring
the plan assets and the present value

of the defined henefit Hability. This was

carried out by an independent firm of

consuiting actuaries. The present vaiue

of the IAS19 defined benetit liability,
and the refated current service cost
and past service cost, have been
measured using the projected unit
credit method based on roll-forward

Funding Position

Distount rate decrease of
0.1%

RPtincrease of 0.1%

updates to the latest triennial
valuation figures. Following
completion of the valuation as at 30
June 2020, Argiva Limited agreed to
pay deficit contributions of £5.4m in
July 2020, £5.0m in March 2022 and
£7.0minlune 2023,

Sensitivity Analysis

The assumptions considered to be the
most significant are the discount rate
adopted, inflation represented by RPY,
and the longevity assumptions.

is shown helow:
Longevity assumption
increase of 1 year

[ncrease in Plan habihties

The censitivity of the 2021 year end results to changes in the three key assumptions is shown below:

£2.0m

£6.1m

Funding Position

Discount rate decrease of
0.1%

RP increase of 1%

Longevity asswmption
increase of 1 year

ingrease 1n Plan labilities

£4.5m

£10.5m

This sensitivity anzalysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined henefit obfigation as it is unlikely that
the change in assumptions would occur iniselation of ane ancther as sorme of the assumptions may be correlated.

30 Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the s associates, joint ventures and the reporting date reflects refated

Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties, have been
e'fminated on consolidation and are
riot disclosed in this note.

Transactions with the Group’s pension
scheme are disclosed in note 29,
Transattions between the Group and

entities under common influence are
disclosed below,

The disclosure of transactions with
related parties refledts the periods in
which the related party relationshins
exist The disclosure of amounts
outstanding toffrom related parties at

party refationships at that date.

Trading transactions

During the year ended 30 June 2022
the Group entered into the following
transactions with related parties who
are not members of the Group:

Argiva Group Limited {company reg 05254001)
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Sale of goods and services

purchase of goods and services

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

30 June 2022 30 tune 2021 30 Jure 2G22 39 June 2021

£fm tm £m £m

Associates 01 2.1 3.6

faint ventures 4.4 35 2z By
Entities urider comman infioencs 138

18.3 2.3 5.6

All transactions are on third-party

terms and all outstanding halances, are

iriterest free, unsecured and are not
subject to any financial guarantee by
either party.

As 2t 30 june 2022, the amount
receivable from associates was fuif

{2021: £0.2rn) and the amount payable

Lo associates was £nil (20210 £nil}

As at 30 June 2022 the amount.
payable to ioint ventures was £0.2m

(2021 £0.3my).

As st 30 June 2022, the amount
receivable from entities under
commeon influence was £2.6m (2021:

£5.0m).

Remuneration of Directors and key
management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors and
key management personnel of the
Group is 5et out helow in aggregate for
each of the categories specified in 1AS
24 Retated Party Disclosures.

shottterm amployee Denefits

Terminutnn henefits

Postempiagr

it be

There are no members of the Directors

and key manage
none) wha are g member of the
Group's defined benefit pension
cheme {see note 29).

went personnel {2021

The members of the Directors and key

management personnel had no
material transactions with the Group
during the year, other than in

Year ended
30 June 2021

Year ended
30 lune 2022

£m £m
37 57
06 az
(.2 Lz
4.7 6.1

connection with their service

agreements,

Further information In respect of the
remuneration of the Company's
ctatutory Directors, including the
highest paid Director, has been
provided on page 139.

Investor transactions

There are two investor companes,
FICAL and MEIF 1), which are related
parties with the Group in accordance
with 1AS 24, by virtue of significant
shareholding in the Group. Refer to the
Directors’ report for further details of
these investor companies.

30 June 2022 MGIF ] * MEIW ib + Matyuarie FICAL +
Prism *
£m £m £m £m
TR 5I5E 23 LIN24
Srarebrlder loas ote aterect far tine yasr 30 130 52 RETI
ferrned sharehnder lngn note nierest B844.2 3405 i

T A elsied Larty by virtue oF comemonn Nuence,

AR S Al T
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30 June 2021 MGIF 1 * MEIF Il + Macguarie FICAL +
Prism *
£m fm £m £m
Shareholder loan notes 12.8 EIR.& 33 1,208 4
Sharebolder lpan note ierest for the yoar 2.7 1349 4.5 2603
Accrued shareholder lnan note interest 9.8 490.8 28.7 446 8
i party by vertue of common influen ¢
A nvestar comparnty and a releted party by virtue of significant shareholding (as ot 30 June 2021}
31 Events after the reporting period
Post year end an 19 August 2022, the
Group signed a commitment for g The maturity of Shareholder Lean notes On 23 September 2022, it was

£450m term facitity and a £50m
Working Capital Facility both with an
expected maturity date of 2028, These
facilities are floating rate in nature
with a margin over SONIA, Argiva
Broadcast Intermediate Limited {a
subsidiary of the Group) is the
borrower of this arrangement. The
proceeds of this facility when drawn
will he used to redeem the Groups
outstanding £625m Junior bonds.

32 Controlling parties

The Company is owned by a
consortium of shareholders including
Canada Pension Plan Investment
Board, Macquarie Furapean
Infrastructure Fund ll, other Macquarie
managed funds and minorities.

The largest and smizllest group in
which the resufts of the Company are

have also been extended since year end
and now have maturity dates ranging
from March 2029 10 March 2030.

On 21 September 2022, & second
interir stage payment of £10.0m was
received from the insurers in relation te
the Bilsdale fire. At 30 June 2022, this
represented a contingent asset and has
therefore not been recognised in the
income statement.

consolidated is that headed by Argiva
Group Limited

inJune 2022 it was announced that
Digital @ irfrastructure has agreed to
nurchase Canada Pension Plan
investment Board’s (CPPIB) entire 48%
stake in Argiva. Digital 9 Infrastrocture
i a dedicated infrastructure investor,
headguartered in the UK and with

announced that the corporation tax
rate change from 19% to 25% with
effect from 1 April 2023 was to be
cancelled. For further detail see riotes
12 and 19

significant experience in the
infrastructure industry, It is anticipated
that this deal will be completed later in
this calendar year. At that point the
representatives from CPPIB appointed
to the Board of Directors will be
replaced by representatives from
Digital 9 Infrastructure, This will not
change the day-to-day operations of
aur husiness.,

Argiva Group Limited {company reg 05254001)
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Directors’ report for Argiva Group Limited (‘the

Company’)

The Directors of Arqiva Group Limited,
registered company number
05254001, ("the Company’) subymit the
following annual repart and audited
financizl statements in respect of the
year ended 30 June 2022,

The Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements
as explained in the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilities, set out on
nage 72.

Business review and principal
activities

The Company acts as an ultimate
holding company of the Argiva Group
Limited 'AGL’) group (‘the Group’) of
LoMmpanies.

The Company has made a loss for the
[inancial year of L0 8m (2021 £0.8m}
and has net liahilities of £12.3m (2021
£11.5m),

Principal risks and uncertainties and
key performance indicators {('KPIs’)
From the perspective of the Company,
the principal risks and uncertainties
arising from its activities are integrated
with the principal risks and
uncertainties of the Group and are not
managed separately, Accordingly, the
orincipal risks and uncertainties of the
Group, which include those of the
Company, are discussed on pages 50 to
55,

Given the straightforward nature of
the Company’s activities, the Directors
are of the opinmion that analysis using
KPls is not necessary for an
understanding of the development,
performance or position of the
husiness, The KPIs of the Group are
discussed on pages 33 snd 34

Dividends and transfers to reserves
The Directors do not propose 1o pay a2
dividend (2027 nil}. The loss for the

financial year of £0.8m (2021: £0.8rm)
was charged to reserves.

company reg 052

Financial risk management

Due to the straightforward nature of
the Company’s operations, itis
exposed to limited financial risks. The
Group’s financial risk management
programme is detailed on page 66 to
67.

Future developments and going
concern

it is the intention of the Company to
continue to act as the Group’s ultimate
holding company.

The Campany adopts the going
concern basis in preparing its financial
statements on the basis of the furure
arofit, cash flows and available
resources of the Group which lead the
Directors of the Company to be
confidernt that the Company will have
adequate resources to continue in
operational existence forthe
foresecable future.

Directors

The loliowing held office as directors

of the Company during the year and up

to the date of this report:

- Mike Parton

- Mark Braithwaite {resigned 13 May
2022)

- Christian Seymour

- Petrer Adams (resigred 9 Decernber
2021)

- Sally Davis

- Neill King

- Martin Healey

- Frank Dangeard {resigred 1 July
2021)

- Michael Darcey

- Maximitian Fieguth (resigned 9
Decermnber 2021}

- Baticte Ogier

- HWathan Luckey (appointed 1 july
2021}

- Susana Leith-Smith {appomted 13
May 2022)

jeremy Mavor resigned from his
nosition as Cornpany Secretaryon &
April 2022, Katrina Dick was appointed
as Company Secretary oni 6 April 2022,

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has provided an
indernnity for its Directors and the
Company Secretary, which is a
yualifying third party indemnity
provision for the purpases of the
Companies Act 2006, This was in place
throughout the year ended 30 June
2022 and up 1o the date the finandial
staterments are signed.

Disclosure of information to the
independent auditors

The Directors of the Company in office
at the date of approval of this report
contirm that:

- so far as the Directors are aware
there is o relevant audit
information of which the Auditors
are unaware; and

- each Director has taken ali the
steps that he ought to have taken
as a Director tg make himseif
aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that
the Company’s Auditors are
aware of that information,

Signed for and on behalf of the Board

o e

Nike Parton - Director
26 September 2022
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Company statement of financial bosition

Note 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£m £m

Non-current assets
Dafarred tax
investments 3
Other recevables 4 24 1.4
Current assets
Other reeivabies 1 10 2k
Total asqets T 4.4 4.0

Current Habilities

Other payables 5 {16.7} {15.5}
Net current lizbilities {15.7] {12.9)
Net lizbilities (12.3) (11.5)
Equity

Share capital 652G 6525
Share premium 5156 2156
Accurnulated losses (981.8) {9%1.0)
Total equity [12.3) {11.5)

The accounting pelicies and notes on page 138 form part of these financiat statements.
The result for the financial year for the Comparny was 2 loss of £0.8m {2021: £0.8m loss).

These financial statements on pages 135 to 145 were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 September 2022 and were
sigried on its behalf by

S

Mike Parton - Director
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Share capitai® Share premium Accumulated losses Total equity
P P

£m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 july 2020 653.9 315.6 {980.2) {10.7)
Loss for the fimancial yesr - - (G HEE
Balance at 30 june 2021 653.9 315.6 (981.0) {11.5)
toos for the finantst year - (g} G.8)
Balance at 30 June 2022 653.9 115.6 {981.8) {12.3)

*omprisas 553,928,000 {202 (53,325,000 authonsed, msusd and fully paid ordinary shares of £1 each

37 Argiva Group Limited (company reg 05754001}
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Argiva Group Limited accounting policies and other information

Basis of preparation

As used in these financial statements
and associated notes, the term
‘Company’ refers to Argiva Group
Limited.

Argiva Group Limited is a private
company limited by shares
incorparated in the United Kingdom.
The registered address nf the Company
is Crawley Court, Winchester,
Hampshire, S021 2QA.

The Financial Statements of the
Company have been prepared in
accordance with Finandial Reporting

Standard 101, 'Reduced Disclosure
Framework' ('FRS 1017). The financial
statements have been prepared on a
going concern hasis under the
historical cost convention and in
sccordance with the Companies Act
2006, The Group's financial statements
{Argiva Group Limited and its
subsidiaries) are available online at
WAWLArGIVE.COM.

The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with The
Companies Act 2006 as applicakle
using FRS 101. As permitted by Section
408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, the

Company’s income statement has not
heen presented.

Accounting policies have been applied
consistently throughout.

New and revised Standards and
interpretations have heen adopted in
the current year, a tist of which can be
found innute 2 of the Group financial
statements. There is no material
impact onthe Company. The following
disclosure exemptions, as permitted by
paragraph 8 of FRS 101, have been
taken inthese Company financial
staterments and notes:

EU-adopted IFRS

Relevant disclosure exemptions

IAS 1 Presentation of
financial statements
tAS 7 Staternent of Cash
Flows

IAS 24 Related Party
Disclosures

136

All disclosure requirements.

The requirements of paragraphs 10{d), 10(f}, 16, 38A, 38810 D, 40Ato D, 111 and 134 to

The reguirements of paregraph 17; the requirement to disclose related party
transactions eritered into between two or more mermbers of a Group, provided that any

subsidiary party to the transaction is wholly owned by such 3 member.

IFRS 7 - Financial
instruments

All disclosure reguirernents.

Accounting policies
lnvestments

Investments m subsidiaries and
associates are shown at cost less
provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash at bank and in hand
and bank deposits repayable on
demand.

QOther payables

Cther payables are not iriterest
bearing and are recorded at fair value.
They are included in current liahilities,
except for maturities greater than 12
months after the reporting date, which
are classified as non-current liabilities.

Dividends

Dividend distributions are recognised
as a liahility in the year in which the
dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.

Grdinary shares are classified as
eqiity.

Other information

The Company had no employees
during the year (2021: none). None of
the Directors {2021 none) were
remunerated by the Company.

Their individual remuneration reflecis
the services they provide to the
Company, its subsidiaries and a
nuimber of other entities cutside of the
Group. lt is therefore not possibie to
make an accurate apportionment of
each Director’s remuneration in
respect of their service to the
Company except where sums are paid
to third parties in respect of their
services. There were no such sums
paid in the year (2021: none).

Audit fees

The audit fee in respect of the
Company and fees payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for nion-
audit services were not specific to the
Company and are disclosed in the
notes to the Group financial
statements {see note 6).

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

No critical accounting estitmates or
judgements have been used in the
preparation of these financial
statements,

Argiva Group Limited {company reg 05254001) 1
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2 Directors’ remuneration

The aggregate of the amount paid to the Directors in respect of their services as a Director of the Group are set out helow:

Year ended Year ended

30 june 2022 30 june 2021

fm £m

Aggregate remuieralion G4 5

Certain of the Directors were
representatives of the Company’s
shareholders and their individual
remuneration reflects the services they
provide to the Company, its subsidiaries
and a number of other entities outside
of the Group. it is not possible to make
an accurate apportionment of each
Directer’s remuneration in respect of

their service to the Company and the
Group except where sums are paid o
third parties in respect of their services,
of which there were £nil (2021 £nil) in
relation to the Company. Accordingly,
no remuneration in respect of these
Uirectors s recognised in the Company.

There are no directors to whom
retirement benefits accrued in respect
of qualifying services {2021: none).

Highest paid directar

Included in the above s remuneration
in respect of rhe highest paid Uirector
of:

Year ended
30 June 2021

Yeat ended
30 June 2022

£ £m
remaeration 4.2 ez
0.2 6.3
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3 Investments

The Company’s subsidiary investments (held indirectly unless stated) are shown below:

Company Country of Principal activities Year Percentage of ordinary
incorporation end shares heid

ABML Digital Limited United Kingdom Hoiding company 30-tun 100%

ABHL Digital Radio Limited Linited Kimgdom HMobting company 26 fun 10

ABML Multiplex Limites frated Kingdom Uigrreant compary Si-Jun 00N

Argive Muweo bimited Linited Kingdorm Traneimesion Serviges 30-Jun 100%

Argiva (Scotlend) Limned inited kingdom Transmission services 30-Jurn 1002

Argiva Broadeast Finarice Plc United Kingdom Financng vehicle 30-Jun 100%

Argiva Broadeast Intermediate Limned united Kingdom Holding company 30-Jun 100%

Argiva Broadcast Lirmited United Kingdom Dormant company RisSIVH] 1005

Arciva Broadeast Parent Limited United Kingdom Holding company 3-iun 100%

Argive Communmations Limited Unitad Kingdorn Dormant company 30-iun 1G0%

Argiva Defined Beneht Pension Plan Trustees Limited Untted Kingdom Pension company G- Fuin 100

Argva Digital Limnited United Kingdom Dorrnam comparry 50)-Jun F0O0%,

Aregiva Finance birrited Urnted Kingdom Digriant compary 2 Jun I00%.

Aryiva Financng No. 1 bamited Uriited Kingdom tHolding compulsy 20-lun 10G%

Argiva Financing No. 2 binited United Kingdarn Holding compary Ry 100%

Argive Finartng Ho. 3 Pl Leted Kingdom Hedding company 50-dun 95.99% [held directly}
Argiva Financing Fle tted kingdom Financing vehicts 30 dun 1002

Argva Group Holdings Lirnited Urited Kingrdom Holding ¢ srpany 203-jun OO

Argwva Group intermediate Limited Urited Kingdoem Helding company 30-5un 1O0%

Araiva Greup Parent Limited United Kinpdom Molding company 30-3un 100%

Argiva Hoidings Linited Unted Kingdom Holding company 30-4dn 100%

Areggrva Ine. UCA Satethie trangrstian serices S-deims 100%

Argiva international Haldings irmited Urnted kingedom Holding company 30 Jun 100%

Ariva Intermediste Litdted United Kinprdom Halding company Si-Jun 100%

Argiva Limicd United Kingdom Transmissien services 30-Jun 100%

Argiva Limited reland Trunsrolssion services 30-3un 100%

Argriva Media Limited Urited Kingdom Dormznt compsny 2-jun 100

Argiva Mobile Broadeast Liruted United Kingdom Doreant company =0-hm TOU%

Argva Mobse Lirnited United Kingdom Dormant company un 1007,
Argiva Mobile TV Limitted Unped Kingdom Dormant company 30 Jun 100%
Argiva No. 10 Limnited Unted Kingdam Jormant COMpainy 30-Jun 100)%
Argiva No. 11 Limited Lnited Kingdom Lormart comgdany 30-Jun 100%
Argva Pengion Trust Liniiad drited Kingrdum Dormant company 31-Mar 100
Arciva PP Finaneing Pic Linited Kingdorm Financing vehicle 304 100%

Arciva Group Limited {company reg 05254001}
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fompany

Country of
incorparation

Principal activities

Year end

Percentage of ordinary
shares held

Argiva Pte Lumited

Argiva Pubhc Safely Limred
Argiva SAS

Argiva Sateliite Linnted

Argva Sensor Finance Limoterd

Argiva Smart Fingnomg winited
Argiva Smarl Holdings Umited
Araiva Smiart Metering Lirrated

Ardiva Sroart Parent L

Argiva SRL
Argive Swing Linited

Argiva Telecoms investment Limited

iva Transisian birnited

Limited

Connect TV Livited

Dgral One L

inmedia Comraumestsans (Mo

Lirrted

drmgie
ding

Cormmuncstions Group

s Comimur

Macropuhiian L

SInERpOre

Un

France

nned Kingdom

Uniterd Kingdor)
Lnited ¥ingdom
Undes Kingdom
Jnited Kingdom
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Annual Repont and Consolidated Financial Statements 2022

With the following oxcoptions, the registered office of each of the subsidiary companies listed was Crawiey Court,
Winchester, Hampshire, 5021 2QA:

Company

Registered office

Argiva Inc

Argiva Pte Lirnited

Argiva SAS

Aryiva SEL

Argiva (fretand) Limited

Argiva {(Scollane) Limited

/o The Corporation Trust Company, Corporation Trust Centre, 1209 Jrange Street,
Wilminpgton, DET9R01, United States of Amerira.

8 Marnna Boulevard #05 02, Maring 8ay Finanaal Cent

O1ESE1, Singapere.

Tour Verdame 204, Rand Point du Font Le Sevees, 92100, Boulngne, France

cfo Sludio Bandini & Assaciall, Via Calabiia 32, Kone, taly

/0 Menen Fraser, Guertermite 2, 7 Dister Square, £ dishurgh, BHZ 36L, Sootland,

In addition to the subsidiary undertakings the Company indirectly holds the following interests in associates and joint

VENTLITES:

Company

Country of
incorporation

Principal activities

Registered office

Year end

Percentage of
grdinary
shares held

loint vertures

Sound Uigital timited

Associate undertakings:

Mauzca Lireited

UK Digital Kadio Limitad

Uniter
Kingdum

Jrited
Kingdom

Urited
Kingdorm

Cwriership and operation of

UK DAB radic rultiplex

licenne

Biddmg for UK DAB digita
radiy mubthiplex cences

Support Selivery of a digai
future for radie

Media House Petarbarough Business
Fark, Lynch Wood, Pelerharough,

Urited Kingdom, PEZ BEA

Greenworks Dug Andd Guai Yard,
Princeton Street, Londen, Enpland,

WITR 4BH

15 Alved Place, Londan, England,

WOIE 7LE

el
fury
o
<

21-Det

A0 1%

10.0%
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The following companies within the Group will adopt the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy {BFIS)
audit exemption for the year ended 30 June 2022, As the uitimate parent company, AGL has guarenteed the debts and
liabilities held within these companies as required under section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006.

Company Company registration
number
Argive Group intermedizte Limited 08126588
argiva Group Haldings Limited 08221064
Aryiva UK Broadcast Moidings Lirmited 05254048
Ardiva Telecoms investrient Limited 03696564
Argqiva Scotland Limited SC365503
AbHL Dipital Limied (3538787
ABHL Digital Radio Limted 035723732
Drpital One Linted 03537626
row i 03346921
Now Sigitad [Southern) Umited 03654065
Arpws Fingndng No 7 Limitea OE1R7E90

argiva internebional Holdings Unred

ATGIVE rrmediate Lireted

Arowa Senigr Finance Limntes

Artpiva Senart Holdings i

Artiiva 5 rarent binted

Ariiva Moo Lanited

GB0%5710

The folowing dormant companies within the Group will take the exemption from preparing and filing financial staternents
for the year ended 30 June 2022 (by virtue of s394A and s448A of Companies Act 2006 respectively). As the uitimate parent
company, AGL has guaranteed the various debts and lighiiities held within these companies as required under section 394C
of the Companiet Act 2006,

Company Company registration
number

ABrL Moit-plag Lmted

Arcovs Maohblie TV Limilend O410773%




Annual Peport and Consolidated Financial Statements 2022

Company Comipany registration
number
Inriedia Communications Group timited Q5057612
Inmedta Cormurnications: mited LOB7623
FMG Limited 03297317
Macropoitan Limited QE401565
Prisnrose No. 1 Lirnited U70AERET
Scanners {Earope) Limited n2p33712
Seanners Television Outside Broadeasts Lirited (3391685
Sefective Media Limited Q6579687
Spectrun Interactive (UK) Limted GRRO01E2
NWP Spocirum Hotdings Lirnited 04412123

GAARGBOG

Spectrum Interactive Limited

The Company held the following investments in subsidizries:

Total

fm

Cost

AT buly 2020, 30 June 2021, snd 30 June 2022 -

Carrying value

At 30 june 2022 .

At 30 June 2021

The Directors consider the carrying value of the Company’s investments in its subsidiaries on an annual basis, or more
frequently should indicators arise.

4 Other receivables

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
Em tm
Within current assets
Amounts receivable from other Group entities 10 2.6
Within nan-current assets
Amounts receivable from other Group entities 24 !

Totat 3.4 4.0

With the exception of £0.9m (2021: £0.8m) due from Araiva Holdings Limited which incurs interest st 9.5% per annum, all
amounts receivable are due from other Group entities and are unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on demand.
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5 Other payables

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£m £m
Within current abilities
Amounts payatle 1o other Group entities 16.7 154
Total 16.7 15.5

The Company has no nayables falling due after more than one year. Amounts payable to other Group entities are
unsecured, interest-{ree, and repsyable on demand.

6 Related parties

The Cempany has applied the provisions within FRS 101 to be exempt from rthe disclosure of transactions entered inte, and
balances cutstanding, with a Group entity which is wholly-owned by another Group entity.

7 Controlling parties

The Campany is cwned by a consortium of shareholders inciuding Canada Pension Plan Investment Board, Macquarie
Furopsan Infrastructure Fund 11, other Macguarie managed funds and minorities.

The largest and smallast group In which the results of the company are consolidated is that headed by Argiva Group
Limited,

in June 2022 1t was announced that Digital 9 infrastructure, has agreed to purchase Canada Pension Plan Invesiment
Board’s {CPPIR) entire 48% stalke in Argiva. Digital 9 Infrastructure is a dedicated infrastructure investor headguartered in
the UK and with significant experience in the infrastructure industry. 1t is anticipated that this deal will be completed later
in this catendar year. At that point the representatives from CPPIB appointed to the Board of Directors will be replaced by
representatives from Digital 9 Infrastructure. This will not change the day to-day operations of our business.
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